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1.  PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong
(hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in
Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the Bank hereinafter as the
“Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking
and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank’s
subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”. The
address of the Bank’s registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
(HKFRSs is a collective term which includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value, investment
properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried
at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Repossessed assets are stated at the
lower of their carrying amounts or fair values less costs to sell as further
explained in Notes 2.23.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
the Management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 3.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments that are relevant to the Group and

initially adopted for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2023

BHRERACFE
Applicable for

1&&T RE financial years
Amendments Content beginning on/after
BB EE 1 RRBBMBRE R R E 20231 A1 H

ERBEMESF 25 (BIEE])
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

1 January 2023

R ELE 8T (BT BRHARTHESE 20231 A 1H
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
EA G EAE 1258 (KIER]) HEBERGELANEEMAGHEBN 202341 A1 H

Amendments to HKAS 12

RAE T IR
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

1 January 2023

BB ERE 125 (KIEET)
Amendments to HKAS 12

BRI E —F - E S A
International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

20231 H1H
1 January 2023
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2.
2.1

(a)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments that are relevant to the Group and
initially adopted for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2023 (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”. The amendments replace
the requirement for entities to disclose their significant
accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their material
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities
apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The application of the amendments does
not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8, “Definition of Accounting Estimates”.
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Also,
they clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The application of the amendments
does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12, “Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”. The amendments
narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception so that it
no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions.
The amendments shall be applied to transactions related to
leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. The application of the
amendments does not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.1
(a)

(b)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments that are relevant to the Group and
initially adopted for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2023 (Cont’d)

The amendments to HKAS 12, “International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules”. The amendments introduce a temporary
mandatory exception from deferred tax accounting for the
income tax arising from tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
(OECD), including tax laws that implement qualified domestic
minimum top-up taxes described in those rules. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements about
such tax. The application of the amendments does not have a
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments and interpretation issued that are
relevant to the Group but not yet mandatorily
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group in 2023

The following amendments and interpretation have been issued and are
mandatorily effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January

2024:
BHRERCFE
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1E5T 2% AES financial years
Amendments/interpretation Content beginning on/after
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HK Int 5 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements—
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause”. This interpretation was revised
in October 2020 as a consequence of 2020 Amendments. In
December 2022, the interpretation was further revised as a
consequence of 2022 Amendments, to align the corresponding
wordings with no change in conclusion. The amendments are
to be applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The
Group is considering the financial impact of the interpretation
and the timing of its application.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and
receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised in the
income statement when the right to receive payment is established.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Management, which is the
chief operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources
and assesses the performance of operating segments. Income and
expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.4  Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period for items that are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange
rate at the end of the reporting period are recognised directly in the
income statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive
income as qualifying cash flow hedge or qualifying net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying
amount of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a
functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into
Hong Kong dollars as follows:

° assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end
of the reporting period;

o income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates;
and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
translation reserve in equity through other comprehensive
income.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.4  Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken to
other comprehensive income and are accumulated separately in the
translation reserve. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to in the income statement, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets,
including recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are treated as
separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are
not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their
fair value are recognised immediately in the income statement unless
they are designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments,
then they are subject to measurement under the hedge accounting
requirements.

For derivative instruments being designated as hedging instrument in
an effective hedge, the method of recognising the resulting fair value
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risk, the hedge ratio
and an evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flow of hedged items. These
criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted
for under hedge accounting. Hedge accounting may become ineffective
if the hedging instrument and the hedged item lose economic
relationship, or a significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks
that dominates the fair value change of the hedging instruments or the
hedged items.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Cont'd)

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as effective fair value hedges are recognised in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

For fair value hedge relationships where the hedged items are debt
instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income,
changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement whilst hedge
accounting is in place. When the hedge relationship no longer meets
the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated for reasons other
than derecognition, the cumulative effective hedged portion of fair
value change recognised in the income statements are amortised by the
effective interest method back to the revaluation reserve. If the hedged
item is derecognised, the unamortised cumulative effective hedged
portion of fair value change recognised in the income statement are
reclassified to revaluation reserve immediately.

(b)  Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity;
a gain or loss on the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement. Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement
upon disposal of the foreign operation as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest
method.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense (Cont'd)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g.
prepayment options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans)
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between
parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest
income or interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate
debt securities are disclosed on a net basis together with net interest
income/expense arising from the hedging instrument such as interest
rate swap.

For financial assets under stage 3, once a financial asset or a group
of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the written down
value using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Fee income from services are recognized over time at a fixed or
variable price on a systematic basis over the life of the agreement
when the contract requires services to be provided over time such as
account service and credit card fees, or recognized at a point in time
under transaction-based arrangements when service has been fully
provided to the customer such as broking services and loan syndication
arrangement.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition and
subsequently measured financial assets as: (i) at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL"), (i) at amortised cost (“AC") or (iii) at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The classification depends
on the entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or the
election of fair value option. All financial assets are recognised initially
at fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss, all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their
initial carrying amounts.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has three sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception, and
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is
classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

A financial asset can be designated at fair value through profit or loss,
if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and is so designated by the
Management:

o eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring the
financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases;

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction
costs taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

2) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and (ii) the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances
for impairment losses. Interest income which includes the amortisation
of premium or discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the income statement. Gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling, and (i) the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are
initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated
gain or loss previously recognised in equity should be transferred to
the income statement. However, interest income which includes the
amortisation of premium and discount is calculated using the effective
interest method and is recognised in the income statement.

For equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains or losses
in other comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains or losses to the income statement even upon disposal
(non-recycling). Dividends on equity instruments classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

The treatment of translation differences on fair value through other
comprehensive income securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: (i) trading liabilities, (i) financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, (iii) deposits, debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities. All
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value, and in the case of financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss, plus or minus transaction costs.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.9 Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or loss
if it is so designated at inception. A financial liability is so designated if
it meets one of the following criteria:

o eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring the
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases;

o applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both
that is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the Group is
provided internally on that basis to the Management; or

. relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting
from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in
fair value are recognised in the income statement, except for fair
value changes arising from own credit risks are recognised as other
comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified to the retained
earnings upon derecognition, unless such would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in the income statement, then all gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

(3) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit
in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue,
subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities, other than those classified
as trading liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds
net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period using the effective interest method.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan
commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial
liabilities and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) an ECL provision and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-
line basis. Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee
contracts are taken to the income statement.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the
duration of the commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan
with pre-specified terms to the customer. These commitments are in
the scope of the expected credit losses requirements as set out in Note
2.14.

The expected credit losses provision for financial guarantees and loan
commitments are reported under “other accounts and provisions” in
the financial statements.

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of
financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets subsequently measured at
FVPL, at FVOCI and AC are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and advances
and other financial assets are recognised when cash is advanced to
the counterparty. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
When the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group either
continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no
retained control. If the contractual cashflow of FVOCI or AC financial
instruments are renegotiated or modified, the modified contractual
cashflow should be discounted using the original effective interest rate,
and compared with the original amortised cost before impairment.
If the difference is material, the original financial instrument should
be derecognised and then re-recognised with the present value
aforementioned. Otherwise, the difference is adjusted to the original
carrying value and accounted for in the profit or loss.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of
financial instruments (Cont'd)

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to
repurchase at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under
a repurchase agreement are referred to as repos. Securities and bills
purchased from a counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the
counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under
a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as Deposits and
balances from banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate,
at the actual amount of cash received from the counterparty.
Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not
derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. Reverse
repos or securities borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet
as Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions, as
appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the counterparty.
Financial assets received as collateral under reverse repurchase
agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The difference
between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income
or interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in its principal market or the most advantageous
market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most
representative of the fair value of financial instruments, where
appropriate, includes using on the residual of the net offsetting risk
position of portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities in cases
the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities
according to their net market risk exposures. Despite the Group
measures the fair value of these groups of financial instruments on
a net basis, the underlying financial assets and financial liabilities are
separately presented in the financial statements unless the offsetting
criterias are fulfilled.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.12 Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses
valuation techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants,
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals.
Precious metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured
at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are
included in net trading gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

- loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are
not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity securities
measured at FVPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding,
expected cash shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the
contractual cash flows that would be due to the Group if the holder of
the loan commitment draws down on the loan/the beneficiary of the
financial guarantee claims on the financial guarantee and (ii) the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down/the
financial guarantee is claimed.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of
discounting is material. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
all possible default events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next
12 months as Stage 1 when those financial instruments are initially
recognised; and to recognise lifetime expected credit losses as Stage
2 when there has been significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for credit-
impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred and interest will then be accrued net of
the impairment amount of the respective Stage 3 financial assets.

The Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to act on such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument (including
a loan commitment and financial guarantee) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. The Group takes
into account following information, including but not limited to:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the group.

For loan commitments and financial guarantees, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the
date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment and financial guarantee,
the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the loan
and guarantee to which the loan commitment and financial guarantee
relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the
financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in income
statement. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in
debt securities that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2.7 is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired (Stage 3), in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the
related allowance for impairment losses. Such assets are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount
of the loss has been determined. The assets written off are still subject
to enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the
income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference
in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as
new loans.

2.15 Investment properties

Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over
leasehold land on which properties are situated) that are held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are classified
as investment properties in individual companies’ financial statements
and as premises in consolidated financial statements.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The work in progress item is stated at fair value. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income
statement.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.15 Investment properties (Cont'd)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income as a revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant
and Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income
statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.16 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over
leasehold land on which properties are situated) are mainly branches
and office premises. Premises are shown at fair value based on
periodic, at least annually, valuations by external independent valuers
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods,
the directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to
the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments are made
when there has been a material change.

All plant and equipment and right-of-use assets other than leasehold
land are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item
is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises
are credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same individual asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve
through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed
in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to
the income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then
to the premises revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the
relevant portion of the premises revaluation reserve realised in respect
of previous valuations is released and transferred from the premises
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.16 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down
the cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

o Properties
Over the life of government land leases

° Plant and equipment
2 to 15 years

o Right-of-use assets
Shorter of useful lives and lease terms

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as
at the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to determine whether there is any
indication that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and
the impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that
same asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are
recognised in the income statement on date of disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained earnings and is not reclassified to the income statement.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.17 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical
substance owned and controlled by the Group, mainly computer
application software. Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their estimated
useful lives are as follows:

° Capitalised computer application software
3 to 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and
expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on the date of
disposal.

2.18 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use over
the contract period.

(1) As alessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
after taking into account payments to be made in the optional period
if the extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.18 Leases (Cont'd)

(1) As alessee (Cont'd)

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in the income statement.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of
the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
except for the following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are carried at fair value; and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and buildings that
do not meet the definition of investment property where the
Group is the registered owner of the leasehold interest are
carried at revalued amount.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
income statement if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property in ‘Properties, plant and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in “Other accounts and provisions”.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.18 Leases (Cont'd)

(2) Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than
three months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances
with banks and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes
classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made.

2.21 Employee benefits
(1)  Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance with the MPF
rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions
payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions made by the
Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave the ORSO
scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the contributions
are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds
separate from those of the Group.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.21 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected
to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves, they
do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement on
leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are expected to be settled
longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.

(4)  Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost
of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using
the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined
benefit plan, is recognised immediately in the consolidated balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to income statement in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in income statement at the earlier of:
° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.21 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(4) Defined benefit plan (Cont'd)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability. The Group recognises the following changes
in the net defined benefit obligation under “interest expenses” and
“operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement by
function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs,
gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements.

. net interest expense.

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted
or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each
jurisdiction where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax expense in the
period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation
of certain assets including at fair value through other comprehensive
income securities and premises. However, the deferred income tax is
not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax
credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement
except for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement
of securities at fair value through other comprehensive income and
revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred income tax is also
credited or charged to other comprehensive income and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement together with the realisation of the
deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment
property is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation
amount of such investment property will be recovered through sale
with the relevant tax rate applied.

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair
value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding
loans on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances
together with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from
the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at
the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as
“non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities,
that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Cont'd)

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an
asset.

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or
has significant influence over the Group; (i) is a member of the same
financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent
reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or
parents; (v) is subject to common control with the Group; (vi) is an
entity in which a person identified in (iv) controls; and (vii) provides key
management personnel services to the Group or its parent. Related
parties may be individuals or entities.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas
susceptible to changes in essential estimates and judgements, which
affect the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, are set out below.
The effect of changes to either the key assumptions or other estimation
uncertainties will be presented below if it is practicable to determine. It
is possible that actual results may require material adjustments to the
estimates referred to below.

3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets (except for financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss) requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk and in the event of default and when
assets are credit-impaired. These estimates are driven by a number of
factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a
number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that
are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

o The Group’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to
the individual grades.

. The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative
assessment.

. The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed
on a collective basis.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets (Cont'd)

o Development of ECL models, including the determination of
macroeconomic scenarios and the effect on PDs, EADs and
LGDs.

o Forward-looking macroeconomic factor forecasts maintain a

consistent Group’s view on future macroeconomic environment.

o Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and
their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into
the ECL models.

The Group’s stage 3 ECL calculations are based on the estimation of
recoverable future cash flows of stage 3 advances to customers on an
individual basis.

It has been the Group's policy to regularly review its models in the
context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

3.2 Fair values of derivative financial instruments and
other financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments and other financial
instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined
by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions
available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk management
systems widely used by the industry such as option pricing models.
To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In addition,
valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit risk
are not considered in the valuation models. Management judgement
and estimates are required for the selection of appropriate valuation
parameters, assumptions and modeling techniques. Further details will
be discussed in Note 5.

3.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation
of available tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax
assets recognised.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a
variety of business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk,
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity
risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these risks, as well
as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover
all business processes and ensure various risks are properly managed
and controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a
robust risk management organisational structure with a comprehensive
set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, evaluate, monitor,
report, and control various risks that may arise. These risk management
policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to reflect
changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of risk
takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the
highest decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate
responsibility for risk management. The Board, with the assistance of
its committees, has the primary responsibility for the formulation of
risk management strategies and risk appetite, establishing a sound risk
culture and risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by
the Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various
types of risks, reviewing and approving high-level risk management
policies and monitoring their implementation, recommending senior
risk management organisational framework to the Board, including
credit approval authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit
approval for the Credit Approval Committee. The Risk Management
Committee would refer any specific transaction to the Board if it
is deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable. The Risk
Management Committee, from the risk management viewpoint assesses
whether incentives created by the remuneration system are aligned
with the risk culture and risk appetite, and whether remuneration
awards appropriately reflect the level of risk-taking and consequences.
It also assists to fostering a strong risk culture within the Group. The
Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the
internal control system.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Financial risk management framework (Cont'd)

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for reviewing or
approving credit business and credit management related matters
within the authorisation granted by the Board of Directors, monitoring
the credit activities of the Group and reporting to the Risk Management
Committee regularly. The Chief Executive is responsible for organising
and implementing the risk management strategies and objectives
established by the Board of Directors, managing various risks and
ensuring significant risk exposures are properly managed.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence while risk
management units, which are independent from the business units,
are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds
of risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for
drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management policies and
procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems,
including establishment of an organisational structure that sets clear
lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the business
areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control
environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

“Products” encompasses the products and services provided to
customers through various channels.

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the
Group has a comprehensive product development and risk monitoring
system where roles and responsibilities of all related units are clearly
defined and proper due diligence processes on product development
are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the
Management, respective product management units are responsible
for formulating business and product development plans, and
proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic
development unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s
overall strategies. Units that are responsible for risk management, legal,
compliance and finance, etc. are accountable for risk assessment and
review.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Product development and risk monitoring (Cont'd)

Apart from product development, respective product management
units work closely with relevant risk evaluating units to identify
and assess the various risks of new products. Risk evaluating units
conduct independent review on the risk assessment results and the
corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be
launched upon completion of the product due diligence process to the
satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our
customers. All new treasury products require approval before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to
or unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the
trading book and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance
sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade
finance and treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk
management policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk
limits to manage and control credit risk that may arise. These policies,
procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated to
cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisational structure establishes a clear set of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures
and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management
committee authorised by the Chief Executive, is responsible for the
implementation of the credit risk management strategies as well
as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different
units of the Group have their respective credit risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence. The risk
management units, which are independent from the business units,
are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have
the primary responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence
through identifying, measuring, evaluating, monitoring, reporting and
controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as well
as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies
and procedures. They report directly to the Chief Risk Officer, Credit
and Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive, Credit Approval
Committee and Risk Management Committee.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk management framework (Cont'd)

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets up
independent risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The
Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the Credit
Approval Committee and the Chief Executive. Based on management
needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the credit-related
subordinates or committee within the limit authorised by the Board
of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, internal rating, the level of
transaction risk, and the size of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revising its credit strategies and conducting rigorous
reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according
to the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or
transaction. All credit applications are subject to thorough risk
assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit
applications will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s)
of risk management unit(s) before approval, with exceptions given to
designated advances which satisfy certain conditions. After funding
being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly) reviewed by
designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business
units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility
ratings (in terms of loss given default) are assigned to credit applications
for non-retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail internal rating
systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans,
personal loans, etc. Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as
loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates
(if applicable) to support monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit
risk. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and closer
monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail exposures,
monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for credit
monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required
for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Creditrisk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)

Advances (Cont’d)

Regular or ad hoc credit risk management information reports are
provided to the Management, Credit Approval Committee, Risk
Management Committee and the Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes
in counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into
five categories with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is
not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a
definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss"” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all
collection options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution
of legal proceedings) have been exhausted.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit
ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting
on customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk
associated with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer
limits to manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval
and control processes as applied for advances. On-going monitoring
and stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation
where a payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the failure of
a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement
limits are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any
single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented
in the credit risk management policies and procedures which cover
acceptance criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut
ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a
regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies
with the type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the
underlying credit. The Group has established a mechanism to update
the value of its main type of collateral, real estate properties, with the use
of public indices on a portfolio basis. If necessary, collateral is insured
with the Group as the primary beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the
guarantor’s financial condition, credit history and ability to meet
obligations.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not hold any collateral that
it was permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the
borrower (2022: Nil).
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Creditrisk (Cont'd)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL"”) Methodology

For impairment assessment, an impairment model is introduced
in compliance with HKFRS 9, it requires the recognition of ECL for
financial instrument held at amortized cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income. Under HKFRS 9, ECL is assessed in three stages
and the financial assets and commitments are classified in one of the
three stages.

Stage 1: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon
origination and the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is
measured at an amount up to 12-month ECL;

Stage 2: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon
origination but the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL;

Stage 3: if the financial instrument is credit-impaired, with one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred, the loss allowance is also
measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL.

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under internal
models where feasible and available to assess ECL. For the portfolios
without models, all other reasonable and supportable information such
as historical information, relevant loss experience or proxies are utilized.
The measurement of ECL is the product of the financial instrument’s
probability of default (“PD"), loss given default (“LGD") and exposures
at default ("EAD") discounted at the effective interest rate to the
reporting date.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The Group adopts three economic scenarios in the ECL measurement
to meet the requirements of HKFRS 9. The “Base case” scenario
represents a most likely outcome and the other two scenarios, referred
to as “Upside” scenario and “Downside” scenario, represent less likely
outcomes which are more optimistic or more pessimistic compared to
Base case scenario.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL"”) Methodology (Contd)

The Base case scenario, Upside scenario and Downside scenario are
made reference to macroeconomics forecast provided by internal
economic research unit.

The macroeconomic factors for the major operating countries/regions
such as: HK GDP growth rate, HK Inflation, HK unemployment rate,
HK Property price growth, China GDP growth rate, China Inflation and
China Property price growth are applied in the economic scenarios.
These macroeconomic factors are considered to be important to the
Group’s ECL in statistical analysis and business opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario reflects the Group’s view of
the economic environment, which implements the Group’s prudent
and consistent credit strategy of ensuring the adequacy of impairment
allowance. A higher probability is assigned to the Base case scenario to
reflect the most likely outcome and a lower probability is assigned to
the Upside and Downside scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes.
The probabilities assigned are reviewed each quarter. As of December
2023, the probability weight of the Group’s Base case scenario is higher
than the sum of probability weight of Upside and Downside scenarios.

The Group enhanced the underlying parameters of the PD, LGD,
probability weightings of macroeconomic scenarios and forward-
looking information based on the results of model re-examination. After
calculation, the relevant model changes have no significant impact on
ECL. Relevant model changes have been approved by the Group’s Risk
Management Committee.

The ECL methodology has been validated by independent Model
Validation Unit and approved by the Risk Management Committee. The
Management is responsible to review model performance and changes
in ECL.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Creditrisk (Cont'd)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL"”) Methodology (Contd)

The core macroeconomic factor used by the Group to assess ECL:

EITEE HEXBERES TTES

Upaide Base case Downside

RERBERZ Macroeconomic Factor scenario scenario scenario
2024 FHE AR AERBLR 2024 Hong Kong GDP Growth 3.01% 2.68% 2.17%

BEHERBEANFEIZBEERZRRBEBSM
T8 ARUNREENZBELERRETIEX
X NEETTES  SEEBEHERELX
EF - ARBRIZELE R Z TR EIREREE
RO ZBEERZ MBSO EIEETER -

RRZEeREENBRHMEREBR T Am BEE
EERHGEABRRENER HEAMBEEER
REEEAAGEBHERBRD Am BEEMR
MHELNSRRSHEN BUELBEERSFAE
BFENEHERBRARLRE - MEHRERIERXT
EmAEAEE  ANEBSIRETE R ETEL o

M2023FE 12 A318 » H5% R MERERS
NIBREBRETITES St ER AT ENTEH
ERBABEIEMII3%,E 5% DB R MERLER
BREEEEE FTER A2 063% °

The calculation of ECL is affected by macroeconomic factors and
economic scenarios. If more pessimistic macroeconomic factors are
applied in ECL assessment or a higher probability weight is assigned to
the Downside scenario, it would result in an increase in ECL. The Group
reviews the macroeconomic factors used in the ECL model and the
probability weight of economic scenarios on a quarterly basis according
to the established mechanism.

RMC is responsible for approving ECL methodology and the
Management is responsible for the ECL model implementation.
Basel Management and Credit Management are responsible for
the maintenance of ECL methodology including models review and
parameters update on a regular basis. Independent Model Validation
Team is responsible for the annual validation of ECL models. If there
is any change in ECL methodology, the Group will follow the proper
approval process.

As at 31 December 2023, the ECL under statistical approach will be
increased by 1.13% if 5% of the probability weight is shifted from Base
case scenario to Downside scenario; and will be decreased by 0.63%
if 5% of the probability weight is shifted from Base case scenario to
Upside scenario.
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4. SERRAKRERE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FEERRE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
FBHEHABEXNEES L () Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (Cont'd)
2023412 A31 BIZBE S M5 A E RN Summary of credit risk by stage distribution at 31 December 2023 is, as
™~ follows:
2023
REAE/ BRAE
Gross carrying amount/Risk exposure
FRRER
RITRHM
SRBENER
Balances and
placements
with banks EXR
and other HiiRE SERE BHER ERAE
financial  Advances and Financial HiEE Financial Loan “ag
institutions other accounts  investments  Other assets guarantees  commitments Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIEER Stage 1 55315175 280,838,680 174,161,917 2,840,114 54,091,488 149,050,077 716,297,451
FRE Stage 2 216,415 11,046,315 - 255 5,136 1,269,176 12,537,297
FBER Stage 3 - 6,919,550 - 5,424 5,840 434 6,935,155
Bg Total 55,531,590 298,804,545 174,161,917 2,845,793 54,102,464 150,323,594 735,769,903
2022
REGE/ BRAE
Gross carrying amount/Risk exposure
FRRER
RITREAM
TREBOER
Balances and
placements
with banks =604
and other AR LRRE R B
financial  Advances and Finandial HtEE Finandial Loan k]
institutions  other accounts investments Other assets guarantees  commitments Total
BETT BETT BB BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-RE& Stage 1 66,425,340 283,612,531 151,196,624 1,501,452 53,685,306 130,789,589 687,210,842
FoRE Stage 2 = 7,423,013 = 166 94,559 1,684,023 9,201,761
FBER Stage 3 - 3,496,705 - 8,705 1,540 - 3,506,950
Bsm Total 66,425,340 294,532,249 151,196,624 1,510,323 53,781,405 132,473,612 699,919,553
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Creditrisk (Cont'd)

The internal rating and PD estimation process

The Group leverages the internal rating models where possible, with
adjustments to incorporate forward looking information and the HKFRS
9 stage classification of the exposure to determine the PDs for HKFRS
9 ECL calculations. This is repeated for each economic scenario as
appropriate. The Group uses various internal rating models for its key
portfolios in which its wholesale customers or retail accounts are rated
or assigned to specific internal grades or risk pools. The internal rating
models incorporate both qualitative and quantitative information and,
in addition to information specific to the borrower, utilise supplemental
information such as borrower’s/account’s behaviour.

Wholesale lending

For wholesale lending, the repayment ability of borrowers are assessed
by designated divisions of the Group. The credit risk assessment is
based on a credit rating model that takes into account various financial
information and qualitative information (such as management quality,
industry risks, group connection, negative warning signals).

Retail lending

Retail lending comprises personal loans, overdrafts and retail mortgages.
These products along with and some of the less complex small business
lending are rated by automated scorecards or statistical PD models.

(A) Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure
to the Group without taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum
exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of
guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum
amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed
facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and
their financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial
assets are as follows.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

(A) Credit exposures (Cont’d)

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

Collateral is generally not sought on these exposures in consideration of
the counterparty nature. However, other mitigation will be taken.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
investments

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred
agreement for documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It
provides the contractual framework under which dealing activities of
over-the-counter (“OTC") derivative transactions are conducted, and
sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the
occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if
deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex (“CSA") will be included to
form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA,
margin is passed from one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to
mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 101. Advances
and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group taking
account of the risk assessment of individual exposures. The collateral
coverage of advances to customers is analysed on pages 117 to 118.
The components and nature of contingent liabilities and commitments
are disclosed in Note 37. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess
the necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments,
7.03% (2022: 7.57%) was covered by collateral as at 31 December
2023.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are

summarised by product type as follows:

2023 2022
BT T T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFPEX Advances to customers
HEPN Personal
— %18 — Mortgages 25,043,546 28,402,461
—f=ERFR — Credit cards 122,571 127,793
—HAM — Others 25,700,703 27,555,030
NG Corporate
—FAEEX — Commercial loans 239,255,459 229,375,173
—-Bo5mE — Trade finance 8,184,039 8,304,827
298,306,318 293,765,284
BHER Trade bills 341,313 610,399
WITREMESBEEER Advances to banks and other financial institutions 156,914 156,566
298,804,545 294,532,249

ERABIHPRAZER FEASHNEEBH R
REE - RIFHERBER - AEHOHEEZER
EREP RS BMEREBHRIAKREE - BISIER
HigmIE - ARHEE 2 ERECRERAREER
B BERARRERESR  AER—BHBLHE
RAEBEANZ HEERRE - THHIERHEIE -

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when
the principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances
repayable by regular instalments are classified as overdue when
an instalment payment is past due and remains unpaid. Advances
repayable on demand are classified as overdue either when a demand
for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has not
been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances
have continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the

borrower.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

Advances are credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows have occurred.
Credit-impaired advances are classified as Stage 3. Evidence that a
financial instrument is credit-impaired include observable data about
the following events:

Overdue for more than 90 days;

An event of default occurs, including the debtor’s default in arrears of
principal and interest;

The bond issuer or borrower experiences significant financial difficulties;
The borrower encounters financial difficulties, and due to economic or
legal reasons, the Bank provides the borrower with preferential terms

that lenders would not consider under normal circumstances;

The borrower/bond issuer may go bankrupt or undergo other debt
restructuring; and

The active market for the asset disappears due to financial difficulties;

Advances classified as Stage 3 may not necessarily result in impairment
loss where the advances are fully collateralised.
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4. SEERER@® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

41 FEERRE) 4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) HEFZREMIEEZ) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(a)  FEIEHBERBHEX (a)  Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired
FERARBERBHETIRANITEERNITAT : Advances that were neither overdue nor credit-impaired are analysed by

internal credit grade as follows:

2023
FERE AR AT
atg Special  Substandard et
Pass mention or below Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XEER Advances to customers
[EPN Personal
— 118 — Mortgages 24,509,492 117,267 - 24,626,759
—EAF — Credit cards 121,229 33 - 121,262
—H Al — Others 24,937,809 76,902 - 25,014,711
NC| Corporate
—BEER — Commercial loans 221,397,786 9,425,630 - 230,823,416
—EBo5mE — Trade finance 7,944,223 157,059 - 8,101,282
278,910,539 9,776,891 - 288,687,430
B 528K Trade bills 341,313 - - 341,313

RIT R E A © B Advances to banks and other
B% financial institutions 156,914 - - 156,914

279,408,766 9,776,891 - 289,185,657
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@  FFEABERBHEN (&)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(@) Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired (Cont’d)

2022
FE@EE KA AT
=X Special Substandard HBET
Pass mention or below Total
BT T PR T T BT IT PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEER Advances to customers
f&A Personal
— &% — Mortgages 27,801,628 70,256 = 27,871,884
—{=RF — Credit cards 125,529 6 - 125,535
—HAfb — Others 26,699,090 108,771 - 26,807,861
NC Corporate
—EEEX — Commercial loans 215,737,190 6,260,278 = 221,997,468
—-BS5mE — Trade finance 8,151,923 99,464 = 8,251,387
278,515,360 6,538,775 - 285,054,135
EH5HER Trade bills 610,399 = = 610,399
RIT R E A © B Advances to banks and other
B% financial institutions 156,566 = = 156,566
279,282,325 6,538,775 - 285,821,100
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4. SEERER@®
41 fFERRE)

(B) HEFREMEKEE)
b)  BEREAREEN
BAMARERREERATOT :

4.
4.1
(B)
()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

Advances overdue but not credit-impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not credit-impaired is
analysed as follows:

2023
BHEEB BHEER
3{@A 618 A
BEFRER EFXEB
BE3EA 61& A 1%
HLLT  Overdue for Overdue
Overdue six months for one gt
for three orless  yearor less BiB1F
months but over but over Overdue for @t
or less three months six months over one year Total
BET T BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFER Advances to customers
& A Personal
— 115 — Mortgages 299,287 - - - 299,287
—EAFR — Credit cards 690 - - - 690
—H Al — Others 318,368 - - - 318,368
NC| Corporate
—EEEX — Commercial loans 2,048,538 - - - 2,048,538
- B HRE — Trade Finance 32,455 - - - 32,455
2,699,338 - - - 2,699,338
2022
3@ A 6 1 A
BB BHEBE
BAER3ME A 6 & A 14
AT Overdue for Overdue
Overdue six months for one png i
for three or less year or less i1
months but over but over Overdue for @t
orless  three months six months  over one year Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFER Advances to customers
& A Personal
— %18 - Mortgages 432,218 = = = 432,218
—fEA~R — Credit cards 1,216 - - - 1,216
—H Al — Others 673,959 - - - 673,959
NG Corporate
—EEEX — Commercial loans 4,053,611 - - - 4,053,611
-~ B HRE — Trade Finance 53,440 - - - 53,440
5,214,444 = = = 5,214,444
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
() Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product
type as follows:

2023 2022
BEHEHE B GRTE
HWER Market wE R Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT T BETT BT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEER Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— &% — Mortgages 117,500 203,037 98,359 234,746
—{=A+F — Credit cards 619 - 1,042 =
—HAh — Others 367,624 122,547 73,210 118,726
NC Corporate
—HEEX — Commercial loans 6,383,505 1,454,584 3,324,094 163,011
—BImAE — Trade finance 50,302 24,545 = =
6,919,550 1,804,713 3,496,705 516,483
FoPEERCREER Impairment allowances —
Stage 3 3,081,745 2,170,354
2023 2022
BET T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEMBEEREBEEDN Current market value of collateral held
EPERZERRTME against the covered portion of
such advances to customers 1,804,713 516,483
MERFREBEEZEFRPE Covered portion of such advances to customers 1,337,764 178,681
FaS B REE 2 B F B Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 5,581,786 3,318,024
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEERER@®

41 f=ERRE)

(B) HEFREMEKEE)

©  HEEZE)

MEEBDZE LRERIKBREE -

R2023F12A318 - RBEREZEZRBRRT
REA S BB RS (2022F « &) -

BHEDBRBMEZEFEROMMAT :

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(© Impaired advances (Cont’d)

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the

value of collateral in respect of such advances.

As at 31 December 2023, there were no impaired trade bills and
advances to banks and other financial institutions (2022: Nil).

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:

2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
REDHSREZ Gross classified or impaired
EEERRRE advances to customers 6,919,550 3,496,705
BEMEIREZEFPER Gross classified or impaired advances to
BEHEFPERERELE customers as a percentage of gross
advances to customers 2.32% 1.19%
FBEZREER Impairment allowances — Stage 3 3,081,745 2,170,354

ENBRARBECEFERRERASEENREE
BOTRB]  [RFIXREBE] AF=EROE

TR

Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which
are either classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the
Group’s classification of loan quality, or classified as Stage 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEERER@®

41 f=ERRE)

(B) HEFREMEKEE)

@  BEBE3MEA B
AHBEIEA L ERBEAFOT :

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is
analysed as follows:

2023 2022
HEFER HEFER
HWEEHDL BEE DL
% of gross % of gross
Ex- advances to o] advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BETT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEERMERE Gross advances to customers
B - which have been overdue for:
—BA3EAETER - six months or less but
618 A over three months 1,432,253 0.48% 65,438 0.02%
—iBiE6EAETHE#B - one year or less but
14 over six months 2,865,185 0.96% 1,391,450 0.47%
— @1 F — over one year 1,078,367 0.36% 636,482 0.22%
BHAR@3ME B 2 &5 Advances overdue for
over three months 5,375,805 1.80% 2,093,370 0.71%
P EMERIER ZME  Impairment allowances made in
B respect of such advances
—FEHER - Stage 3 2,632,047 1,597,659
2023 2022
BET T PSR IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERBEFREBEED Current market value of collateral held
BEEFERZERMTE against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 1,667,562 461,855
FlBRFEREE ZERFE  Covered portion of such advances to customers 1,231,090 151,600
Fatg B mTE & 2 B P B3 Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 4,144,715 1,941,770

BHERXREERNERRERBREARRER
BTHNEREENBEREERT BAAREFRA
THEZRIBYE -

R2023F 12831 - AR HBE3IEAZES
ZERBITREMEBMBEEER(2022F « £) -

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally
represented by charges over business assets such as commercial and
residential premises for corporate loans and mortgages over residential
properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2023, there were no trade bills and advances to
banks and other financial institutions overdue for more than three
months (2022: Nil).
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4. SEERER@®
41 f=ERRE)

(B) HEFREMEKEE)
€  AEEHE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(e) Rescheduled advances

2023 2022
HEFEXR EREFPER
BEEDL BMEEDLL
% of gross % of gross
k- advances to o] advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T T IT
HK$°000 HK$'000
KEHEFPENRFRE Rescheduled advances to
(BIRESR customers net of amounts
[ AAEE A3 E A 2 included in “Advances
BRI D) overdue for more than
three months” 16,023 0.01% 29,299 0.01%

REARRDETFPARVBR K EE HHE
F MERITEREFENRBERERENREZ
EX MZEARCETNERGR (BRAEHE
HHR)BIFEBEE - EFIERG R ZLEAR
B RBEE3EA - AeREaiEE3EA
ZEFIA -

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured
or renegotiated between the bank and borrowers because of
deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of the inability
of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule, and the
revised repayment terms, either of interest or the repayment period,
are “non-commercial” to the Group. Rescheduled advances, which
have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than
three months”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRtERERE & 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FEERRE) 4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFZREMIEEZ) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(7 EFEBEHERE 1t Concentration of advances to customers
(i) RITEN B RFERRE (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
LTEREFPERBREZ2TEI BT Hi7ES The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry
BO2REBERRBRZERBRNERET sector is based on the categories with reference to the completion
ifn 4w & © instructions for the HKMA return of loans and advances.
2023
EE ERREE KBz E-NE-ER
ER4E ZER BEDE HEER ZREERE
Gross % Covered by REE Impairment Impairment
advances to collateral or Classified or A allowances-  allowances -
customers  other security impaired Overdue Stage3  Stage 1and2
BRI BETR BRI BETR BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEsas Industrial, commercial and financial
-NELE - Property development 17,179,011 38.00% 1,109,704 1,109,704 623,558 143,391
-NERE ~ Property investment 16,930,883 93.11% 972,502 974,549 54,646 48,656
-SRE ~ Financial concerns 23,217,587 7.13% - - - 64,718
-REEL - Stockbrokers 170,507 11.51% - - - 93
-RERTEE ~Wholesale and retail trade 5,770,986 81.69% 6,873 54,307 5119 20,348
—Blgg - Manufacturing 2,536,681 23.85% - 23,587 - 9,892
-EHRERTE - Transport and transport equipment 3,626,081 25.03% - 781 - 13,544
A - Recreational activities 2,236,035 94.60% - - - 1,218
—BHRHE - Information technology 823,737 1.78% - 25,887 - 5,927
—Eft - Others 23,563,424 47.66% 32,903 805,399 14,768 177,212
fAA Individuals
-BEEZBHEEM - Loansfor the purchase of flats in
B LAKESE Home Ownership Scheme, Private
EEGEREEE Sector Participation Scheme and
LEHEEFL Tenants Purchase Scheme
B 196,591 99.83% - 1,429 - 27
~BEAMEEME L - Loans for purchase of other residential
% properties 10,049,099 99.81% 2,858 115,388 - 2,848
-ERRER — Credit card advances 494 0.00% - - - 177
—Hfth - Others 19,436,459 96.49% 13977 295,202 2,719 5,806
ERBERZEZBE  Totalloans for use in Hong Kong 125,737,575 57.69% 2,138,817 3,406,233 700,810 493,857
BHHE Trade finance 8,184,039 2.82% 50,302 82,756 33,645 25,747
EREIMER ZEF  Loans for use outside Hong Kong 164,384,704 23.04% 4,730,431 5,737,686 2,347,290 1,298,406
RPENES Gross advances to customers 298,306,318 37.67% 6,919,550 9,226,675 3,081,745 1,818,010
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRtERERE & 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FERRGE) 4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFZREMIEEZ) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(") BEFEEHEFE (&) (0 Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) BT B2 RFPERERE (B) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)
2022
XP BERREE F-Rer EF-NE_RR
BERpE 2B BEAE REER LREEE
Gross % Covered by LRE Impairment Impairment
advances to collateral or Classified or ek allowances - allowances -
customers other security impaired Overdue Stage3  Stageland2
BT BRI BETT BEFT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEsas Industrial, commercial and financial
EL ~ Property development 18,906,326 2953% 408,391 306,825 161,277 76,533
S EE — Property investment 16,357,855 88.38% - 944,110 - 18,208
—PRE — Financial concerns 20,226,497 5.99% = = = 61,290
-REEL - Stockbrokers 83,143 39.61% - - - 93
-HERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 5,022,337 82.56% 1,574 31,769 1,073 22,019
-HiE% — Manufacturing 3,171,700 4254% = = = 12,515
-EHRERTE - Transport and transport equipment 3,207,299 10.92% = - = 16,672
—KEED — Recreational activities 2,322,889 94.77% - = = 4,880
—EARE - Information technology 955,463 252% - - - 7,521
—-Eft - Others 22,178,352 52.00% 3,503 914,022 197 67,091
fAA Individuals
-BEREALE - Loans for the purchase of flats in
B LAKESE Home Ownership Scheme, Private
EEGEREEE Sector Participation Scheme and
LEHEET? Tenants Purchase Scheme
ER 216,232 98.73% - 4,674 - 40
-BEEMEZMEL - Loans for purchase of other residential
% properties 10,558,791 99.95% 5,161 110,591 575 3,739
—~Hfth - Others 21,324,994 95.26% 13,053 324,383 1,414 27,002
EEBFERZEFBE  Total loans for use in Hong Kong 124,531,878 57.79% 431,682 2,636,374 164,536 317,603
BHHE Trade finance 8,304,827 20.22% - 53,440 = 28,144
EBEIMER ZEF  Loans for use outside Hong Kong 160,928,579 28.14% 3,065,023 5,382,244 2,005,818 1,548,888
RPENES Gross advances to customers 293,765,284 40.49% 3,496,705 8,072,058 2,170,354 1,894,635
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEERER@®

41 f=ERRE)

(B) HEXNREMIERE %)

)  EFEHESEE)

() IBRAEHEZEPEREGHE(E)

R ERB B AIRREES  REFHETES
BRREERNT

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont’d)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income
statement, and classified or impaired loans written off during the year
are shown below:

2023 2022
DER DEE
iR WEER e HEE R
WEEE Classified or DERIER Classified or
New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BET T BT T BT B IT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEEmE Industrial, commercial and
financial
-MEERE — Property development 550,360 501,874 187,656 =
-MEERE — Property investment 90,914 - 5,631 =
- RE - Financial concerns 34,371 - 46,249 -
-RELL — Stockbrokers 93 - 88 =
-MBERTEX — Wholesale and retail trade 15,189 6,442 8,464 3,615
- Bl R — Manufacturing 7,892 18 6,601 =
- BRI RERRE — Transport and transport
equipment 2,872 - 3,188 -
- KEEE — Recreational activities 137 - 2,627 =
- BB — Information technology 1,492 - 2,120 =
- HAth - Others 166,693 - 35,574 =
& A Individuals
-BEEEABAERES - - Loans for the purchase of
LAREB2RER flats in Home Ownership
FEINAEERRE Scheme, Private Sector
FEEFZER Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 9 - B -
-BEHEMEEWZEZ - Loans for purchase of other
B residential properties 1,373 1,845 1,876 -
-ERRER — Credit card advances 130 - 13 =
- HAth - Others 3,471 603 17,352 1,026
ERBFERAZEFR4EEE  Total loans for use in
Hong Kong 874,996 510,782 317,442 4,641
Bo5mE Trade finance 46,095 65,050 20,246 21,439
EBBUIMER ZEF  Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 2,342,558 1,881,742 2,259,165 1,281,358
EEER4RE Gross advances to customers 3,263,649 2,457,574 2,596,853 1,307,438
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEERER@®

41 f=ERRE)

(B) HEFREMEKEE)

)  EFEHESEE)

(i) IRHEEEHSEZRFERERE

TR EFERZMBEEHESTERERZEH T
A YEEERBREBRE EEFERZ
ERAMEMEZTSAEMTR  AARSEEE
ERAZFTEN

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based
on the locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the
transfer of risk. For an advance to customer guaranteed by a party
situated in a country different from the customer, the risk will be

transferred to the country of the guarantor.

EFERHBT Gross advances to customers
2023 2022
BET T BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 174,266,919 177,080,708
F B A Mainland of China 111,051,570 105,484,437
H b Others 12,987,829 11,200,139
298,306,318 293,765,284

BREFERABREE -—NBE_BBRZBMEER

Impairment allowances — stage 1 and 2 in respect of the gross

advances to customers

2023 2022

BET T BRI

HK$'000 HK$'000

5 Hong Kong 715,920 589,903
F B A Mainland of China 1,037,131 1,219,157
H b Others 64,959 85,575
1,818,010 1,894,635
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SREREE @)

41 FEERRE)

(B) HMEHREMERZ)

)  EBEFEHEFE ()

(i) ERHEBEEESBIEFEREE(E)
AHER

4.
4.1
(B)
()
(if)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)
Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

Overdue advances

2023 2022

BET T BRI

HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Hong Kong 4,168,626 4,112,183
FR A Mainland of China 4,576,879 3,913,022
H Others 481,170 46,853
9,226,675 8,072,058

BRAREREF=RRZBEER

Impairment allowances - Stage 3 in respect

of the overdue

advances
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BH Hong Kong 1,005,793 1,108,867
AR A Mainland of China 1,666,343 860,350
H Others 194,549 =
2,866,685 1,969,217

BREAREREE -—NBE_RRZEREER

Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2 in respect of the overdue

advances
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 61,278 6,139
AR A HE Mainland of China 105,090 21,944
Hpth Others 3 27
166,371 28,110
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4. SEERER@®

41 f=ERRE)

(B) HEFREMEKEE)

)  EFEHESEE)

(i) IHWEEEHSEZRFPEREEE)
HESERREER

4.
4.1
(B)
()
(if)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)
Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

Classified or impaired advances

2023 2022

BET T BRI

HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Hong Kong 2,964,776 2,340,819
F A Mainland of China 3,491,961 1,152,747
H Others 462,813 3,139
6,919,550 3,496,705

BRESERBEEREE=RERZRBEER

Impairment allowances - Stage 3 in respect of the classified or
impaired advances

2023 2022

BT T BT T

HK$°000 HK$'000

5 Hong Kong 1,093,363 1,219,611
AR A Mainland of China 1,933,667 950,743
H Others 54,715 =
3,081,745 2,170,354
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., THEARERE®
41 FERRE)
(CQ WEEE

RER - AEEBBE A mITEWR D& ZE R
SHEE HEBEBEREEEMLNT

REABFNEERALLT

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(C) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security. The nature and carrying value of these assets
are summarised as follows:

Assets obtained during the year are as follows:

2023 2022

BT T ok e

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEXUES Commercial properties 25,033 =
TEWE Residential properties 23,212 =
48,245 -

AEBER2023F N AN AEENKREREEZHE
788 91,433,000 7T (2022 4F : 7% 9,100,000 7T) °
EREASEERANKMNGEE IEHENYE
(EBEERFREFABRIHRREESNTS)
MEEBERANEEETE DR

BREEENBRENRIZER  AREBIZE
ARSI T BRI

- HBHEER

- EREREE—HFLEER

- RHEBER

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group
as at 31 December 2023 amounted to HK$91,433,000 (2022:
HK$9,100,000). The repossessed assets comprise properties in respect
of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g. through court
proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors concerned) for
release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the
Group may consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices

- selling the loans together with the assets

arranging loan restructuring
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4., THEARERE®
41 FERRE)
(D) HERITREMEHEBENEEGRZH

TERR/BERITREMGS REERIFR R N(ERRE
RS RIFRN12 A31 BIRTREE TR -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements
with banks and other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor
credit-impaired as at 31 December by rating agency designation.

2023
A3LLT

Aaa £ A3 Lower ETR st

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT T BETT BT T BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RRERTT Central banks 16,109,883 - - 16,109,883
RITREM e REE Banks and other financial

institutions 25,303,792 9,154,289 4,963,626 39,421,707

41,413,675 9,154,289 4,963,626 55,531,590

2022
A3LAT

AaaEA3 Lower F AN Bt

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT BT BEET T BT IT

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HhRERTT Central banks 18,033,681 = = 18,033,681
RITREM S REE Banks and other financial

institutions 31,632,071 12,653,936 4,105,652 48,391,659

49,665,752 12,653,936 4,105,652 66,425,340

R2023F 12 8318 )8 BB (5 BREZ&H
R1FsR (20224 : 48) -

As at 31 December 2023, there were no overdue or credit-impaired
balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

(2022: Nil).
2023 2022
BT T ok eI
HK$'000 HK$'000
MAERITRH M REED Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2
ERRTERIEE— in respect of the balances and placements
FoMEERZREER with banks and other financial institutions 513 627

FLAERTT R E M S BHEEN
‘BRI FIERE =R
B

Impairment allowances — Stage 3
in respect of the balances and placements
with banks and other financial institutions - -
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4., THEARERE®
41 FERRE)
() EXEZFREHE

TRBUNBTHED T 2 EBES R FREREE -
EEZTHENBRT @ ASRBETANFRES -

4.
4.1

(E)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt
securities and certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of
such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2023
Aa1ZAa3 MEA3 A3LLT E: ] @it
Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3  Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BRI BRI BETT BRI BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IR EEEA At fair value through other
Hir 2 EE comprehensive income 10,590,735 58,585,724 79,959,458 14,819,375 2,908,761 166,864,053
IAB AR AN fERT 2 At amortised cost 5,843,364 1,351,000 102,777 - - 7,297,141
IR ES{EE AR  Atfair value through profit or loss - 6,262,411 1,279,826 79,530 32,998 7,654,765
@it Total 16,434,099 66,199,135 81,342,061 14,898,905 2,941,759 181,815,959

2022

Aal EAa3 AEA3 AT BHE Bt
Aaa Aal to Aa3 AlTto A3 Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BETTL BT BETTL BETTL BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IR EEEA At fair value through other
Hipz A comprehensive income 2,363,472 53,247,121 68,469,130 10,283,544 3,580,560 137,943,827
IABE SRR AR PERT 2 At amortised cost 10,314,643 2,813,476 101,570 = = 13,229,689
MAREREEABE At fair value through profit or loss 40,090 6,314,195 197,818 61,935 46,074 6,660,112
B3t Total 12,718,205 62,374,792 68768,518 10,345,479 3,626,634 157,833,628
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4., THEARERE®
41 FERRE)
() [EXEEFRESLEE)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont'd)

TREFBRARGEAREZEBEEF RFHEN12 The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and

A31 BIRETHR IO - EEBITHRNERT -

A RBITANFRERE -

certificates of deposit neither overdue nor credit-impaired as at 31
December by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the
ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2023
Aa1ZAa3 AZA3 A3 b @t
Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3  Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BRI BRI BRI BETR BRI BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IR EEEA At fair value through other
Eit2ElE comprehensive income

BB A2 At amortised cost

IR ES{EEABE  Atfairvalue through profit or loss

10,590,735 58,585,724 79,959,458 14,819,375 2,908,761 166,864,053
5,843,364 1,351,000 102,777 - - 7,297,141
- 6,262,411 1,279,826 79,530 5209 7,626,976

16,434,099 66,199,135 81,342,061 14,898,905 2,913,970 181,788,170

2022
Aal FAa3 AMEA3 A3BT Ei S @t
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Al1t0A3  Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BRI BRI BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IR EEEA At fair value through other
Et2ElE comprehensive income

IAERR A2 At amortised cost

IR ES{Et AR  Atfair value through profit or loss

2,363,472 53247121 68,469,130 10,283,544 3,580,560 137,943,827
10,314,643 2,813,476 101,570 = = 13,229,689
40,090 6,314,195 197,818 61,935 17,555 6,631,593

12,718,205 62,374,792 68,768,518 10,345,479 3,598,115 157,805,109
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont'd)

The following tables present an analysis of credit-impaired or overdue
debt securities by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the
ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2023
REE
Carrying values
Hep
2 REEE
Of which
AT accumulated
Aa1Z Aa3 MEA3 Lower B4R BFR  impairment
Aaa  AaltoAa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Unrated  allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IR fEE{cat ABE  Atfair value through profit or loss - - - - 21,789 21,789 -
IAAABEZEET AL Debt securities at fair value through
2HAME 2 ERES  other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
o ZEAEESE  Of which accumulated
impairment allowances - - - - - -
2022
e
Carrying values
A
ZitREER
Of which
AT accumulated
Aal E Aa3 AMEA3 Lower mTR WIS impairment
Aaa  AaltoAa3 ATto A3 than A3 Unrated Unrated allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MR EZ{cat ABE At fair value through profit or loss = = = = 28519 28519 =
INAREELE AR Debt securities at fair value through
2ENEZEBES  other comprehensive income - - - - = = 182,129
Eh: ZEHEEE  Of which accumulated
impairment allowances - - - - 182,129 182,129
202312 A31 B - RARESN B2 FHRE As at 31 December 2023, there were no impaired or overdue

(20224 : ) o

certificates of deposit (2022: Nil).
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2 MBEHAFEERREFENE  BENMET
EMEREERR  AETEEAZR -

()  EOMENGERETENRRER MR
RBEERERIRT - RIS FHERRRE
BREER( MHRBERRES LR
BHTEARER  RISERE  DILEES
8TE -

4.2 WEHRR

mEREREEESRTISER (EX MX KX
B BmER) KB EHEEAINNE FX - KE
MEmis R ELRB LM A A RETRNIESR -
AEERBUET O HRERR LS - BIRER SRS
B 1 -

THERREERE  EREASENARRIEME
EEBERRRE - KETEHREREEEHZ MR
ERFER ARERESEBTARELENTSR
% REESRBRERRE -

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1  Creditrisk (Cont'd)

(F) The impact of Mainland China real estate exposure
on credit risk

In light of the market downturn and tight liquidity issue for property
development sector in Mainland China, the Bank’s credit exposures
to related sectors are also affected and there are several default cases
occurred. The Bank has adjusted the customer credit rating and level of
provisioning in response to changes in credit risk.

In response to rising risks in property development sector in Mainland
China, the Bank has taken the following measures:

(1) Strengthen the concentration risk management for real estate
related sector, set internal goal to reduce the concentration risk
for relevant sectors, and adopt stricter mechanisms to control
new loans granted to relevant sectors.

(2) Strengthen the credit review for property development related
sectors in Mainland China, prudently assess credit risks for both
industry and borrower level, and adjust the credit underwriting
requirement for the relevant sectors.

(3) Closely monitor the development of the mainland real estate
sector, strengthen early warning and risk alert process,
promptly assess and follow up in response to credit changes
for identifying customers with potential risks, formulate and
execute mitigation measures in a timely manner, in order to
prevent asset quality deterioration.

4.2 Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value
of foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions
held by the Group due to the volatility of financial market price (foreign
exchange rate, interest rate, equity price, commodity price). The Group
adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance between
risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy
growth of the treasury business, by effective management of potential
market risk in the Group’s business, according to the Group’s overall
risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well-
established risk management regime and related management
measures.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

In accordance with the Group’'s corporate governance principles
in respect of risk management, the Board and Risk Management
Committee, Senior Management and functional units perform their
duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk. The risk
management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market
risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the
Group, to ensure that the aggregate and individual market risk profiles
are within acceptable levels. Independent units are assigned to monitor
the risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with
profit and loss reports submitted to Senior Management on a regular
basis, while limit excess will be reported to Senior Management at
once when it occurs. NCB (China) sets up independent risk monitoring
teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submits
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control market risk. Major risk indicators and
limits include but not limited to VAR (Value-at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open
Position, Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value, Greeks, CS01) and Stress
Testing. To meet management requirements, major risk indicators
and limits are classified into four levels, and are approved by the Risk
Management Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee
or Senior Management respectively. Treasury business units are required
to conduct their business within approved market risk indicators and
limits. The Group also implements regular model validation to ascertain
appropriateness of market risk models and ensure market risk to be
adequately measured and captured.

(A) VAR

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks
to the Risk Management Committee and Senior Management on a
periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model,
using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the Bank over one-
day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR
limit of the Group and the Bank.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(A) VAR (Contd)

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk
exposure’ of the Group.

2E 2F 2
RW12A318 BREHE BE8E THEE
Fp At Minimum for Maximum for  Average for
Year 31 December the year the year the year
BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2 msRE 2 BRE VAR for all market risk 2023 2,909 1,525 4,098 2,649
2022 1,958 413 3,176 1,336
E Rz BkRE VAR for foreign exchange risk 2023 699 152 2,537 972
2022 590 66 1,988 683
MRz mkE VAR for interest rate risk 2023 3,026 1,343 3,603 2,51
2022 1,847 414 2,621 1,087
EmER < ERE VAR for commodity risk 2023 285 = 304 104
2022 - - 2,385 268
e Note:
1. T EFBEEBER O RRE - 1. Structural positions have been excluded.
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(B) SMEmBE

AEENEERABEETFERET ETRARKES
TEEH - BERIMNERBARRSEATRIKE
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ERTA - AEER NI A -—ERNE
EREAEEE  WRTENMINES L (PIMINERH)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(A) VAR (Contd)

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future
events may not encompass all potential events, particularly
those which are extreme in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions
can be liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully
reflect the market risk arising at times of severe illiquidity, when
a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
hedge all positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not
take into account losses that might occur beyond this level of
confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the
close of business and therefore does not necessarily reflect
intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test
indicators and limits to assess and manage the market risk not covered
by VAR. The market risk stress testing includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as
scenario analysis on historical events.

(B) Currency risk

The Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies,
particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the
currency risk exposure of the Group is managed at an acceptable level,
risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring
tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets
and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.
FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.

#1798 7% 445 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2023 ANNUAL REPORT 4 %R o www.nch.com.hk

131



32

ot 5 R 2R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements

4., THEARERE®

42 WHERGE)
(B) EmEE(E)

TRINMAKEEBERS AL HREBE
BRRMEAZTEINERARE USRAEBIBTAEIN

SR 48 B MR ERIET R -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(B)  Currency risk (Cont’d)

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency
exposures arising from trading, non-trading and structural positions and
is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of foreign currency position.

2023
B TLEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

Hith sh i HhiE e

£ AKM  Other foreign  Total foreign

US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

BT T BETT BT T BETT

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

REEE Spot assets 130,187,281 176,219,790 32,210,738 338,617,809
REAE Spot liabilities (116,390,740)  (165,964,904) (11,513,836)  (293,869,480)
EHEA Forward purchases 39,146,801 5,927,883 5,596,954 50,671,638
EHE N Forward sales (55,186,448) (13,458,845) (26,196,643) (94,841,936)
(R8)/RE&FE Net (short)/long position (2,243,106) 2,723,924 97,213 578,031
EEMR BT Net structural position 7,577,519 16,027,380 - 23,604,899

2022
BETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

H AN HNEE 4EER

e AR Other foreign Total foreign

Us Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

BT T BEBT T BETT BB T T

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

REEE Spot assets 135,675,774 147,954,518 27,839,326 311,469,618
REBE Spot liabilities (128,783,933) (149,721,975) (10,893,115) (289,399,023)

RHBA Forward purchases 35,952,940 14,074,063 7,533,588 57,560,591
REIE N Forward sales (45,696,623) (9,345,649) (24,476,656) (79,518,928)
() K& F8E Net (short)/long position (2,851,842) 2,960,957 3,143 112,258
EEEE BT Net structural position 5,222,354 15,224,089 = 20,446,443
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(C) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk in Banking Book (“IRRBB"”) means the risks to a bank’s
earnings and economic value arising from movements in interest
rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures in Banking Book are mainly
structural. The major types of interest rate risk in Banking Book from
structural positions are:

- IRR Gapping risk: arising from the changes in the interest rates
on assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items of different
maturities and different repricing tenors. The extent of gapping
risk depends on whether changes to the term structure of
interest rates occur consistently across the yield curve (parallel
risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel risk);

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions
resulting that the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may
change by different amounts within the same repricing period;

- Option risk: arising from interest rate option derivatives or
from optional elements embedded in assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items, where the Al or its customer can alter the
level and timing of their cash flows. Option risk can be further
characterised into automatic option risk and behavioural option
risk.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate
risk management in banking book. The Asset and Liability Management
Committee exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in accordance with
the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by
Risk Management Committee. Asset and Liability Management Division
is responsible for banking book interest rate risk management. With
the cooperation of the Financial Market Department, Asset and Liability
Management Division assists the Asset and Liability Management
Committee to perform day-to-day banking book interest rate risk
management. Its roles include, but are not limited to, the formulation
of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk
indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring
of the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of banking
book interest rate risk management reports to the Management and
Risk Management Committee.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group’s Internal Audit Department acts as the independent audit
on interest rate risk in banking book, supervises the related departments
to execute the interest rate risk function according to the policy in order
to effectively control the risk. The Group’s Model Validation Division
preforms independent model validation regularly for interest rate risk in
banking book.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual
IR-1 “Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book"” issued by the HKMA in
2018, the Group sets interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control interest rate risk. The Group’s key risk
indicators, the Net Interest Income impact and the Economic Value
of Equity impact, reflect the impact of interest rate movement on the
Group’s net interest income and capital base respectively. The former
assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income
as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The
latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic values
as a percentage to the latest capital base. The risk appetites and limits
of these two indicators are set by the Board and Risk Management
Committee respectively to monitor and control the Group’s banking
book interest rate risk. In addition, the Group monitors the interest rate
risk in banking book through indicators and limits including, but are
not limited to, interest rate sensitivity gap limits, basis risk, duration and
price value of a basis point (“PVBP").

The Group’s indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which
are approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Chief Financial Officer respectively.
Risk-taking business units are required to conduct their business
within the banking book interest rate risk limits. In addition, risk
mitigation measures including, but not limited to, the use of interest
rate derivatives, adjustment of portfolio duration, etc. as approved by
ALCO, are effectively used to mitigate the IRRBB. Before launching a
new product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments
are required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes
the assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the
adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact
on banking book interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment
process will be submitted to Risk Management Committee for approval.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income arising from the optionality of savings
deposits.

The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi
in terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2023, according to
the new standard IRRBB framework of HKMA, the Group assesses
the impact of changes in the Group’s net interest income (“ANII")
and economic value (“AEVE") respectively under 6 interest rate shock
scenarios, in which optionality and behavioural assumptions of certain
products will also be estimated in the exposure measurement. The 6
interest rate shock scenarios include: (1) Parallel up; (2) Parallel down; (3)
Steepener; (4) Flattener; (5) Short rates up; and (6) Short rates down.

When calculating AEVE, commercial margins and other spread
components are included in the cash flows and discounted by the risk-
free rates. The key behavioural assumptions include:

) Part of the current account and savings account deposits
("CASA™) in HKD and USD are classified into core stable deposit
based on historical data which would be assigned a longer
interest rate sensitive tenor while the interest rate sensitive tenor
of other non-maturity deposits is considered as “Next day”. As
at 31 December 2023, the average interest rate sensitive tenors
of HKD and USD CASA is 1.97 months and 1.28 months, and
the longest interest rate sensitive tenor is 3 months.

(2) For retail term deposits and retail fixed rate loans subject to
early redemption without significant penalty, early redemption
rates are calculated under different portfolios.

Methods of aggregation across currencies strictly follow the IRRBB
Standardised Framework. The aggregate EVE losses across all applicable
currencies are calculated as the maximum loss across the six interest
rate shock scenarios.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

2023

REEEYE FARHLALEH

AEVE ANII

BET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000
FamE Parallel up 2,137,472 (248,691)

FETmT Parallel down 4,430 249,317
EHN Steepener 110,546 TEA(N/A)
B Flattener 692,136 TEA(N/A)
KE LA Short rate up 1,406,394 THEA(N/A)
KRR Short rate down 107,814 TEF(N/A)

58 Maximum 2,137,472 249,317

2022
KEEBEYE FFNBLAZ

AEVE ANII

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi7m £ Parallel up 2,762,673 (560,623)

FATRT Parallel down 62,104 560,893
AR Steepener 371,570 & A (N/A)
&M Flattener 549,282 8 A (N/A)
M= A Short rate up 1,509,829 58 A (N/A)
KETR Short rate down 319,955 & A (N/A)

BE Maximum 2,762,673 560,893

i LEARERE

M2023F 12 A31 8  EFAEHGFFTRATERT
BB e FH B RATE R B 249,317,0007T
(20224 : 75 1560,893,0007T) » KB EEH HZF K
BEVERERFERMGEFEITREBR  &EE
B L ABI2137,472,0007C (2022 4 : B i
2,762,673,0007C) ° £220224F 12 A31B# L » &
SEVFANBEW AT E R LB %311,576,000 7T & 4
EEENRANEEFER B %625201,0007T
FERKRETEESFRETHEIN-—RERFES -

Remarks: Positive values indicate losses under the alternative scenarios.

As at 31 December 2023, the net interest income impact for all
currencies is HK$249,317,000 (2022: HK$560,893,000) under the
interest rate parallel down scenario. The maximum negative impact
on AEVE is HK$2,137,472,000 (2022: HK$2,762,673,000) under the
interest rate parallel up scenario. Compared with 31 December 2022,
the Group’s net interest income impact for all currencies is decreased by
HK$311,576,000 and maximum negative impact on AEVE is decreased
by HK$625,201,000, mainly due to investment in fixed rate bonds and
issuance of additional tier 1 capital securities.



PR ERARMIEE

Notes to the Financial State

4., THEARERE®

ments

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

42 THERR(E) 4.2  Market risk (Cont'd)
CQ FIEREEE) (C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

TRBRTAEER12ANBZEEBBERAN
MERBAE RNARBEIREERAE I
HAMERRRAMKIMA (ARFEERE) DM -

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure
to interest rate risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the

contractual repricing date and maturity date.

assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of

2023
= S =2
—f@RR =f@R +=f@A k3 RENRE T8
Upto 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over Non-interest @t

1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total

BT BETT BETT BETT BT BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8 Assets
EFBEREHETR  Cashand balances with banks and other

LUk Tt financial institutions 48,916,994 - - - - 4916399 53,833,303
ERTREMEREE  Placements with banks and other financial

—E+Z{ARRIH institutions maturing between one and

LEBER twelve months - 1,545,669 727,600 - - - 2,273,269
DARERGABEZ  Finandal assets at fair value through profit

tREE or loss 603,012 5195402 8,317,642 318,367 - 1,403,687 15,838,110
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,039,044 1,039,044
BERREMERE Advances and other accounts 195938592 34,011577 41,793,834 21,427,426 733,307 - 293,904,736
PETEA Financial investments

~UBREREA - At fair value through other

EL kIl comprehensive income 15,818,685 33,740,231 52,557,957 61,756,020 2,991,160 25,606 166,889,659

—AERR A2 - At amortised cost 2725416 1561211 1,900,694 1,109,820 - - 7,297,141
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 407,600 407,600
mE - BMREE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 907,270 9,071,270
BREE Intangible assets - - - - - 843,464 843,464
HEEE Qther assets

(BRECHEEE) (including deferred tax assets) - - - - - 3750911 3,750,911
EELT Total assets 264,002,699 76,054,090 105,297,727 84,611,633 3,724,467 21,457,981 555,148,597
=L Liabilities
ROREMSRERZ  Deposits and balances from banks and

FRR&EH other financial institutions 18,465,183 6,182,567 8,604,668 - - 2329474 35,581,892
DREREABEZ  Financial liabilities at fair value through

RAE profit or loss 3,576,107 674,069 1,534,597 - - - 5784773
TEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,349,761 1,349,761
RPER Deposits from customers 334,795,608  8589,889 30,670,942 7,499,236 - 12,834,188 394,389,863
BERIBEKESR Debt securities and certificates of

FRE deposit in issue 925330 3,589,446 10,375,114 13,829,945 - - 28,719,835
A fRIE R Other accounts and provisions (including

(BRERHER current and deferred tax liabilities)

BEHEER) 4595636 1990908 3,174,416 894,790 30,588 5,176,950 15,863,288
FERE Subordinated liabilties - - - - 5,468,028 - 568,028
BEEE Total liabilities 362,357,864 21,026,879 54,359,737  22,223971 5498616 21,690,373 487,157,440
MG RERD Interest sensitivity gap (98,355,165) 55,027,211 50,937,990 62,387,662  (1,774,149)  (232,392) 67,991,157
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4, ERERER® 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
42 THERR(E) 4.2  Market risk (Cont'd)
C FIEREEE) (C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
2022
ED =z -2
—fEAR =fiA +-f@A nE RENE &8
Up to 103 31012 1105 Over  Non-interest e
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BT A%Tr  BETr BBt BT BETn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8 Assets
BRESRERRTR  Cashand balances with banks and other

Hit S RgE R financial institutions 53,918,408 = = = - 8494947 62,413,355
ERTREMSRERE  Placements with banks and other financial

—Z+Z{ARRHHZ  institutions maturing between one and

TR twelve months - 394734 654,077 = = - 4601418
DRERIFABEZ  Finandal assets at fair value through profit

CHAE orloss 305267 4269806 12,546,014 46,763 - 1446102 18,613,952
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1884945 1,884,945
ERREMER Advances and other accounts 209,029,968 37,017,281 30,161980 12,710,617 1,547,343 - 290,467,189
CETE Financial investments

“DARBEREEA - At fair value through other

Eth2mIRE comprehensive income 12,638,975 26444530 24,863,132 72495576 1,501,614 21,844 137,965,671

—NERR AR - At amortised cost 2,333,947 - 9445618 1,450,124 = - 13,229,689
REME Investment properties = = = = = 559,140 559,140
Y ERE T Properties, plant and equipment = = = = - 9089246 9,089,246
BVEE Intangible assets = = = = = 619,709 619,709
EthEE Other assets (including current and

(BREEUBRER deferred tax assets)

BREHBEEE) - - - - - 2232724 2,232,724
BEAR Total assets 2782265565 71678958 77,670,821 86,703,080  3,048957 24,348,657 541,677,038
g Liabilities
RAREMwEEEEZ  Deposits and balances from banks and

FRREH other financial institutions 18,042,050 8,889,198 15,627,994 = - 2363893 44923135
DRESEABEZ  Fnancial liabilties at fair value through

SHEE profit or loss 5,065,482 656,066 1,397,810 = = - 7119358
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments = = = = - 1,112,781 1,112,781
RPER Deposits from customers 163,419,766 101,078,563  80,165831 6,545,816 - 14,252,488 365,462,464
BETEBEFRERE  Debt securities and certificates of deposit in

issue 380244 6,702,697 15588895 12,750,576 = - 35422412
AfbRER R Other accounts and provisions (including

(BREERRER current and deferred tax liabilities)

BERHEERE) 4039878 2,081,033 8297128 971,801 131212 4488982 20,010,034
FEBE Subordinated liabilities = = = - 5455215 - 5455215
R4S Total liabilities 190,947,420 119,407,557 121,077,658 20,268,193 5586427 22,218,144 479,505,399
R GREHO Interest sensitivity gap 87,279,145  (47,728599) (43406,837) 66434887  (2,537.470) 2,130,513 62,171,639
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[\
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=R RR

. AEERBBETEEEMAEERNXRMELDN
AR

. ABERITRAXRKEGHEILTS  KAK
ESE &SP Py

. WERTTRAEF B BEEBURB IR NTR
BMERZ RBIERTAIBRMELETISE
BEERZ RN E ER R

. HE R B e B AR R AR AR A A A
BRIEEE  ARIRELZEFRITAERE
ELAE T 5] BUS R T 9 R B

. EAKBENEHREERANBERNER T AR
ERTRBMEELBRMENNBRRK
B RO G E R

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(D) Interest rate benchmark reform

In July 2017, the UK regulator, the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA")
announced the discontinuation of a widely-used benchmark rate, the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"), by end of 2021, leading
to a transition of LIBOR to Risk-Free Rates (“RFRs”) or Alternative
Reference Rates (“ARRs”). In March 2021, the FCA further announced
that publication of 26 LIBOR settings would permanently be ceased,
including British Pound (GBP), Swiss Franc (CHF), Euro (EUR), Japanese
Yen (JPY) LIBOR settings and the 1-week and 2-month US Dollar (USD)
LIBOR settings after 31 December 2021, while the remaining USD LIBOR
settings are ceased immediately after 30 June 2023.

The Group established its IBOR Transition Programme in 2020 and
formed an IBOR Steering Committee, which is chaired by the Chief Risk
Officer, to lead the Transition Programme. The Steering Committee
comprises senior representatives across Front Office, Middle Office and
Back Office. The management oversight of the Transition Programme is
performed by the Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO")
and the Board.

IBOR transition exposes the Group to various risks, which the Transition
Programme is managing and monitoring closely. These risks include but
are not limited to the following:

° Conduct risk arising from discussions with clients and market
counterparties due to the amendments to existing contracts
required under IBOR transition

o Basis risk arising from asymmetric adoption of benchmark rates
across assets and liabilities

° Financial risk to the Group and its clients as markets are
disrupted due to IBOR transition

° Pricing risk from potential lack of market information if liquidity
in IBORs reduces and RFRs are illiquid and unobservable

° Operational risk arising from changes to the Group’s IT systems
and processes; and the risk of payments being disrupted if an
IBOR ceases to be available

3 Accounting risk if the Group’s hedging relationships terminated
and the Group experienced volatility in income statement
caused by profit and loss arising from existing reference rate of
financial instruments transiting to RFRs
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HE2023F12A318 -FBEXERUT R Bt
SRR A M1 EHIM2 8 B =t FRITRER
BRHEREENBEERTEEAENEEIER 8
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HRABRTHOETHBRTARFEMNEELEFEE
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EMAERMNERDN2023F AT « ERITRZE
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U HERMANER -

RERER BEBRER THEZNEEER
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TR WEEMPE BFEMITETAENF RiEH
MNAEEERBA RSB REEN R BRIERER
BRRGENMEMARBERBZNEEMZHE  ER
2023 FW5EA °

AEEFR TERABEEANEIZRRE  WBBIR
TESIR - BEFINEFIE R R 2
BREEMNXEENEMMAE - B THIIMHRT
RZEHFEBENERERSHERERIEDRER
AEEEBEEERESF  AERIEBBRTT
[l 47 S F K EF B E -

ERESE AEENTEMEEERRAEDK
PDHETRBRTARKEMNEZZMBEEEER
RREENEK -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(D) Interest rate benchmark reform (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2023, all legacy contracts referencing EUR, GBP,
JPY, CHF, and 1-week and 2-month USD LIBOR settings have been
remediated by including appropriate fallback in the contract, with no
‘tough legacy’ contracts remaining.

For legacy contracts referencing the remaining USD LIBOR settings,
all exposures have already incorporated appropriate fallback, and the
contract remediation of all legacy contracts is completed in 2023. The
Group continues the client outreach to support our clients during the
IBOR transition.

For loans products, the migration on revolving loans, term loans and
syndicated loans to RFRs or ARRs is completed 2023. For treasury
products, the migration on bonds and derivatives such as interest rate
swaps to RFRs or ARRs is completed in 2023 following the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) protocol or clearing house
arrangement.

The Group has identified major risks arising from the IBOR Transition
and mitigated most of the risks by performing banking system upgrade,
client outreach and contract remediation, process and model changes,
development of new ARR products, staff training and frequent
management oversight of the Transition Programme. The Group also
engages actively with regulators to ensure a smooth transition from
LIBOR.

The Group’s main interest rate benchmark exposure has successfully
transited from USD LIBOR to Secured Overnight Funding Rate (“SOFR")
during the IBOR transition.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to
grow assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable
loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable,
reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under
normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net
positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting
the HKMA to act as the lender of last resort.

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage
the liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost
based on the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and
sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the Group’s
primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds
are in place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core
deposit and obtains supplementary funding from the interbank market.
According to different term maturities and the results of funding
needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset
structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.)
to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate funds in
support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds
at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency.
The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use
of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and
prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when
problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group has
established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage
the liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and
to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities,
such as loan commitments and derivatives. The Group has an overall
liquidity risk management strategy to cover the liquidity management
of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-day liquidity,
intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and
has formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Risk Management Committee (“RMC") is the decision-making authority
of liquidity risk management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility
of liquidity risk management. As authorised by RMC, the Asset and
Liability Management Committee (“ALCO") exercises its oversight
of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Asset and
Liability Management Division is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Financial Market Department to assist
the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their
specific responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These
indicators and limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage
ratio (“LCR"), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR"), loan-to-deposit ratio,
Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCQO"), liquidity buffer asset
portfolio and depositor concentration limit. The Group applies cash
flow analysis to assess the Group's liquidity condition under normal
conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution
specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) at least on monthly
basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various severe
liquidity crises. Also, the Assets and Liabilities Management System is
developed to provide data and the preparation for regular management
reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2
“Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued
by the HKMA in 2016, the Group has implemented behaviour model
and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to enhance the
Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions.
In cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have
been made relating to on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from
customers) and off-balance sheet items (such as loan commitments).
According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based
on contractual maturity date and the assumptions of customer
behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group establishes MCO
indicator which predicts the future 30-day maximum cumulative net
cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to
assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash
flow gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As
at 31 December 2023, before taking the cash inflow through the sale
of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s
30-day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to
HK$9,203,588,000 (2022: HK$17,326,179,000) and was in compliance
with the internal limit requirements.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and
combined crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario
is a combination of institution specific and general market crisis to
assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe liquidity crisis,
with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank
deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-related
contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer
loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group was able to maintain a positive
cash flow under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group
has the ability to meet financing needs under stressed conditions. In
addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a liquidity cushion
which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities
or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued or guaranteed by non-financial corporate
with a corresponding external credit rating of BBB- or above to ensure
funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2023,
the Bank’s liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$58,129,938,000
(2022: HK$48,631,199,000). A contingency plan is being established
which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test
results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant
procedures and responsibility of various departments. The Group
tests and updates the Plan annually to ensure its effectiveness and
operational feasibility.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules
effective from 1 January 2015 and the NSFR is effective from 1 January
2018. The Group, being classified as category 1 authorised institution
by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR and NSFR on consolidated
basis. The Group is required to maintain LCR and NSFR not less than
100%.

By maintaining a ratio in excess of minimum regulatory requirements,
the LCR seeks to ensure that the Group holds adequate liquidity assets
to mitigate a short-term liquidity stress and the NSFR ensures the Group
maintaining sufficient stable funding sources to cover their long-term
assets.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request
from the Group additional collateral if they have concerns about the
Group’s creditworthiness.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or
business developments. Before launching a new product or business,
the relevant departments are required to go through a risk assessment
process, which includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk
and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk
assessment process will be reported to Risk Management Committee
for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management
policies. On the basis of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal
banking subsidiary develops its own liquidity management policies
according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management
processes independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a
regular basis.

The information of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio
disclosures are available under “Unaudited Supplementary Financial
Information — 1. Liquidity Coverage Ratio and Net Stable Funding
Ratio” and section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank's website at
www.nch.com.hk.
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REBE @ (E)
ETR N p

TRAEAKENIZANBZEEREGENTHA
A BREREAR  BERBEMREGNISA

HFIERHABR 2 4R -

4.
4.3

(A)

Maturity analysis

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31
December into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

period at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

2023
AR -Z=fA =Et=fiA -Zaf BENE FEE
& Upto 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over R )
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BRI BRI BETT BRI BRI BRI BRI BET T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BE Assets
ERRSRERETR Cash and balances with banks and
EheBlENES other financial institutions 22,868,017 30,965,376 - - - - - 53833393
ERTRAL S REE Placements with banks and other
“ET-RARGEHYZ financial institutions maturing
THER between one and twelve months - - 1,545,669 727,600 - - - 213,269
DERI AR Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit orloss
-Rat ~Trading
-BhEs - Debt securities - 91,089 4271524 2,444,116 597,807 - - 7404536
~AHENAAER - Mandatorily measured at fair value
HABH ERAME through profitor loss,
non trading
-BhEs - Delt securities - - - 71831 144,603 - 21,789 250229
-Eft - Others - 11,531 758269 5937,647 - - - 6807447
Vb ~ Equity securities - - - - - - 1375898 1375898
fIEEMTA Derivative finandial instruments 362,039 99,767 41,102 210,554 324,62 1320 - 1,039,084
ERRAMER Advances and other accounts
-RFEX - Advances to customers 41,504,574 10,398,146 17,607,785 61,264,307 112,593,065 45,894,136 4,144,550 293,406,563
UL ~Trade bills 19 69,112 104,261 167,899 - - - 341,291
~RAORABEREEET - Advances to banks and other
financial institutions - - 692 156,190 - - - 156,882
SRR Financial investments
WAREEL AL - Atfairvalue through other
2ENE comprehensive income - 8,247,659 21756217 53644624  80,243301 2,972,252 - 166,864,053
- BN IETE - At amortised cost - Q736976 1577244 1885331 1,097,590 - S AL
-kiE% - Equity securities - - - - - - 25,606 25,606
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 407,600 407,600
nE - BHER Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 9Ma0 901210
AWEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 843,464 843,464
EAE (RIEEEHBEE) Other assets (incuding deferred tax
assets) 1,283,018 1,756,975 19,671 57,113 538,598 845 94,691 3,750,911
BEfE Total assets 66,017,667 54,476,631 47,682,434 126573218 195539226 48,868,553 15,990,868 555,148,597
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4, ERERER® 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 RBEELRR(E) 4.3  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(A) ZEHZH (&) (A)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
2023
-fARR  -E=fif ZEt=fiA -BIE BENE TEE
Ik Upto 1to3 3t0 12 1t05 Over A @it
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BRTT BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRTT BETT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
BORASREEL Deposits and balances from
FkEs banks and other financia
institutions 3335424 17,769,803 5,882,567 8,594,098 - - - 35581892
ARERGARSZ Financial liabilites at air value
LRER through profit or loss - 3,576,107 674069 1,534,597 - - - 5784713
fEERIA Derivative financial instruments 150,750 303,778 316,690 278,543 185,385 24,615 - 1,349,761
REEH Deposits from customers 98,786,054 72828834 116,082,750 97,820,721 8,871,504 - - 394,389,863
BREIEBESRENE  Debt securiies and certficates of
deposit in issue - 925,330 3580446 10375114 13,829,945 - - 28719835
EMEERER(BEEN  Other accounts and provisions
HERERERBAR) (including current and deferreq
tax liabilites) 5,938,466 1,893,371 2,066,919 3,647,840 1,680,737 16,373 619,582 15,863,288
#ERR Subordinated liables - - - - - 5468028 - 5468028
AELE Total liabilities 108,210,694 97387223 128612441 122250913 24,567,571 5,509,016 619,582 487,157,440
RBEEHO Net liquidity gap (42,193,027)  (42,910,592) (80,930,007 4322305 170,971,655 43359537 15371286 67,991,157




ot 5 R 2R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, SR EE @) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 RBEELRR(E) 4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(A) ZEHZH (&) (A)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
2022
AR -Z=fA =Zt+=fA —21f RENE MEE
ki Upto 1103 3012 1105 Over R a5t
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
EEfr AT ARTn BETr BE&Tn ERTn BETr BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
gE Assets
EFRERFHETR Cash and balances with banks and
AheRgRNER other finandial institutions 23262819 39,150,536 = = = = - B2A133%
ERARAb SRR Placements with banks and other
—ET-EARHEZ financial insitutions maturing
AR between one and twelve months - - 394734 654,077 - - - 4601418
MRERIGTARRZ Financial assets at far value through
SHEE profit orloss
-R5k - Trading
-ERES - Debt securities - 32,504 3,084,442 3451224 46,742 - - 6,620,912
-HHMARAER L - Mandatorily measured at fair value
HARR FRAM through profit or loss,
non trading
-BHES - Delt securities - - - 10,681 - - 28519 39,200
-2 - Others - 272,89 1,185,369 9,077,989 - - - 10,536,257
-hiEE - Equity securities - - - - - - 1A17583 1417583
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 332,607 263,600 429,943 195,191 638,180 25424 - 1,884,945
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts
-RPER - Advances to customers 31,740,660 12,379,379 17740827 55165100 116,486,772 54,202,281 1985276 289,700,295
-B5%E - Trade bills 6 172,766 266,403 171,185 - - - 610,360
~FOREMEBIEER - Advances to banks and other
financial institutions - - 611 - 155,923 - - 156,534
SRRE Financia investments
~DAREEGALS - Atfairvalue through other
Elien comprehensive income - 2,362,709 13716989 27,857,038 92,510,645 1,496,446 - 137943827
~IEBUAIE - At amortised cost - 2340580 5530 9440541 1439038 - - 13229689
-khEE - Equity securities - - - - - = 21,844 21,844
RENE Investment properties - - - - - = 559,140 559,140
HESEDNE Properties, plant and equipment = = = = = - 9089246 9,089,246
BYAE Intangible assets - - - - - = 619,709 619,709
EfEE(DEEUHER  Other asets (induding current and
Eitrage) deferred tax assets) 906,341 813910 21,556 76,348 356,768 - 5300 223074
BELE Total assets 56242933 57790883 40399011 106107374 211634068 55724151 13778618 541,677,038
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4., THEARERE®
43 FHREBELEK(H)
(A)  FHASHE)

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(A)  Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

2022
AR -Z=f@A ZZT=fA i3 RENE TEE
L] Upto 1103 31012 1105 Over A& szt
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
EeEfr AT BBTn EETr B¥Trn EBBTn EETr BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
FARAMEREEL Deposits and balances from
FkEs banks and other financia
institutions 2,975,847 17,551,054 8768240 1562799 - - - 44923135
ARERGARSZ Financial liabilites at air value
SHARE through profit or loss - 5,065,482 656,066 1,397,810 - - - 7,119,358
fIE2MIA Derivative financial instruments 137,926 176,973 274,130 220,605 303,147 - - 1,112,781
BPER Deposits from customers 124783153 50,119,339 100,958,091 83,038,261 6,563,620 - - 365462464
BREMEBESRENE  Debt securities and certficates of
deposit in issue 11,469 368,775 6,702,697 15588895 12,750,576 - - 342410
HEMEERER(BEEN  Other accounts and provisions
HERERERBAR) (including current and deferred
tax liabilites) 5,799,615 1,098,087 2,342,551 8,283,155 1,744,503 131,812 610311 20,010,034
#ERR Subordinated liables - - - - - 545515 - 545515
BEAE Total liabilities 133708010 74379710 119,701,775 124,156,720 21,361,846 5,587,027 610311 479,505,399
TBEEHA Net liquidity gap (77.465,077)  (16,588827)  (79302,764) ~ (18,049,346) 190272222 50,137,124 13168307 62,171,639

REBKAHTEBIEARAZEE  JIWERKE
BESI AR EE - HNMETRZRES D HE
BEBEE RAZBETEREBMZ B BEFR
Ho Ry RENMz Ao MESRBERAHRRSE
BREHZEECEEFARE  BZEFHAET
AITHEERS] - Lat5)/R 2 & EC R EM1ERE
£ (mE) -

FERBE TR R EESFHFEEENHAE -

The Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities
which have been overdue for not more than one month as “On
demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually
overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is
reported according to the residual maturity unless the repayment of the
asset is in doubt in which case the amount is reported as “Indefinite”.

The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if any.

The disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.
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4., THEARERE®
43 FHREBELEK(H)

(B) RBEXHHARHZATREER

@  FTETLTAZHEm

TREMTAREERI12ANBZETESREE

ARERE DR ASIRZRER

4.
4.3

(B)

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities

Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31

December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual

maturity.
2023
=2
-@AR —-Z=f@R +=f@R -Z0f RENE
Up to 1t03 3t0 12 1t05 Over FHRERS @t
1 month months months years Syears  Indefinite Total
BETT BETT  BETT  B%Tx BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial liabilities
ROREMSREREZ  Deposits and balances from banks
FRRES and other financial institutions 21,159,623 6,052,068 8,824,753 - - - 36,036,444
AREE( AR Financial liabilities at fair value
tRAR through profit or loss 3,586,500 680,000 1,568,000 - - - 5,834,500
XERER Deposits from customers 171,832,463 117,087,688 99,854,676 9,348,575 - - 398,123,402
BETESEARGESE  Debtsecurities and certificates of
deposit in issue 945878 3,679,889 10,722,886 14,623,374 - - 29,972,027
kEERE Subordinated liabilities - - 207,775 831,101 5,652,140 - 6,691,016
Ehdma Other financial liabilities 7,283,637 1995090 3,183,358 901,269 16,373 611,288 13,991,015
tRAELAE Total financial liabilities 204,808,101 129,494,735 124,361,448 25704319 5,668,513 611,288 490,648,404
2022
SE
—f@AR —E=fA +-f8A —ZRF RENE
Upto 1103 31012 1105 Over  FETAH it
1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BETr  BETr AT A%Tr BBt BETn A%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial liabilities
ROREMSREREZ  Deposits and balances from banks
FRRER and other financial institutions 20,659,028 8,842,065 16,061,093 = = - 45,562,186
AREE( GBS Financial liabilities at fair value
tREE through profit or loss 5,068,000 659,500 1,420,000 = = - 7,047,500
RERER Deposits from customers 175,022,886 101,702,064 84943933 7,215,625 = - 368,884,508
BETESEARGESE  Debtsecurities and certificates of
deposit in issue 395252 6,741,175 16,169,574 13,879,994 = - 37,185,995
kEEE Subordinated liabilities = = 207,420 829,681 5846432 - 6883533
Emdma Other financial liabilities 6,410,758 208569 8315708 977,725 131,812 601,412 18,523,111
tRAELE Total financial liabilities 207,555,924 120,030,500 127,117,728 22,903,025 5978244 601,412 484,186,833
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4., THEARERE®
43 FHREBELEK(H)
(B) HABWIHASNZATEEST (&)

b) TETAZEEW

TRERTARAEER12ANEBRFISRAHNTHAAR
JIRZBEER  BREBRFEELELEEZITESREA
B FAAREBEEFEZITEESRT A (TR
FHANBEERAR) -BMITETANRR
BRI TREBENEMSBEHRRAEHANS
FIR 2 °

AEERFREEGEZTESRT AT ZEER
iR INER S HIE (TRIR) - MIZBREERS
BHZNMEeRTATERREBENRERI=N -

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont’d)

(b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether
the contract is in an asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed
in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for
certain derivatives which are disclosed at fair value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net
basis mainly include interest rate swaps and foreign exchange options
(non-deliverable) whereas derivative financial instruments that will be
settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
swaps.
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4, ERERER® 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 REBESEK(H) 4.3  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(B) HBEHNIHALWZANBELTR (&) (B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont’d)
(b) PTETRZHE 7 (B) (b)  Derivative cash flows (Cont'd)
2023
=%
—BARK -Z=f8A +=f8A -Z1f RENE
Upto 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over @t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BETT BRI BRI BETT BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RFRREEE Y Derivative financial liabilities
TESBEaRE settled on a net basis (150,512) (2,476) (29,850) (197,895) (23,800) (404,533)
RIBBEREE Derivative financial instruments
fTESRIE settled on a gross basis
BRA Total inflow 64,131,730 20,833,288 6,462,970 - - 91,427,988
Eeyifin Total outflow (64,063,763) (21,108,139) (6,548,815) - - (91,720,717)
2022
=z
—fAR —Z={3A +=f&A —E8F AFNE
Upto 1103 31012 1105 Over @it
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BETT BT BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REREELEY Derivative financial liabilities
fEsBakE settled on a net basis (145,405) (15,601) (25,500) (154,965) (2,103) (343,574)
RERHELE Derivative financial instruments
fTESRMIA settled on a gross basis
FNTIN Total inflow 32,437,467 35,010,155 12,431,618 1,222,405 - 81,101,645
anh Total outflow (32,355,245) (34,840,363) (12,506,074) (1,222,405) - (80,924,087)
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4., THEARERE®
43 FHREBELEK(H)
(B) HAWIHASWZATEEST (&

() BEBEXIEL

B R
ARAEEN2023F 12831 BABPAHKLERE
ENEMBEsRIIERTE HANLBABE
150,323,594,000 7t (2022 4F : 5% 132,473,612,000
TT)  EEFURETR —FEREER -

MBREREA MY ERE

AREBEMR2023F12 A31 B 2 B G =R K& H b B 7%
R & 4 %8 A ¥ 54,145,285,000 7T (2022 4F : B
59,934,940,0007T) « HEHAH DR —4F -

44 EXER

AEEEAEENTIZAGRESAEERERR
AR E AT RKT - AR RRREREAD
H-BEABEERZEE TR AREENER
VTHEFERETHAEUNRSRR  EHREEARTR
T R AEF 1

AEBEKEYWHERF —EBRMERTEREM
P - WERNREEELIREBEROA
B MR ACEARRRNER - EEBBEERZ
BEeEEENEEMNELAT RN REBERSR
BARBTEBFASBELERNEATELARTE
ESIR NN

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont’d)

(c) Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
instruments as at 31 December 2023 that the Group commits to extend
credit to customers and other facilities totalled HK$150,323,594,000
(2022: HK$132,473,612,000). Those loan commitments can be drawn
within one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2023 totalled HK$54,145,285,000 (2022:
HK$59,934,940,000) are maturing no later than one year.

4.4 Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise
total shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position
in relation to the Group’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically
reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital mix where
appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and
capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework
of policies and controls on capital management to support the
development of the Group’s business and to meet the statutory capital
adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the
HKMA for the reported periods in respect of banking operation as
further elaborated below.
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4., THEARERE®
44 EXEE(E)

AEBFRBRE (FERARR) HEERFE (MR
) FEZED R ERERARRERNERRTSRR

AEERARECRHERBATEAREER
ERERARNIZIHFERABRRBRE (EBERIE
BB st EAR BB ERBREARENR - WRECRTT
%(?ﬁ)%ﬁHW%BWU EoERIERRAELRE
BESMNEROEENTSEREARER o

AEER2023FRAATLEATRFERFUANA
CEREERRTMEERERFIANER &

SERYE _XHEMIES  AMEATRAERESF
Exﬁﬁupﬂﬁﬁ% SEET*%’ HMEITE D R ER

ERRBAFNRIER  EIREAREREE
BRE—REARLLE - ﬁf& %&éﬁﬁth?—&aﬂﬁﬁ

BALLE - A AEBE AR E AN RRE
TEFRRE AXFHEBERFERREELNE
BEM - AEERA/ARBEARRFEREFE—E
FENBEAERBRE YEREQSNERERRMN
AMERERIIZEERHBEENER -

N AEBEEFHEFEEARS HEERE
ERZEGRAREEFTGHE -EARBEER
KRG BOREH - ARwL  ERFR BEEEX
ELREFEHEATRENTE - EMIBARIARRK
BABRRERNKR UREEERERFRINE
AERURERESHERE RAaEBRE RisAR -
El3REE AT RN HKEFE -

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

The Group adopts standardised (credit risk) (“STC") approach and
standardised (market risk) (“STM") approach to calculate the credit risk
capital charge and the market risk capital charge respectively.

The Group adopts the standardised credit valuation adjustment
("CVA") method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the
counterparty and the standardised (operational risk) (“STO") approach
to calculate the operational risk capital charge and, with the approval
from the HKMA, excluded its structural FX positions pursuant to section
317C of the Banking (Capital) Rules in the calculation of the market risk
capital charge.

The Group adopts an internal capital adequacy assessment process
("ICAAP"”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2023. Based on the
HKMA's guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the
extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured or not
adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum
Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for
the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which
enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital
utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for
capital management and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital
structure where appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then
submitted to the Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO.
The plan is built up by assessing the implications of various factors
upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return on equity,
risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence,
the future capital requirement is determined and capital sources are
identified also. The plan is to ensure the Group maintains adequate
capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its business
development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.
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4., THEARERE®
44 EXEE(E)
(A) EEHFSER

EERENRAERDRIEGRTER (BAX) KA H
RRFTREBLAOCERBEEZMBARMANK - £
FHERESE  ARREAMBREENGASMER
A ERBHRMEgE-RRITZMBAR] -

BREGHENGAHE MTEREEERER
AHEHEANNNMBARZFHFBNAT

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation

The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions
of the Bank and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes,
subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with HKFRSs and the list of
subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting
scope of consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of
consolidation are as follows:

2023 2022

BEEAE BEXRBE BEMEE BB

Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity

BT T BET T BT T ok e

=L Name HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R 2IRITIEEAMR  Nanyang Commercial Bank

A Trustee Limited 17,404 17,295 16,951 16,842
EFmEEEERR Kwong Li Nam Investment

NS Agency Limited 4,979 4,730 4,880 4,611
R 2RTT (R A)  Nanyang Commercial Bank

BRAT (Nominees) Limited 1,418 1,418 1,425 1,425
R E R NCB Wealth Management

BRAT Advisor Limited 389,277 328,994 107,822 93,962

SA LB B A FIME B EBHEAN [k — AT 2 W
BAA -

MR2023F12A31H YEETAHNBARRBIEE
EERTRAHE MIABEESEAGA®HE
(20224 : ) -

R2023F 12 A31H  METAKNBARRKRIE
FEETEANNEERTHRABEMERTRLEEE S
S5 (20224 « £E) o

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in
" Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of
consolidation as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both
the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of
consolidation where the methods of consolidation differ as at 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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4., THEARERE®
44 EXEE(E)

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(B) ZEXHLZE (B) Capital ratio

2023 2022
TRRE-REREE CET1 capital ratio 13.23% 12.67%
—RAE R & Tier 1 capital ratio 15.20% 14.04%
BB AR H Total capital ratio 18.56% 17.45%

AR EAEERLL R MR ENGEEERNERD

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of

T the above capital ratios is analysed as follows:
2023 2022
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
LB —REN  BE KRB CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
HERTHNAEREBRE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments
—WEERZR 3,144,517 3,144,517
REEF Retained earnings 49,895,388 47,250,590
EHWBEMNHE Disclosed reserves 7,197,109 6,600,849
BB HIRL 2 B A B AR CET1 capital before regulatory deductions
—RAEX 60,237,014 56,995,956
TR —MER BB CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
HEAE Valuation adjustments (288) (570)
ENBRIEERIIE B &/ Other intangible assets net of deferred tax liabilities
Hip & B (840,471) (589,377)
ENBRIEERIIE B &/ Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities
BTN A B (551,106) (358,280)
BATEERENEER Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk
RE®EAERE S on fair valued liabilities
FREHR)E 5 (913) (2,429)
Bt sy (B AR Cumulative fair value gains arising from
RERRE)ETEE the revaluation of land and buildings
EHMEEMNZRRE (own-use and investment properties)
RN EEER (6,720,136) (6,767,961)
—RIBITEBRREE RE Regulatory reserve for general banking risks (2,275,475) (2,116,502)
HEBRE-RERD Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
EEMRRE (10,388,389) (9,835,119)
TimRE—RER CET1 capital 49,848,625 47,160,837
BIN—RAEK Additional Tier 1 capital 7,422,026 5,077,856
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4., THEARERE®
44 EXEE(E)
(B) BEXHEE)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)
(B) Capital ratio (Cont'd)

2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
— B AR Tier 1 capital 57,270,651 52,238,693
ZHRER  ZBEREHS Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
BB ZMERZREINER Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any related share
RGO ®E premium 5,444,365 5,431,592
EERITAZRERNESE Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
WEEE R —RIRTER reserve for general banking risks eligible
ELE for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 4,201,957 4,206,158
EENR AT REXR Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 9,646,322 9,637,750
ZHRER  BEENR Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
E&ERFTAZRERE Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from
FE T REEY (B A the revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
REERSE)ETEE investment properties) eligible for inclusion
BRMEENREAF in Tier 2 capital
EEWNR 3,024,061 3,045,582
H R EANESNR 2R Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital 3,024,061 3,045,582
ZHRER Tier 2 capital 12,670,383 12,683,332
FE= N Total capital 69,941,034 64,922,025
fhEEREEALESFTIT The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
12023 F 72022 4
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
f s B & ARt = Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.5% 2.5%
YEREEE R X Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.58% 0.58%
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4, SEEAREE@®

44 EXEE(E)

(B) EEXHZEE)

BIRCRITE (BAR) A SIA#EEEEA ([CCB
HR]) - BRRBEEREITESERI - 22 E RN
BEEZ25% &K - ¥ EABEHEARN ([CCyBLL
R)RHERAEZEERRE  AUEEEEES
ERHEERRNIES - BERBEEARNTR
HEGERABRBRIMNEEE21.00% °

FREABENMAEMNAIRARITHEA

www.nch.comhk P [ESE# 55 | — &1 BIE -

CQ ®#‘EEE

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(B) Capital ratio (Cont'd)

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Capital Conservation
Buffer (“CCB") is designed to ensure banks build up capital outside
periods of stress of 2.5% of risk-weighted assets (“RWAs"). The
Countercyclical Capital Buffer (“CCyB") which is set on an individual
country basis and is built up during periods of excess credit growth to
protect against future losses. The currently applicable CCyB for Hong
Kong is 1.00% of RWAs.

The additional information of capital disclosures is available
under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at

www.nch.com.hk.

(C) Leverage ratio

2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—REXR Tier 1 capital 57,270,651 52,238,693
TEAS b R B B A Leverage ratio exposure 596,049,346 593,156,997
=R B Leverage ratio 9.61% 8.81%

FRBERLEFENHAERAIRARTEE

www.nch.com.hk P [EEE I FE | —FBE -

The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available
under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at
www.nch.com.hk.
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5. BEEMEEMNARE

FENRAEHEREYBRRAKRENEERA
B ORBFRBMBHREENFZ 13RI LEFEIN
EE NAABERBRRANDE -ZSENRI2RMA
ETEMERANERZAIBREREAE  WER
HEBANEAEEEAFECLREERRRRE

iE -

- FE—EBH - BREEXABEERMSTH
WE CREHR) W ERBE LM ES
BAOBRETHEELE BETHERAR N
TERNRESE -

- FE_ER  DERAERTARANXEE
FRAR (ANFHERAREFEAEAY
L) MR EENEENER LERBEXR
MO ZINRBHITERH - HAEERBHIE
BERERNEEES BRHERFRE-
R TEEEABRNTSERZET T AE
RAENESBRYE -

- FEZER  DERGAERTARANKEE
BRAR(ANFHEBANENEREAY
B)BTAHREBRE HERBRBEEANLH
BRAZORERE BHFIAREER -
R TEEEABRRNTSERERZETTEKR
HEHYE -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation
are determined with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities. This category includes listed
equity shares, debt instruments issued by certain governments,
certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious
metals.

- Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities,
discounted bills and certificates of deposit with quote from
pricing services vendors. It also includes precious metals and
properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable
market inputs.

- Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable. This category includes equity investment,
debt instruments and forfeiting with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant
adjustments made to observable market inputs.
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5. EENEGHNARE®

URNEEEERANUBERRNEERBE K
SEeRE-—MBERERMNEERENTHED
BERHERBAAEBFERERFEZREER
RAE) UREALHERLEERHELER -

51 LHUAAREFENERIA

AEEEY TRENAAEEARIEHRE AR
EHERBLRAAENIEFENETHNZE - &5
FIBENEBERYUREINRES 2HELERRERR
AREHE - EMEEEsEFeEREBRnE
B2 -EXHEEFELRAETEEER -

—RME EMIANE-—TARTEER - FE
S REERNE 13| AFFE M EGRMFRRIRT
AAERAEBREAR - REAATHNEREER
ERAFENFRAEARLENTEER - AEE
MEEFABRNE-TARER ST AMNGTE
Ef—%%-

BEZERATSEIRER  AEEBRB— L
ERMSER RHB 2 ABRBESRITANR
SfE -

HRAREMBAENSRIE  HEERMEAN
TR2YEREFER X EX BRREE
B NE XZUFEENEREM TBRA
AT SBERERNZE -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls
framework to ensure that fair values are either determined or validated
by control units independent of the front offices. Control units
have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value
measurements. Specific controls include verification of observable
pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are reported to the
Management.

Generally, the unit of account for a financial instrument is the individual
instrument. HKFRS 13 permits a portfolio exception, through an
accounting policy election, to measure the fair value of a portfolio of
financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of the net open risk
position when certain criteria are met. The Group applies valuation
adjustments at an individual instrument level, consistent with that unit
of account.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to
determine the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain
the open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial
instruments held by the Group include bond prices, interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty
credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and obtainable
from open market.
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5. EENEGHNARE®

51 LUAAREBEFENESHSIAEE)
FAUETATERIAARENGHETENT

BBETA - Fi& HEL

HETEANAAREARSMH R HEKINEBILIG
ERBHEEARKAOTESRESERHRRS AR
BOMMRE - WRREREEE— BN AR R
RIREIM - A— R RER TS EARE LIRS T A
FBEEEREZMBAERE —RUAARRAEEMKR
MEBEE  FEFLEREMRETKRENBIRE
BUSHEMS LA BRAHA BRI TAHEN
MIZHIEEE

T A

BN SGHITET RS LY BIEINE - FIRK i mAY
RH CIEHRARESN - TTETRASGHAMEREE
FRBRIRIR € RA R ST EEA S EERINERE -
FrERM2E8 AR ERA T BRMBGEHE - A&
RO BIENE  EX FRESKKEE - T
BRMN280EE Xm0 AR REREE TR
FIERGRERNHERER B —EERENITET
BEEH DAEBREL ROEZREAER -

AEEHGIZZNTETAEHTEEHEIE
MEBHERE - HEDOHIRBRETHEREREREL

BIEBERE-XBHF  UARRESMO - EL
S i i B] 56 B o

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt instruments, certificates of deposit and forfeiting

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted
market prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service
vendors or using discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash
flow model is a valuation technique that measures present value using
estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then
discounts these flows using a discount margin that reflects the credit
spreads required by the market for instruments with similar risk or
a discount rate which is referred to the transaction interest rate of
instruments with similar risk as at the end of the month and inter-bank
bid rate as the final discount rate. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts
on foreign exchange, interest rate or commodity. The fair values of
these contracts are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The inputs can
be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include
interest rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and volatilities.
Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for less
commonly traded option products which are embedded in structured
deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values are
determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA") and debit valuation adjustments
("DVA") are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments
reflect market factors movement, expectations of counterparty
creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread respectively. They
are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery
rates.
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5. EENME&ENAAE® 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
51 LUAAREBEFENESHSIAEE) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
(A) AREHER (A) Fair value hierarchy
2023
F—BR FBH B=EBH st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BET T BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SRMEE Financial assets
AAERE AERE Financial assets at fair value through
T EE E (K15 20) profit or loss (Note 20)
—-RH5M% — Trading
— BB 5 RIFRE — Debt securities and certificates of
deposit - 7,404,536 - 7,404,536
—RH AR EEZ — Mandatorily measured at fair value
AR ERHMH through profit or loss, non trading
— BB E S — Debt securities - 222,440 27,789 250,229
—H At - Others - 680,312 6,127,135 6,807,447
— B EH — Equity securities 57,635 - 1,318,263 1,375,898
PTESBMI A (HiE21) Derivative financial instruments (Note 21) 364,332 674,712 - 1,039,044
A AARBER T AEAM Financial investments at fair value
ZHBEHSFIEE through other comprehensive income
(MF3E23) (Note 23)
— (B EF RIFHE — Debt securities and certificates of
deposit 5,761,761 161,102,292 - 166,864,053
— &t EH — Equity securities - - 25,606 25,606
sHRmERS Financial liabilities
NAERCETABZEZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
S EE (FisE28) profit or loss (Note 28)
- 5% — Trading - 5,784,773 - 5,784,773
PTESBIT A (HEE21) Derivative financial instruments (Note 21) 152,775 1,196,986 - 1,349,761
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5. BEENEEBEMNARE®m 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
51 UAAREFFENERIA(E) 5.1  Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

(A) KR EHERE)

(A)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

2022
E—ER BEER BZER KBET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT T BEET T PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRMEE Financial assets
NAERE AERE Financial assets at fair value through
S EE E (K15 20) profit or loss (Note 20)
—-RF5M% — Trading
— BB HF RIFRE — Debt securities and certificates of
deposit - 6,620,912 - 6,620,912
—RH AR EEZ — Mandatorily measured at fair value
AT ERHMH through profit or loss, non trading
—BBES — Debt securities - 10,681 28,519 39,200
—H — Others - 1,014,254 9,522,003 10,536,257
—RAEFH — Equity securities 71,686 - 1,345,897 1,417,583
PTESBI A (HiE21) Derivative financial instruments (Note 21) 336,416 1,548,529 - 1,884,945
AR BER T AEAM Financial investments at fair value
ZHBEHEHEE through other comprehensive income
(Pt 3% 23) (Note 23)
— (B EF RIFHE — Debt securities and certificates of
deposit - 137,943,827 - 137,943,827
—RHEFH — Equity securities = = 21,844 21,844
EAY-N Financial liabilities
NAERIEFABZEZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
S EE (FisE28) profit or loss (Note 28)
- 5% - Trading - 7,119,358 - 7,119,358
PTEEB T A (KisE21) Derivative financial instruments (Note 21) 137,959 974,822 = 1,112,781

AEBZeRMEERABRTFRYLEE—EBAK
FEHR 2 ERER (2022F : £) o

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and
level 2 for the Group during the year (2022: Nil).



ot 5 R 2R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. BEENEENAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
51 UAREBEFENESEIAE) 5.1  Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
(B) E=ZFEHRKWEEZE (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items
2023
SRMEE
Financial assets
A BT A
Hib 2wk
HERmIRE
BEMNAAE Financial
B ABER investments
Mandatorily measured at at fair value
fair value through profit or loss through other
EXHMH comprehensive
Non trading income
BEES B 15 7% 3% B 15 7% 3%
Debt Hit Equity Equity
securities Others securities securities
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2023F1A1H At 1 January 2023 28,519 9,522,003 1,345,897 21,844
Wz Gains
— R — Income statement
—FER G EE — Net trading loss (606) (216,788) (27,634) -
—HM AR AER LA ~ Net (loss)/gain on other financial
BrnZemIA instruments at fair value through
F (B18), s profit or loss (124) 395,360 - -
—Hth2E = — Other comprehensive income
—NAREFARMBER ~ Change in fair value of financial
WanmemEEL assets at fair value through other
NAEEL comprehensive income - - - 3,762
2E Additions - 151,420,348 - -
RE - BE&ESA Disposals, redemptions and maturity - (154,993,788) - -
7202312 H31H At 31 December 2023 27,789 6,127,135 1,318,263 25,606
A2023F 12 A31B3FEH  Total unrealised loss for the period included in
SREENPNTAWZER  income statement for financial assets held
MAERBRER as at 31 December 2023 (124) (5.717) - -
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5. BEENEENAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
51 UAREBEFENESEIAE) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
(B) FE=FEHRKWEEEE %) (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)
2022
Financial assets
AR A EEA
H fth 2 ez
HERRE
BHIEUARE Financial
it AR investments
Mandatorily measured at at fair value
fair value through profit or loss through other
FR 5 comprehensive
Non trading income
BEEES & & % B DS
Debt Hith Equity Equity
securities Others securities securities
BB BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022 29,574 16,688,611 1,470,961 49,933
Wz Gains
— =R — Income statement
—FER G EE — Net trading loss (960) (1,758,172) (125,064) =
—HM AR AER LT A ~ Net (loss)/gain on other financial
BnZemIA instruments at fair value through
% (B518),/ s profit or loss (95) 574,003 = =
—Hth2E= — Other comprehensive income
—NAREFARMEE ~ Change in fair value of financial
WanmemEEL assets at fair value through other
RABEZE comprehensive income = = = (28,089)
2E Additions - 125,341,884 = =
BRE - D KE Disposals, redemptions and maturity - (131,324,323) = =
120224612 A318 At 31 December 2022 28519 952,003 1,345,897 21,844
A2022% 12 A31B3FEM  Total unrealised loss for the period included in
SREENPNTAWZER  income statement for financial assets held
HAEREBIRAHE as at 31 December 2022 (95) (13,480) - =
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5. EENEGHNARE®

51 LUAAREBEFENESHSIAEE)
(B) HE=FEBRWEHZE &)

M2023F12 A31H NM2022F12A318 o A
FIEANEBMTEETZAURAAEE (LT ABR
ZeREERIEETRRE -

HRFLERDEEMIARAREZ L ABRME
AREFAEMEAREZEHEE  FEERR
ZEFRAE  HARENFENRRATHMHE
EEEARENTABRESH R AKEKEL
TRTAENEF=-EBR -AKECEILABAI
ZHIRFEEEESE RS T ANMA -

FELTMRENAREDSERAREBN LT AR Z
FHWE BMNEE  HELFAETHLENR
A RIRHBEEFEETE AEEREMHRNE
AABEFETRANEATATHERL280T ¢

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, financial instruments
categorised as level 3 are mainly comprised of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and unlisted equity shares.

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as fair value through
profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive income, the
Group obtains valuation quotations from counterparties which may be
based on unobservable inputs with significant impact on the valuation.
Therefore, these instruments have been classified by the Group as level
3. The Group has established internal control procedures to control the
Group's exposure to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted equity shares are determined with reference
to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate
comparables are not available. The significant unobservable inputs
applied in the fair values measurement of the Group’s unlisted equity
shares are as follows:

TUBRSHEE
DAEHNEER

Relationship of

fHES % BEATABESH #E  unobservable inputs
Valuation method Significant unobservable inputs Range to fair value
MG BA B/ BFIEE 6.8-13.0 TWERBIEHAS AAEES

Market comparison approach Price/earning ratios

mE/TREFEER

Price/Book ratios

LEEE/THENE
X 5 A A
EV/EBITDA

e Eh 14 Bl oK
Liquidity discount

TR FE A iE A
Recent transaction approach N/A

(2022: 3.4-16.4)  The higher the price/earning ratios,

the higher the fair value.

mE/FEFERS  AnE~RS
The higher the Price/Book ratios,
the higher the fair value.

1.5-4.1
(2022: 1.5-4.4)

1 EEBE /TS E R A0 H
aE, ANnERS

The higher the EV/EBITDA ratios,
the higher the fair value.

2.8-54
(2022: 5.0-7.8)

REMAKAE - ARERE
The higher the liquidity discount,
the lower the fair value.

30.0%
(2022: 30.0%)

TER  TBEA
N/A  N/A
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5. EENEBGHNARE®

51 LUAAREBEFENESHSIAEE)
(B) HE=FEBRWEHZE (&)

AREHEBAFBAZAILLRMEBFEE  mE/
R FEGHLERMOEEE HEE REHE
FEFEERBER SEEARGERTENERXR
NAIBEmR 28I, 54 5% (2022412 318 ¢
5% ) + Bl ZS 5 B H fib 2 UK 25 A0 s A1) 3k B 18 A5 18
hn,/ 7 #1,280,000 7T (20224F 12 318 /8
#51,092,000) 178 ¥ 65,913,000 7T (2022 F 12 A 31
H :67,295,0007T) ° I LMRERMDOAAEE
RAYZR—ENITABER2H8ZER AN E
R B e &R AR 2 8E £ i B Mk T F 2 B4k -

52 FUAAREFENSEMIA
ARERAE-RBERHRBBETSENE TR
BT AZENRFME - U T2 ERBRREZER
BREARFAEEERTEZARE -

FHTHRIRITREMEHBEBZHBRES

=

AP zeREERABRNEERE —FRIH -
HEREERQLERE

EFEM
RER 2 BPEFREFHME - RHHEX
B HEEREEHEARERE -

il

p=[13

UBGHA BRI ERS TR

IABEBRRCRER EMERB TR 2 AR EETF B
SANARAAEENES TARB 25 AER -

EFEH

RO 2 EPEFREREERER—FRIE - Bk
E{EHR A ERE -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios, price/
booking ratios and EV/EBITDA of appropriate comparables. Had the
significant unobservable inputs applied on the valuation techniques
increased/decreased by 5% (31 December 2022: 5%), the Group’s
other comprehensive income and profit or loss would have increased/
decreased by HK$1,280,000 (31 December 2022: HK$1,092,000) and
HK$65,913,000 (31 December 2022: HK$67,295,000) respectively.
When the fair value of the unlisted shares are affected by more
than one unobservable input, the aforesaid impact reflects the most
favourable or the most unfavourable change from varying inputs
individually.

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and information about various financial
instruments. The following methods and assumptions have been used
to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument as far as
practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions
and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one
year from the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates
fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms,
bear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value
approximates fair value.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The fair value of debt instruments at amortisation cost is determined by
using the same approach as those debt instruments measured at fair
value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year
from the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair
value.
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5. BEENEENAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

52 FUAAREFENESEMIAE 5.2  Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

ERITEBESRFHE Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

WETAZAAEETEMTSAANARAREE The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same

HES LA REFERBHA 2 HERR - approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit

measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

ZEEE Subordinated liabilities
WETEZ A AABETHEAMESIANAREFZ The fair value of the instrument is determined by using the same
MER TERTFRERA A ERR - approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit

measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

RUAEEREEEAABERENSRIAN  TX The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the
BIEUAARBTENERTEZRMEMASLE- financial instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above

with their carrying values being approximation of fair values.

2023 2022
IREE ARE BREE NAE
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
BET T BET T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SMEE Financial assets
LABEBRPK R EET 28 Debt instruments
BT A at amortised cost 7,297,141 7,275,390 13,229,689 13,151,875
SHEes Financial liabilities
BEITEMRESFRFHE  Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 28,719,835 28,831,345 35,422,412 35,534,343
‘RIEAE Subordinated liabilities 5,468,028 5,365,073 5455215 5,157,981
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5. BEENEEBEMNARE®m 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

52 FLUAREFENERIAE(E) 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

TRITERBEEARENERTAZAREER

instruments with fair values disclosed.

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial

2023
E-EB& E_ER F=ZEBH #et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
LABE SRR R1EET 2 1Y Debt instruments at amortised cost
EBIA 25,215 7,250,175 - 7,275,390
EA Y- Financial liabilities
BEITERE S KT HE  Debt securities and certificates of deposit
in issue - 28,831,345 - 28,831,345
‘BEAE Subordinated liabilities - 5,365,073 - 5,365,073
2022
F—ER BB BFZEBH HeET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT T BT T BT T PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRMEE Financial assets
LABE RPN RIEET 2 /Y Debt instruments at amortised cost
BEEIA 10,280,213 2,871,662 - 13,151,875
k=R Financial liabilities
BEITEBESFKTFHE  Debt securities and certificates of deposit
in issue — 35,534,343 - 35,534,343
BESE Subordinated liabilities - 5,157,981 - 5,157,981
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EMEENAAE®

(9,
)ﬂ]]\)i

53 LUAAREFENFSEMIA

AEEBE— LA ERMSOE BT IS REREE I
TR ITENARE-

AEBZMERDRBREVERFE - MAREH
ZREMERFECETEMR - MEBRBILSFA
ERRYDRGEITERARETT  HERARTE
HAEMBEEREXEBREXERERZAR
WHEGEVEMGELERER LR - 2R E
REBEFRRFRETH AEEEEESRAE
R (b E7%  MERREHESR - [EDE
RERREHRE -

(@) FE_ERAAEGTERAGETZRFZE

BOBRE_BRZVENRIAE  HEZEALR
MEZAMEEKRRZE (THLEER) X2 EMHH
ERENMMER (BMABXRER) - BE ALY E R
AEMEZENZREHEE FE - BERBERR
RYEBRIAEYTEREATE -

AEBZMEAMRERBRAM 2 T EHT - KR
REBRIERNMETS - THLEMEZHERE -
MEHEE RENMEE—RGAIEILETS EHER
FEERERRBE -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active
market to determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group's properties can be divided into investment properties and
premises. All of the Group’s investment properties and premises were
revalued. The valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their
staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being
valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors
on the valuation methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each interim and annual reporting
date. There has been no change in valuation methods during the year.

) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using
either the market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties or the income capitalisation approach
by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate
adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable
properties and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered
as insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group's properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the
PRC where the property markets are considered active and transparent.
Sales price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties
are generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.
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REYEREE (&)
(i)  BEHE=BRALEENEH

BOBREZBRNAEENEZ ARBEHRAT
BHEERBABRE  BREASEMERERNT
s 2 AR ERERETE

UTREARBFERHROIBRE=ZBRZIAE
BEMEMRANGEETERBEATITBRERE

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Investment properties and premises (Cont’d)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is
determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific
to the features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable
properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the
fair value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3
are as follows:

TR B EREERE
N RENBEF
BERATAHEEZR Relationship of
RER % Significant In#EFIg unobservable inputs
Valuation method unobservable inputs  Weighted average to fair value
H A5 TISLLEASIMAER MEBEEATLEMERE 2.7% (2022: 5.1%) FEMS  RABEBIE-
Other properties = MEEZE The higher the discount,
Market comparison Discount on features of the lower the fair value.

approach or income
capitalisation approach

MERE AL BMEEME E2HBEHNSEEA L
BEMEETRARRLNEZR - fINKRE 2T 5 E
BB -EEME BR RN BE HEE M
REMEE °

the property compared
to comparable
properties

Discount on features of a property is determined after taken into
account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout, with
reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.
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5. EENEGHNARE®

53 MAREFENFERMIAE

BELH

ETBZANERREBRTSEREXEE THEN

MIHMERERE -

(A) [AEHER

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

(Cont'd)

Precious metals

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining

quoted market prices in active market or market quote with certain

adjustments.

(A)  Fair value hierarchy

2023
E—ER EFZER EFZEB#& et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BET T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEMEE Non-financial assets
wEME (M3E24) Investment properties (Note 24) - 12,600 395,000 407,600
M - BV REE Properties, plant and equipment
(B3 25) (Note 25)
—FE — Premises - 3,431,406 4,427,661 7,859,067
Hi&E (Mix27) Other assets (Note 27)
B2 — Precious metals 105,937 178,329 - 284,266
2022
FER FEER E-ER K5t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEMEE Non-financial assets
wEME (KiE24) Investment properties (Note 24) = 13,400 545,740 559,140
M SRR Properties, plant and equipment
(Mi5E25) (Note 25)
—FE — Premises - 1,270,902 6,631,015 7,901,917
H B E (FFsE27) Other assets (Note 27)
—EcE — Precious metals 106,835 201,222 - 308,057

AEBEZHERMEERNFNREE BRRE_E
2 EMER (20224 : &) -

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2
for the Group during the year (2022: Nil).
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5. BEENEENAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
53 LAABEHEWESEIA %) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)
(B) ZE=ERWEEEZE (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items
2023
FEMEE
Non-financial assets
Y - B¢
ST
Properties,
plant and
REYHE equipment
Investment BEE
properties Premises
BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R2023F1A1H At 1 January 2023 545,740 6,631,015
e Gains
— R — Income statement
—REMENAREARY — Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment
FEE properties (8,240) -
—EMFEEZFEE — Net loss from revaluation of premises - (1,846)
—Hf2mElas — Other comprehensive income
—-EEEMH — Revaluation of premises - 36,508
®E Additions - 21,309
e Depreciation - (144,511)
=Rk Reclassification (142,500) 142,500
i Transfer out - (2,242,027)
MEHZR Exchange difference - (15,287)
M2023%412A31H At 31 December 2023 395,000 4,427,661
M2023F 12 A31BHAR Total unrealised loss for the year included in
L REENFANTAMEER  income statement for non-financial assets held as at
BAREREERE 31 December 2023
—REMERNABERAEZ — Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment
FEE properties (8,240) -
—EHEEZFEER — Net loss from revaluation of premises - (1,846)
(8,240) (1,846)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. BEEMEEMNAR

B (&)

53 LUAAESENFSEMIAE)

B) FE=FRKEEEE (&)

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

(Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)

2022
FemEE
Non-financial assets
L/ EN YT
L]
Properties,
plant and
REME equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
BT T PEHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022 314,210 6,893,850
e Gains
— R — Income statement
—REMEAAERHELZ — Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment
FEE properties (6,920) =
—EHEEZFEIE — Net loss from revaluation of premises = (2,989)
—HEf2mElas — Other comprehensive income
—FEEM — Revaluation of premises = (157,996)
®E Additions - 66,126
& Disposals = (16,835)
e Depreciation = (146,960)
EgSibaN ] Reclassification 238,450 (238,450)
A Transfer in = 305,900
E N ZE% Exchange difference = (71,631)
M2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 545,740 6,631,015
M2022F 12 A31BHAR Total unrealised loss for the year included in
L REENFANTAMEER  income statement for non-financial assets held as at
MWABEREEER 31 December 2022
—REMELNABERAEZ — Net loss from fair value adjustments on investment
FEE properties (6,920) =
—ERREEZFER — Net loss from revaluation of premises = (2,989)
(6,920) (2,989)
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ENMEENAAE®

it

N
S

e S =)

o

5.3

B) ZFE=FRHEEEE (&)

BARBHE =ERNYMETEZERGEENEN
HEALBRYERENE E2RE /8 RFAL
RELFSIE - HE E2RE /T E) HEURN K
BEVEEIARR AR EETEE =R -
HREFREIATENR 2 AILBENEL & &
HE - REEDERTEBRYEELRE L2 EE
() EHEESFAME(  EMHABRENTS
RAEETZABRCERENRER 2 - 55
ERBAREHE=ER -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in
the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and
comparable properties during the year. Premium/(discount) on features
is determined with reference to differences in features between the
subject properties and the comparable properties recently transacted
in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent market
transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on
features applied between the subject and comparable properties would
change from year to year accordingly. As a result, the significance of
adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and lead to
the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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6. FMEWA

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2023 2022
BT T TS T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F 2 WA Interest income
EHREEXREMEE#ES  Due from banks and other financial institutions
I 1,251,764 950,168
BEEEX Advances to customers 14,885,886 10,304,447
ERRE Financial investments 5,567,584 3,249,311
HAth Others 60,102 27,207
21,765,336 14,531,133
FE X% H Interest expense
B % R H A% s 77 N Due to banks and other financial institutions
FRIA (1,913,365) (965,889)
XEER Deposits from customers (10,289,498) (4,725,928)
BRITEBRFEFRFRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue (1,081,827) (1,158,247)
®BEARE Subordinated liabilities (211,735) (211,639)
HEARE Lease liabilities (29,691) (28,125)
Hth Others (237,693) (269,281)
(13,763,809) (7,359,109)
EF B A Net interest income 8,001,527 7,172,024

NERBRIEUANAARERZFABRSZEREER
ERBEMELONSBARF S -

profit or loss respectively.

All the above interest income and interest expense are for financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through
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7. FHREBEEBERASKWA 7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2023 2022
BET T TS T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REERFESWA Fee and commission income
BREe Loan commissions 419,668 490,171
R Insurance 364,931 170,202
EEEe Bills commissions 206,094 228,995
BHEL Securities brokerage 149,265 184,986
HEDH Funds distribution 90,727 86,180
AR Payment services 44,686 45,734
RERE Safe deposit box 40,444 40,316
ERREY Credit card business 3,667 2,995
BEEREEE R Trust and custody services 172 1,069
BEEEK Currency exchange 837 419
Hpth Others 112,745 128,516
1,433,236 1,379,583
B ERMAEX N Fee and commission expense
BHEL Securities brokerage (21,256) (27,915)
ERR#ER Credit card business (2,693) (1,419)
BERARTS Payment services (20) (39)
Hth Others (55,665) (49,889)
(79,634) (79,262)
FREBRASKA Net fee and commission income 1,353,602 1,300,321
BEdRE Of which arise from
—JEURAEZE LT AER — financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
ZEBMEESCRBE through profit or loss
—BREEBERASKA — Fee and commission income 613,728 702,246
—-BREERAEEIWN — Fee and commission expense (7,792) (8,056)
605,936 694,190
—EREREMEES — trust and other fiduciary activities
— R B XA WA — Fee and commission income 13,903 15,010
—BREERAEEI D — Fee and commission expense (1,317) (1,289)
12,586 13,721
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8. FEXFHW= 8. NET TRADING GAIN
2023 2022
BT T PR T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Flss (BB)RE Net gain/(loss) from
—HNERZ 5 RINER FE — foreign exchange and foreign exchange products 84,369 268,012
—FERTERASLBEETH — interest rate instruments and items under
IEH fair value hedge 333,495 10,740
—RHITA — equity instruments 14 =
— & — commodities 18,375 (8,613)
436,253 270,139
9. HtteMEEZFWz: 9. NET GAIN ON OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2023 2022
BET T PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RARBEE L AEMEE Net gain on financial investments measured at fair value
WS RIgE 2 F s through other comprehensive income 326,527 259,527
HAh Others (1,667) 1,227
324,860 260,754
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10. HM&EWA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2023 2022
BT T PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BHEIREREBA Dividend income from investment in securities

—JELEMEHREE — Unlisted investments 1,467 1,705
wEMFEZHSBEA Gross rental income from investment properties 6,446 8,942
B BERREME TN Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (1,290) (918)
Hfth Others 9,894 29,376
16,517 39,105

[(EEKREME TR BEFAREHAKEDE Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is
ZEEEEST HAEK642,0007T (20224 : B HK$642,000 (2022: HK$329,000) of direct operating expenses related

329,0007T) ° to investment properties that were not let during the year.
1. BEEEFRE 11. NET CHARGE OF IMPAIRMENT
ALLOWANCES
2023 2022
BT T BRI
HK$’'000 HK$'000
GFRIRTT Rt R E R Balances with banks and other financial institutions
P 114 (174)
BR M EAIRTE Advances and other accounts (3,240,516) (1,535,028)
SRIEE Financial investments 22,579 (225,720)
Hm&EE Other assets (4,897) (1,937)
BT E R Financial guarantees 65,608 89,392
B AE Loan commitments 15,161 (11,090)
BEERFRE Net charge of impairment allowances (3,141,951) (1,684,557)
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12. RKR&EXH 12. OPERATING EXPENSES
2023 2022
BT T PR T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
AZER(BEESHE) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
—HREMER — Salaries and other costs 1,477,119 1,607,709
—RPR AR AN — Pension cost 268,881 236,861
— R RIKEF — Supplementary retirement benefits 5,600 7,080
1,751,600 1,851,650
BENEZESH CREHEITE)  Premises and equipment expenses (excluding depreciation)
—EHNREEEENRE — leases of short-term or low-value assets 11,046 15,929
— BRI — Information technology 90,412 75,323
—HAth - Others 74,274 71,233
175,732 162,485
T Ry Depreciation and amortisation 593,947 568,713
Z B RN B & Auditor’s remuneration
— B R — Audit services 8,217 10,319
—IEFE RS — Non-audit services 1,969 3,320
H e Other operating expenses
— XK E — Outsourcing activities fee 438,640 378,742
—Hfb — Others 690,586 514,388
3,660,691 3,489,617
13. REVEQIAERAEZFEER 13. NET LOSS FROM FAIR VALUE
ADJUSTMENTS ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
2023 2022
BT T PE T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WEWMENRERAEZFEE  Netloss from fair value adjustments on investment
properties (9,040) (6,920)
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14. HE EMGWHE-

BEMRREZ 14. NET LOSS FROM DISPOSAL/REVALUATION

FER OF PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
LEREZFER Net loss from disposal of premises - (12,914)
HERE  BEERENEEEZ  Netloss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and fittings
FEE (6,881) (8,508)
BEHEEZFER Net loss from revaluation of premises (1,846) (2,989)
(8,727) (24,411)
15. ®HIE 15. TAXATION
WakNZ BIBAKINT Taxation in the income statement represents:
2023 2022
BT T ST T
HK$'000 HK$'000
NEARR IR Current tax
BEBMEH Hong Kong profits tax
—FANFFARIE — Current year taxation 334,476 503,404
— T FBEEE — Over-provision in prior years (10,204) (12,591)
324,272 490,813
N IR Overseas taxation
—F AR AR — Current year taxation 143,904 57,524
— A F R — Over-provision in prior years (11,233) (461)
456,943 547,876
EERIE Deferred tax
R EE s EERERE K Origination and reversal of temporary differences and
RMEATIAE R unused tax credits (206,199) (11,707)
250,744 536,169
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15. BE @

15. TAXATION (Cont'd)

BB TR B AF E (5 R B s AR R Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022:
16.5% (2022 F : 16.5%) R 5 < )G sNgm F) 2 B 5 4% 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
BARFEEERN G RAEEELEERTER during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on

RZBITHEH -

the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

AEERBANEMNEENERRIE - BREFER The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the

BREFENHRBEZZENT :

theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong is as follows:

2023 2022

BT T BRI

HK$’'000 HK$'000

B A5t A A 1 Profit before taxation 3,693,193 4,444,483
L% 16.5% (2022 4F : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%)

STEEHIE 609,377 733,340
HBRRMEEZENTE Effect of different taxation rates in other countries (32,158) 28,614
|EFRH 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (294,978) (224,444)
TR E R0 2 B2 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 61,034 86,585
RIERH TS EE Tax losses not recognised 2 1
AT FAREROTIEERE Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (8) (3,161)
AFBEEE Over-provision in prior years (21,437) (13,052)
EINERR T Foreign withholding tax (420) (1,882)
BITRARTMEINEARTE  Adjustment in respect of cost and distribution payment for

EEAE additional equity instruments (70,668) (69,832)
T ARIE Taxation charge 250,744 536,169
ERMRE Effective tax rate 6.79% 12.06%
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16. RE 16. DIVIDENDS
2023 2022
s FEkE]
BRAEY BT T RS TSR IT
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$'000
iz & Dividends - - - -

2023 FWET KA B (2022 4F : &) -

17. EBRAKREBERI KA
() REMEKE

AEBHRTFTAEEEINATCEHITGTEETEAE
GBS GO % 2 BER KB KPR RRAE S
BB MEBEBRERKE  BEEAMBER
KetBlzBARRIBEERFT ©25%  MEEXZ
BARRABEEERNAFZS%EIS%TE (RT
BEZRBFEH) - BEHENEBIK - IRATRKRK
ERABRKRIEARBFERIOFRULEFERTI
B100% 2 B EMHK - RIEMIFEIFMETL
H At R A 1 42 1E B AR ER (R BR B SR B BR &)+ AT URER
30% £90% 2B E MK - EERBAEEMHNK - A
ZCRFIMEATESFTEMEGI AR -

BEECRIESIEN)R2000F 12 A1 BEH - A&E
M2EPRRBAE S RESTE - ZTBZFFTA
ARREREERBETERAR  REEEAAR
FPIRBIRRBIRKEEEERBR AT

HZE2023F12 A31 8 - £ N4 2,488,000 7T
(20224F : #1786 % 2,859,0007T) Z 8 U 3012 - B&
FIRIRET &) 2 R R A A7 50,921,000 7T (2022
F )75 % 41,497,0007T) - M AL B (A58 7 € 5
2 BB R4 BB 13,914,000 7T (2022 4 -
#4975 11,586,000 7T) °

No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil).

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO
schemes exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-
Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes,
employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes equal
to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly
contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic
salaries, depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to
receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement, early
retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of
service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive
the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon
termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are subject
to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1
December 2000, the Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy
Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee
and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group's total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year
ended 31 December 2023 amounting to approximately HK$50,921,000
(2022: approximately HK$41,497,000), after a deduction of forfeited
contributions of approximately HK$2,488,000 (2022: approximately
HK$2,859,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed
approximately HK$13,914,000 (2022: approximately HK$11,586,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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17. EBHKREBRIKAE @)
(b) REFZE

AEBERET —HEIFEESHNIEMNEE NS
THAECDRKET - EZTET  BETEBZRIK
BHNEEREZEBE FERMEEMERKEN -

A5 81T 85 R R R IRk B T2 FEH £ SRR
RS -

SR R R PR B R (2 B — B S (E 2023
412 A 31 BATESI DA B AR E E R o

EAREMRAEA 2 EIZRERRNOT

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)
(b) Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its retired
employees. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits which included fully redeemed medical care, housing allowance
and other retirement benefits.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the
life expectancy for pensioners.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out at 31 December 2023 by using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2023 2022
P38 R (%) Discount rate (%) 3.80 3.75
TEHIE BRI R E (%)  Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%) 6.0 6.0
TR AR RS B R T (%)  Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0
TEER KR40 2 M BT 3 K K (%) Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0
TEHTE £ 12 K K (%) Expected rate of rental increases (%) 3.0 3.0
TE HARBR B X (%) Expected rate of withdrawal (%) 3.0-18.0 3.0-18.0
TEEASL T & Expected death rate BEBADEGR BBALDEDE

Hong Kong Life Hong Kong Life
Tables 2022 Tables 2021
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17. RBRARBRIBAER () 17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)
(b) RERZFE(E) (b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)
EAREPRTFERERZZ2HBESTRT ¢ A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the

end of the reporting period is shown below:

2023

R EF = REF =

BRREZ BREEZ

B CR) #gin, R

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

b= in defined Lk EF A in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate  obligations inrate  obligations

% BET T % BET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Prif % Discount rate 1.0 (14,156) 1.0 18,447

TEEE BRI RE  Expected rate of medical insurance cost 0.5 7,634 0.5 (6,755)

TEEASL T X Expected death rate 0.1 (3,465) 0.1 3,824
2022

FE Mz FE N &

RN EE BAFEEZ

o, CRd) #m,/ O )

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

Lt =38 0 in defined b =R > in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate obligations in rate obligations

% BT % BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

PR =& Discount rate 0.1 (1,930) 0.1 1,980

TEHIRE R TR E  Expected rate of medical insurance cost 0.5 10,050 0.5 (8,850)
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17. RIRER B () 17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) RERZFE(E) (b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)

LSBT ERBERREERR A EEHHE The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method
HHAENZBRAEZZE - that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result

of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period.

iR e =R NER NG ENARIZIT ¢ The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in
respect of the plan is as follows:

2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

FLTE M arEtEl Defined benefit schemes
— BRI — Current service cost 1,660 3,730

—iBERBEKAR — Past service cost

— T — plan amendment - 940
—FFE&A — Net interest cost 3,940 2,410
s Total expenses 5,600 7,080
fFire 2HBERAERLTEIMERZHT ¢ The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income in respect of the plan is as follows:

2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FLTE M arEtEl Defined benefit schemes
—BRREHEENFERS — Actuarial gains arising from changes in Assumptions (11,024) (52,810)
—RRABRELENEHE — Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from
(B&),/ B8 experience adjustments (4,781) 4,160
REARERERHFERAHA  Components of defined benefit costs recognised in
A EB comprehensive income (15,805) (48,650)
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17. EBHREBRIKAE @)
(b) REFZHE @
AHEMBESHHT

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)
(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)

The movement in respect of the plan is as follows:

2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHaE Benefit liability

®W1A1H At 1 January 106,770 152,660
& BRAS A A Current service cost 1,660 3,730

B AR Past service cost
—ET B — plan amendment - 940
FMEER Net interest cost 3,940 2,410
EFIERERS Actuarial gain on remeasurement (15,805) (48,650)
‘AR Benefit paid (4,229) (4,320)
M12A318 At 31 December 92,336 106,770

AAENSBHFEERRZBRAROT ¢

Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future years are as
follows:

2023 2022

BET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

AEI12MEAUR Within the next 12 months 3,201 3,420
2FESF Between 2 and 5 years 13,328 15,180
6FE10F Between 6 and 10 years 19,143 21,550
10F M £ Over 10 years 229,081 276,570
TEHRAE R Total expected payments 264,753 316,720

MR2023F12A31H AENE@AAEERED
RZFHAHAAE18.14 (20224 : 195) -

18. E5 SEEBEEABRITEAE
o =

(a) EE=M<£

AEEASBRARTEERARTREENBER
ARtz RIS E R R EEUARK 2 BN FHIFWT

As at 31 December 2023, the average duration of the defined benefit
obligations at the end of the reporting period is 18.1 years (2022: 19
years).

18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
AND KEY PERSONNEL'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the
Bank in respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing
the subsidiaries within the Group during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
BET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

we Fees 2,882 3,110
Hmi e Other emoluments 18,355 26,073
21,237 29,183
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18. EE - SEEEBAEBRTEAER
[ A

(b) CGSTEREEAERTEASHN
A

BeERRE Y CGSGBRMFMEIEIE2]) - &

EEAEEYSRERABRTEASNTMEE

M

() RFEARTHFBH

18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S AND
KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
Personnel under CG-5

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued
by the HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management and
Key Personnel of the Group during the year are as follows:

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year

2023
EREBAE FEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel

JEIEIE FEIEIE
Non- EE st Non- EE et
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BETT BT B¥Tr BT B¥Trx BYETxR
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

(& 7 % Bl Fixed remuneration
Be Cash 24,283 - 24,283 25,598 - 25,598
Ha = Other forms 3,371 - 3,371 2,736 - 2,736
% B) % B Variable remuneration
Be Cash 4,655 5,801 10,456 5,652 3,768 9,420
32,309 5,801 38,110 33,986 3,768 37,754
2022
mREREAS FEAB
Senior Management Key Personnel

FEIETE FEIETE
Non- PEIE Bt Non- JEIE Bt
deferred  Deferred Total  deferred  Deferred Total
BT BETIT A¥Tr BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(& 7 % Bl Fixed remuneration
e Cash 30,559 - 30,559 23,188 - 23,188
E b Other forms 3,589 - 3,589 1,874 = 1,874
7 B) % B Variable remuneration

e Cash 6,791 9,291 16,082 7,402 4,934 12,336
40,939 9,291 50,230 32,464 4,934 37,398

N EHMEIESR (2022F : 10R2) SR ERAER
144 (2022 1 13%)FEAB ° $%20234F 12 A 31
HE MR A B B EBEIERE -

The remuneration above includes 8 (2022: 10) members of Senior
Management and 14 (2022: 13) members of Key Personnel. The list of

members is as of 31 December 2023.
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18. EEX - EEEEAEBRTEAE 18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S AND

M < () KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) CGS5STEREEBAERTEAEN (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
i (E) Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)
(i) EAEFB (i)  Deferred remuneration
2023 2022
EREBAR SREBAB
Senior FEAE Senior FEAB

Management Key Personnel Management  Key Personnel

BETT BETT BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B RE S Deferred remuneration

ERB Vested 7,900 4,769 8,709 4,900
PNl Unvested 13,655 9,120 18,911 9,270
21,555 13,889 27,620 14,170
®1A1H At 1 January 18,911 9,270 18,490 9,496
BEET Awarded 5,801 3,768 9,291 4,934
[BE97 Paid out (4,640) (2,881) (6,158) 2,611)

BER(FAEECIE  Paid out for members not in this category at
ZEAAR) the end of this year (3.260) (1,888) (2,551) (2,289)
[ER73 Resignation (2,589) (155) (161) (260)

FAR(REFHKBERT  Adjustment (finalised amount of Awarded in
+%5) previous years) (568) 1,006 = =
W12 A31H At 31 December 13,655 9,120 18,911 9,270
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18. EE - EEEEAERTIEAE
[ A€
(b) CGS5TEREBAERIEASHN
B ()
RBEBEAR ABOERMNSREEABRTEA
BIRESERURRMITMEIETIE3)ES -

- BREEAR BEFTEREENSMER
AE BEABRRBNEREY FEER
REAR WITES AN SR HEt
EEEKE BEFENERBREALRE -

- TBEAR  AARKES S RERRBRALE
HERRBEAEATE  HEABREHEAR
ERFEE EARE SHBNEEEY
ENAR BRERAMBPIGLE B
MEBARE-—BEA XBEXE  URHA
REEFERFVENBREELF —EETA-

RZEAHUBRENBERAY  FlRRITES -
BREEBAEREEZABEE2023F12A31HLE
FEMBTMEREZE AEBETEEMRE =&
e M FlFERSENEEISHALEENGS
MIEMREEEATE -
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18.

(b)

DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S AND
KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel
mentioned in this section are defined according to the HKMA's
Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System.

Senior Management: The senior executives directly managed by
the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
strategy or material business lines, including Chief Executive,
Alternate Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Deputy Chief
Executives, Chief Officers, other members of Management,
Board Secretary and General Manager of Audit Department.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business
activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual
responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who directly generate the profit,
including heads of material business lines with direct generation
of profits, heads of major subsidiaries, head of trading, as well as
heads of risk control functions with direct influence.

As of the date of these issuance of consolidated financial statements,
the above compensation packages including performance based bonus
for executive directors, senior management and key personnel for the
year ended 31 December 2023 has not been finalised. Management of
the Group believes that the difference between the final emoluments
and that disclosed above will not have significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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19. EFBEE FHEREMBITRHE 19. CASH, BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS

fth & EMEB SR WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS
2023 2022
BT T PEEE T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFRE RFERIRTT R EAL Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
SEIEBNER
—EFEe - Cash 575,585 590,060
—FHRH RIBITH A - Balances with central banks 16,109,883 18,033,681
—TFHERTREMES KBS - Balances with banks and other financial institutions
R 6,182,559 4,639,087
—HERITREM LT —1E - Placements with banks and other financial institutions
A AEIE 2 7 BRfF I maturing within one month 30,965,730 39,150,873
53,833,757 62,413,701
VR Impairment allowances (364) (346)
53,833,393 62,413,355
ERITREMSRIEE —Z Placements with banks and other financial institutions
+ =@ A AE 2 T HFR maturing between one and twelve months 2,273,418 4,601,699
R Impairment allowances (149) (281)
2,273,269 4,601,418
56,106,662 67,014,773
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19. EFRS FRREMBITRAE
BN AR

HEREEREZZOHTMT

INSTITUTIONS (Cont'd)

19. CASH, BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS
WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as

follows:
F—MEER EoRER E=RE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2023F1A1H At 1 January 2023 (627) - - (627)
&N Addition (277) - - (277)
RIEFERSEE (NBHE  Derecognised or repaid (excluding written
HisH) off) 600 - - 600
HIA B PEER 2 MR EYE  Impact on period end ECLs of exposures
B HIRIBEIIE R transferred between stages during
ra the period - (220) - (220)
WESH R EE Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 11 - - 1
7M2023F 12 A31H At 31 December 2023 (293) (220) - (513)
E—PEER FIBER M ER HEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022 (561) - - (561)
0 Addition (608) - - (608)
B RS EE CRBIE  Derecognised or repaid (excluding written
HsE) off) 503 - - 503
RE2H S Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations (69) - - (69)
EHZERE Exchange difference 108 - - 108
7202212 A31H At 31 December 2022 (627) - - (627)
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20. AAERITABRBZEMEE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BHMUAAE
B NER
Mandatorily measured
at fair value through
profit or loss

X5 ERGMH #s
Trading Non trading Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

AETT  A¥TL  AMTr  AE%TT  E¥Tx  E%TR
HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

BAREYIR At fair value

E% Treasury bills 5947317 6,180,799 - - 5947317 6,180,799

BFH#E Certificates of deposit 631,203 190,238 - = 631,203 190,238

HinEBES Other debt securities 826,016 249,875 250,229 39,200 1,076,245 289,075
7,404,536 6,620,912 250,229 39,200 7,654,765 6,660,112

Rin &% Equity securities - - 1375898 1417583 1,375,898 1,417,583

Hity Others - - 6,807,447 10536257 6,807,447 10,536,257

7404536 6620912 8433574 11,993,040 15,838,110 18,613,952

MR2023F12A31H BERTEAUANAALBEEE
ABm 2 eREE (2022 : &) °

As at 31 December 2023, there were no financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss (2022: Nil).
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200 AREELHTAERZEMEE

()
AREEHABRZeMEER FHithz 5B
T

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by place

of listing as follows:

BEIMELD R
BRI AEE
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

XM ERSZMH
Trading Non trading
2023 2022 2023 2022
BT T AT IT BET T PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BISEFH Debt securities
—RBEBINETH — Listed outside Hong Kong - 25,518 - =
—3Em — Unlisted 7,404,536 6,595,394 250,229 39,200
& 17 7% 25 Equity securities
—3Em — Unlisted - - 1,375,898 1,417,583
HAh Others
—JELT — Unlisted - - 6,807,447 10,536,257
7,404,536 6,620,912 8,433,574 11,993,040

AREFHABRT SREERBITRIES S
W :

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by type

of issuer as follows:

BEMELD R
BRI AERE
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

R FkRXFZMH

Trading Non trading
2023 2022 2023 2022
BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EAER Sovereigns 5,947,317 6,180,799 - =
NN Public sector entities 41,072 84,098 - =
RIT R E Ah & B E Banks and other financial institutions 1,280,937 306,428 7,029,887 10,536,257
NCIRTE S Corporate entities 135,210 49,587 1,403,687 1,456,783
7,404,536 6,620,912 8,433,574 11,993,040
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1L.TEERMI AR S
£ THIER  FERARAEOTESBT
BAMIFEERARER A

R ERNARE - B BE N EIMNERN AR -

Mt

E¥ NMERECEBREAREIBTARSRAR
mA AR IR HNEREIBRARER - M X (40
BEMERZBMNE)AESE (NESEH) KN
EHFMEAS (MR EEFREH) - RRLEE
EHAKIN  RERFEFIBERE -

SMNEHEZIEENE S (HET) RET (KA T)
REERKE—FEARIARK—ERHARLZLNE
MEREE (RBEHE) KEHL GRUEHR) —EHE
B B T A AR (M IFAGR) B — =ik - Z R
SMNERS  HIEMEBE T IBE TR —ERHIEE
AEEHESOERY T HHESIMDEEK °

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate and
commodity related derivative financial instrument contracts for trading
and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign
currency on a future date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments
to exchange one set of cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps
result in an exchange of currencies, interest rates (for example, fixed
rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, gold swaps) or
a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate
swaps). Except for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of
principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which
the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the
obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by
a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the financial
instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption
of foreign exchange risk, the seller receives a premium from the
purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between the Group
and its counterparty.
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2. 7TEESMIEREDE @)

AEBZTESRI ARG REBERERAE
HINTR - SHRESHMIANGHN ELEBHE
BTIRNEERBREATHZIRZE  METLR
TAZAKN/REHBARRT —EREEEER
NAERNATEEEXREBNSLER - BE
BANRBRITERHARORE RO AE
Rl it 1~ A F R AN 5% [ BT 1 B 1 15 B R B X 7 35 L
BoBERTEASHMTAASNOGIEENES - ™
SHXRESBERNKEY  TESRTANME
AREEEAMN(BEE) KT (AR MEE  BLY
R TR HRABRKAIKE ©

(a) PTEEMIA

AEBETHIMIAERRINIZENERARSR
F%E% SERZEFPRAZMEMBOITEERR
SUFBRREBRAEESAERREEBRLRE °

TEERTEANERRITRENNXEAR REE
B ECERRELBANTEERTAETRS °
HITEEMR HEE R AESZBBARRE
# - WHITRSHERERYR -SRTEERXHH
BRFNIBERORS  AETHEE THEE |

R -

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The
contract/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and certain of them
provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised
on the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the
amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of
the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure
to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates, market interest rates or metal prices
relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer business.
The Group strictly follows risk management policies and requirement
in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking
book. A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product
list before any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are
limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative
transactions, and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative
transaction must be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-
to-market revaluation, reporting and control.
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21. $TEESMIAERY DS @

() fTEEMIAME)

TREMLZEITESRMTA

W12A31BZ24a%,/

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair

BEHSBMANLE: value of each class of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
2023
B8/
EREEHE ARE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE a8&
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT T BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
EEREL Exchange rate contracts
BIVER K i BA Spot and forwards 6,800,556 366,335 (162,638)
2 Hi Swaps 88,265,472 149,540 (856,909)
HNDE XX 5 BR Foreign currency options 1,455,639 85,602 (85,632)
96,521,667 601,477 (1,105,179)
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
= A1 Swaps 53,828,802 411,202 (239,719)
SEREES) Commodity contracts 902,166 26,365 (4,863)
151,252,635 1,039,044 (1,349,761)
2022
an/
LR AV
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE af&
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERAEL Exchange rate contracts
BIVHA & 3= B Spot and forwards 13,424,969 485,638 (274,076)
= A7 Swaps 68,074,050 620,072 (439,025)
SN 22 5 B A Foreign currency options 2,801,886 174,012 (174,072)
84,300,905 1,279,722 (887,173)
FEEEL Interest rate contracts
¥ 5 Swaps 44,654,907 600,330 (224,562)
HEEEES) Commodity contracts 453,723 4,893 (1,046)
129,409,535 1,884,945 (1,112,781)
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21. $TEESMIAERY DS @

(b) HHEsr
A Epd

AR EFI AT EH A OB EF RS R 2
BAEAAEED -

TREM TR2023F 12 A3 BRI ASHRHAE
FIRZEHRTEANEY BEHEE-

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(b) Hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair
value of financial assets arising from movements in market interest

rates.

The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts of the
hedging instruments as at 31 December 2023 by remaining contractual

maturity.
2023
—Z =%
—EAR =@R +=BR —-ZEEF "HEUL
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1t05 Over Mt
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BETrT #B¥Tn #B¥Tr BE%Tz B¥Tx BE¥Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
il &= 55 Interest rate swaps - - 3,336,089 5,504,704 1,416,934 10,257,727
2022
—% =2
—EAR =@R +ZEAR —Z8% "EUE
Upto 1103 31012 1t05 Over FCE
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BT B%TrT A¥%Tr A%Tr BBTT BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 & 4= 5 Interest rate swaps 241,730 - 659,690 8,176,865 294,944 9,373,229
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21. PTESMIARYPE:T @

(b) HHEF )

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(b) Hedge accounting (Cont'd)

RAEEF (&) Fair value hedges (Cont'd)
REAHHTEZABLBHOT - The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as
follows:
2023
ARE BUERE W
Fair values BYBA 2
AAELED
&8/ Change in fair
ZERYE value used for
Contract/ recognising
notional BE & hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fTEERTA Derivative financial instruments
FlRiEH Interest rate swaps 10,257,727 213,335 (36,812) -
2022
N FRLARERES
Fair values BYRH
AREZE
&4/ Change in fair
EEYE value used for
Contract/ recognising
notional BE af& hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ~ ineffectiveness
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fTEERTIEA Derivative financial instruments
F&=E Interest rate swaps 9,373,229 391,718 (5,725) =
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21. TEE€MIAR
(b) HHeEsxtE
RALEE M ()

WEIHIEE 2B BT ¢

gt 21.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(b)
Fair value hedges (Cont'd)

Hedge accounting (Cont'd)

The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:

2023
SFAREEN
AREEMF
HEZRTTSHE AR
Accumulated HEMIB D
amount of fair ZEEEE
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
BREME included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
BET T BETT BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
SRR E Financial investments
B EH KT RE Debt securities and certificates of deposit 10,028,108 (122,631) -
2022
T ARREER
NAEE A
AR &R FAARE R
Accumulated SR EL
amount of fair ZBEZE
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
BREME  included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts  ineffectiveness
PR T T T IT PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIRE Financial investments
BIEEHRFHE Debt securities and certificates of deposit 9,054,605 (315,747) =
R REBHANT - Hedge ineffectiveness recognised is as follows:
2023 2022
BET T PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

FER PR

Net trading gain
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21. $TEESMIAERY DS @

(0 EERRRE

MR2023F12A31H BEHE A STEEREEDN
FEGTETANAYN BE2BERRAEEERT
HESEENRRNEYEAEF HEREERRK
FEFTHENMELRAIE (2022 F B 48.41187T) ©

22. EXRREMERE

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(c) Interest rate benchmark reform

At 31 December 2023, there were no contract/notional amounts of
interest rate derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships
represent the extent of the risk exposure managed by the Group that
is directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform and in scope of

Phase 1 amendments (2022: HK$4,841,000,000).

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2023 2022

BET T BRI

HK$'000 HK$'000

BAAER Personal loans and advances 50,866,820 56,085,284
NAIER Corporate loans and advances 247,439,498 237,680,000
BEFER Advances to customers 298,306,318 293,765,284
Ve R Impairment allowances (4,899,755) (4,064,989)
293,406,563 289,700,295

BHRE Trade bills 341,313 610,399
BB ZE Impairment allowances (22) (39)
341,291 610,360

RITREMSREERER Advances to banks and other financial institutions 156,914 156,566
LB A Impairment allowances (32) (32)
156,882 156,534

293,904,736 290,467,189

MR2023F 128318  BEFERBEEF BB
1,497,547,000 7T (2022 4F : &% 885,929,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2023, advances to customers included accrued

interest of HK$1,497,547,000 (2022: HK$885,929,000).
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22. EXRREMERE @
2R b BRI IR ER 5 T

REUBRBEEFEN 2 AE
T

analysed by stage classification as follows:

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are

2023

E—BR EREER E=RE @st

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BT BET T BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BEFEX Advances to customers 280,340,453 11,046,315 6,919,550 298,306,318

EE S Trade bills 341,313 - - 341,313
FITREMERMEEER Advances to banks and other financial

institutions 156,914 - - 156,914

et Total 280,838,680 11,046,315 6,919,550 298,804,545

2022

E—PRE FPEER E=EE BEt

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BETT BT T BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REER Advances to customers 282,845,566 7,423,013 3,496,705 293,765,284

ZH5HER Trade bills 610,399 = = 610,399
BT REMERMEEER Advances to banks and other financial

institutions 156,566 - - 156,566

w@Et Total 283,612,531 7,423,013 3,496,705 294,532,249
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22. EXRREMERE @
MRRE R B DT T -

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Cont'd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as

follows:
E-RER ERER E=RE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R2023F181H At 1 January 2023 (1,371,833) (522,873) (2,170,354) (4,065,060)
&N Addition (785,111) - - (785,111)
IR EE Derecognised or repaid
(B ¥R EH) (excluding written off) 574,105 22,157 591,155 1,187,417
EEE—[ER Transfers to Stage 1 (38,302) 37,019 1,283 -
EEE R Transfers to Stage 2 25,992 (77,087) 51,095 -
HMEE Transfers to Stage 3 20,307 188,945 (209,252) -
HIABPEER 2 MR A YE  Impact on period end ECLs of exposures
SR HIRTEERIE R transferred between stages during
] the period 1,212 (53,346) (1,921,616)  (1,973,750)
WESHREE Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 184,084 (50,957) (1,802,199) (1,669,072)
U [B] & i 84 BR 18 Recoveries - - (89,891) (89,891)
WisH < E& Loans written off - - 2,457,574 2,457,574
PE X =% Exchange difference 22,527 5,097 10,460 38,084
72023412 A31H At 31 December 2023 (1,367,019) (451,045) (3,081,745) (4,899,809)
F—RE FEMEER FE=PEER @t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R T IT AT I PR T T PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H2022F181H At 1 January 2022 (1,313,109) (167,896)  (2,532,041)  (4,013,046)
&N Addition (759,779) - - (759,779)
RIEFERSEE Derecognised or repaid
(B ¥R ) (excluding written off) 518,343 71,395 84,671 674,409
EEE R Transfers to Stage 1 (14,400) 14,400 = =
EEE_[ER Transfers to Stage 2 20,988 (20,988) = =
BEE=[EEH Transfers to Stage 3 17,431 48,669 (66,100) =
HIABPEER 2 MR A YE  Impact on period end ECLs of exposures
B HIRTEERIE R transferred between stages during
G the period 7,411 (376,499) (531,302) (900,390)
WESHEE Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 98,068 (96,888) (550,448) (549,268)
W=l B s AR IE Recoveries = = (24,238) (24,238)
il < B3 Loans written off = = 1,307,438 1,307,438
PE N =% Exchange difference 53,214 4,934 141,666 199,814
72022912 A31H At 31 December 2022 (1,371,833) (522,873) (2,170,354) (4,065,060)
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23. TRIRE 23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
2023
A RER{E
AH#M2EKE
At fair value P8 §- 3%
through other fEst 2
comprehensive At amortised @t
income cost Total
BET T BT T BET T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
E% Treasury bills 66,842,198 2,725,487 69,567,685
Hib BB E S Other debt securities 80,189,302 4,572,377 84,761,679
147,031,500 7,297,864 154,329,364
TR Certificates of deposit 19,832,553 - 19,832,553
BEREHRIFAFEE Total debt securities and certificates of deposit 166,864,053 7,297,864 174,161,917
YRR Impairment allowances - (723) (723)
166,864,053 7,297,141 174,161,194
f& 17 7 % Equity securities 25,606 - 25,606
166,889,659 7,297,141 174,186,800
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23. LRIBRE @ 23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)
2022
WA BRI
AH A2 E M E=
At fair value LABE R AR
through other fEstE
comprehensive At amortised #ET
income cost Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
E% Treasury bills 60,061,111 11,212,935 71,274,046
HERBES Other debt securities 74,512,517 2,018,018 76,530,535
134,573,628 13,230,953 147,804,581
FRE Certificates of deposit 3,370,199 - 3,370,199
BEREHRIFAFEE Total debt securities and certificates of deposit 137,943,827 13,230,953 151,174,780
BB ZE Impairment allowances = (1,264) (1,264)
137,943,827 13,229,689 151,173,516
& 17 28 % Equity securities 21,844 - 21,844
137,965,671 13,229,689 151,195,360
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23. SRKRE®@

23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

HAAAREZ L ARMEHKE Z @/IRER An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of

WEERZBEOHMAT

financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

is, as follows:
F—MEER FoRER F=ZRE #st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
R2023F1A1H At 1 January 2023 (99,542) - (182,129) (281,671)
0 Addition (30,161) - - (30,161)
MRIEFERSEE (NE$E  Derecognised or repaid (excluding
HisH) written off) 14,240 - - 14,240
IESH R EE Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 37,697 - 262 37,959
g8 Written off - - 182,734 182,734
PE 5 =% Exchange difference 251 - (867) (616)
M 2023F 12 A31H At 31 December 2023 (77,515) - - (77,515)
—REE& FEMEER E=PEE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022 (97,269) - (182,098) (279,367)
0 Addition (23,587) - - (23,587)
MRIEFERSEE (NBEFE  Derecognised or repaid (excluding
HisH) written off) 28,483 - - 28,483
IESH R E Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations (8,179) - (1,246) (9,425)
MEHZR Exchange difference 1,010 = 1,215 2,225
R2022F12A31H At 31 December 2022 (99,542) - (182,129) (281,671)
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23. SRKRE®@

HEAERKAEFEZ SRR ENRELEF 2

23.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of

eI - financial investments at amortised cost is, as follows:
F—MEER FoRER E=EE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R2023F1A1H At 1 January 2023 (1,264) - - (1,264)
0 Addition 71 - - 71
MRIEFERSEE ("BE$E  Derecognised or repaid (excluding
HisH) written off) 402 - - 402
ESH R EE Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 210 - - 210
7M2023F 12 A31H At 31 December 2023 (723) - - (723)
F—RER FEMEER FE=PEER et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RK2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022 - - - -
0 Addition (1,264) - - (1,264)
IESH RS Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations - - (219,927) (219,927)
g4 Written off - - 217,539 217,539
EHZRE Exchange difference - = 2,388 2,388
120224124318 At 31 December 2022 (1,264) - - (1,264)
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23. SRKRE®@
SRIEEIR Y SEMT -

23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial investments are analysed by place of listing as follows:

2023
A RERE
A H fth 2 i 25
At fair value LU 84 B 2R
through other et 2
comprehensive At amortised
income cost
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000
B EH RIFHRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit
—-REBLT — Listed in Hong Kong 9,924,372 -
—RBEBIN LT — Listed outside Hong Kong 6,289,229 -
16,213,601 -
—3EET — Unlisted 150,650,452 7,297,141
166,864,053 7,297,141
I 17 7% 25 Equity securities
—JLTH — Unlisted 25,606 -
#Et Total 166,889,659 7,297,141

LABE AR N5 8 2 F T &% T {E Market value of listed securities at amortised cost
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23. SRKRE®@

23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

CRIRER Ec HENT - () Financial investments are analysed by place of listing as follows: (Cont'd)
2022
AR S B LA
AE b 2 e
At fair value LABE R AR A
through other et E
comprehensive At amortised
income cost
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEREHRIFHRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit
—-REBLT — Listed in Hong Kong 11,323,646 =
—RBEABAIN LT — Listed outside Hong Kong 6,509,470 =
17,833,116 -
—JF LT — Unlisted 120,110,711 13,229,689
137,943,827 13,229,689
& 17 7% %5 Equity securities
—JLH — Unlisted 21,844 -
#Et Total 137,965,671 13,229,689

LABE AR N5 8 2 T &% T {E Market value of listed securities at amortised cost -
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23. SRKRE®@
SR ERBITRE S HSBEOT -

23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial investments are analysed by type of issuer as follows:

2023

A RERE

A At 2 T U 3
At fair value LU 84 B 2R
through other et 2
comprehensive At amortised
income cost
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000
BELHER Sovereigns 67,007,303 5,843,363
NE BN Public sector entities 4,899,509 301,713
RIT R H Ath & RS Banks and other financial institutions 70,150,174 951,626
NAEIEEE Corporate entities 24,832,673 200,439
166,889,659 7,297,141

2022

AR S EZ LA

AE M2
At fair value LA 8 BK AR
through other ezt 8
comprehensive At amortised
income cost
T IT PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BELER Sovereigns 60,061,111 11,212,627
NE BN Public sector entities 3,029,029 301,379
RITRHAth & s Banks and other financial institutions 52,741,552 1,515,299
NCIRSE Corporate entities 22,133,979 200,384
137,965,671 13,229,689

R2023F 12 A318  BEEGERITE (BXR)RAD
AP EARAREEMHAR BRI AEM
2HEW A S I E BB 4,899,509,000 7t (2022
£ #5#3,029,029,0007T) °

M2023F 128318 BREE(RITE(EXR) R
A ADMERRA QN E B A AR SR A ESH 2
& B % & &7B 301,713,000 7T (2022 F : B &
301,379,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2023, included financial investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income of HK$4,899,509,000 which
are eligible to be classified as public sector entities under the Banking
(Capital) Rules (2022: HK$3,029,029,000).

As at 31 December 2023, included financial investments at amortised
cost of HK$301,713,000 which are eligible to be classified as
public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules (2022:
HK$301,379,000).

#1757 % 4445 » NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2023 ANNUAL REPORT 4#R » www.nch.com.hk

209



210

ot 5 R 2R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements

24, REWYE

24. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2023 2022

BT T TS T

HK$°000 HK$'000

®1A1H At 1 January 559,140 327,610

NAEEE (MFE13) Fair value losses (Note 13) (9,040) (6,920)
EFOEER(Z)/BWE - Redassification (to)/from properties,

B R A (M EE25) plant and equipment (Note 25) (142,500) 238,450

®12A31H At 31 December 407,600 559,140

REMEZREERBONGIMBETOT

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the
remaining terms of the leases as follows:

2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000

EEBREAE Held in Hong Kong
RAFAE A (B3R 504F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 252,300 258,020
FHIFA (10FE504F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 155,300 301,120
407,600 559,140

M2023F 128318 " JIIREEBBERANCIKREY
¥ DNRBEB A SRS R ETAT AR A A
R2023F 12 A3THURAARBAEEMETZEE
HE - AABEEETEEREEERFRARMIBER
TRMS2EELET —BREMEENESHER -

As at 31 December 2023, investment properties were included in the
balance sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December 2023 on the
basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors,
Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that
would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly
transaction with market participants at the measurement date.
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25. ¥)%E -  B/MRRE 25. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BB BE
RERERE
Equipment, EREEE
BE fixtures and Right-of-use BEt
Premises fittings assets Total
BT T BETT BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
MN2023FE18182 Net book value at
EEFE 1 January 2023 7,901,917 416,866 770,463 9,089,246
®E Additions 54,875 188,333 183,902 427,110
HE/RIEER Disposals/Derecognition - (12,561) - (12,561)
E e Revaluation (47,331) - - (47,331)
FENE Depreciation for the year (177,760) (77.431) (240,742) (495,933)
B BEERAREYE Reclassification from investment
(Bt7E24) properties, net (Note 24) 142,500 - - 142,500
PEHZ5 Exchange difference (15,134) (4,190) (12,437) (31,761)
#2023F 12 831HZ  Net book value at
REFE 31 December 2023 7,859,067 511,017 701,186 9,071,270
72023412 A31H At 31 December 2023
BRAES G E Cost or valuation 7,859,067 1,258,078 1,261,033 10,378,178
BT E Accumulated depreciation - (747,061) (559,847) (1,306,908)
M2023F12A31HZ  Net book value at
BREEE 31 December 2023 7,859,067 511,017 701,186 9,071,270
Ll EEZAESEE  The analysis of cost or valuation
DT - of the above assets is as
follows:
72023F 12 A31H At 31 December 2023
B ANE At cost - 1,258,078 1,261,033 2,519,111
ZihE At valuation 7,859,067 - - 7,859,067
7,859,067 1,258,078 1,261,033 10,378,178
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25. Y% #|/MERBE 25. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)
- EE
e K
Equipment, TREEE
BE fixtures and Right-of-use “Er
Premises fittings assets Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2022%F1 8182 Net book value at
REFE 1 January 2022 7,276,454 653,591 829,721 8,759,766
BE Additions 1,235,050 208,365 236,541 1,679,956
HE /R IEER Disposals/Derecognition (37,393) (16,181) (369) (53,943)
Ege Revaluation (95,196) - -~ (95,196)
FENE Depreciation for the year (165,796) (118,625) (241,779) (526,200)
B D PEEBEREWE Redassification to investment
(B&x24) properties, net (Note 24) (238,450) - - (238,450)
BHEEREE (M5E26) Transfer to intangible assets
(Note 26) - (279,427) - (279,427)
EHZER Exchange difference (72,752) (30,857) (53,651) (157,260)
72022612 A31B2  Net book value at
REFE 31 December 2022 7,901,917 416,866 770,463 9,089,246
M2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022
DN EEAELE] Cost or valuation 7,901,917 1,137,166 1,189,391 10,228,474
REINE Accumulated depreciation - (720,300) (418,928) (1,139,228)
2022412 A31HZ  Net book value at
REDFE 31 December 2022 7,901,917 416,866 770,463 9,089,246
Ml EEZAESEE  The analysis of cost or valuation
DT - of the above assets is as
follows:
2022912 A31H At 31 December 2022
4N At cost - 1,137,166 1,189,391 2,326,557
RiLE At valuation 7,901,917 - = 7,901,917
7,901,917 1,137,166 1,189,391 10,228,474
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25. W% - |MRRE @

FPEZFRHEZBONGHERIMTAT

25. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms
of the leases as follows:

2023 2022
BT T BRI
HK$’'000 HK$'000
EEBRE Held in Hong Kong

RAFFE X (BB 504F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 3,335,303 3,408,356
RHAFR A (10 EE504F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 3,810,800 3,749,025

EBBUAIINEE Held outside Hong Kong
FRERFE A (105 E504) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 628,432 656,472
RHEY (LR10F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 84,532 88,064
7,859,067 7,901,917

M2023F12A318 I REEABRANZEE -
TR IE B R R 2RISR AT EITT B R A AR
2023F 12 AU ARBEARELEMET CHEM
B AREREASEREEERTRINERLT
MME2EENES—HEERISHERS -

RELAZEHER FEGEEHCRNEESR
R W RFERM T

As at 31 December 2023, premises were included in the balance sheet
at valuation carried out at 31 December 2023 on the basis of their fair
value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty
Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be received to
sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at
the measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of
the premises were recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and
the income statement as follows:

2023 2022

BT T BET T

HK$°000 HK$'000

BEEEEGEEBZEMBE  Decrease in valuation charged to premises revaluation reserve (45,485) (92,207)
BERWER CEGHRE Decrease in valuation charged to income statement (1,846) (2,989)
(47,331) (95,196)

R2023F 12 A31H REEEEXNABINREZ
AENE  AEBCEEABRAZEERA
HAH JE A 8 2,283,972,0007T (2022 4 : B
2,181,719,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2023, the net book value of premises that would
have been included in the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation was HK$2,283,972,000
(2022: HK$2,181,719,000).
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26, BEFREE
BIAEZ BBERMT -

26. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movements in intangible assets are summarised as follows:

2023 2022
BT T PR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
®1A1H At 1 January 619,709 =
A Transfer in - 279,427
HE Additions 326,695 394,329
B Disposals - (1,789)
FEHH Amortisation for the year (98,014) (42,513)
ENERE Exchange difference (4,926) (9,745)
®12A31H At 31 December 843,464 619,709
B AR Cost 1,159,431 842,815
BT Accumulated amortisation (315,967) (223,106)
®12A31H Net book value at 31 December 843,464 619,709
BN EEFREE Reclassification of intangible assets

AEBYATEGREEERERTREREEERE
MHEEZY - AR BEEEAFITWRBERNED
LERSERMES R202F12A31BEME
ERNHLEH T H%619,709,0007T  EREHHIE
EEPEE -

The Group previously presented its intangible assets as other assets in
the consolidated balance sheet. However, management considers for
the purpose of better reflecting the underlying nature and allowing a
more understandable presentation, the comparative figures as at 31
December 2022 have been restated by reclassifying HK$619,709,000

from other assets to intangible assets.

27. HtEE 27. OTHER ASSETS
2023 2022
BET T ok e
HK$'000 HK$'000
(i &%
M5t 26)
(Restated,
Note 26)
I o1& = Repossessed assets 53,092 4,353
2B Precious metals 284,266 308,057
FEWERIE R T B A Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,869,794 1,533,284
3,207,152 1,845,694
IEEE Impairment allowances (7.347) (4,045)
3,199,805 1,841,649
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27. EMEE®

HEREEREZZLOHTMT

27. OTHER ASSETS (Cont'd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as

follows:
B B E=PEE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2023F1H1H At 1 January 2023 (890) (17) (3,138) (4,045)
Bl Addition (184) - - (184)
RIFTERSEE Derecognised or repaid
(MR IEMEH) (excluding written off) 22 17 1,097 1,136
HA BB 2 EREBFAE Impact on period end ECLs of
EE N EIRTEAIIBAE  exposures transferred between
A stages during the period - (34) (137) (171)
RESEREE Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations (4,343) - (1,335) (5,678)
fEH =% Exchange difference 1,600 - (5) 1,595
202312831 H At 31 December 2023 (3,795) (34) (3,518) (7,347)
£ —PEER EPEER FE=MEER #Et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mm2022F 1818 At 1 January 2022 (795) - (3,105) (3,900)
10 Addition (20) (17) - (37)
RIFTERSEE Derecognised or repaid
(B iEMEE) (excluding written off) 196 = 1 197
HA BB 2 R Impact on period end ECLs of
EEHHIRTERIIEAE  exposures transferred between
-2 stages during the period - = (43) (43)
MBS REE Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations (2,056) - 2 (2,054)
MEXER Exchange difference 1,785 = 7 1,792
R 20224612 A31 B At 31 December 2022 (890) (17) (3,138) (4,045)
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28. AARERILTABZZEHMEE 28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022
BET T BT T
HK$"000 HK$'000

RBMEEE Trading liabilities
—HNEESEBRRESFCR — Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes 5,784,773 7,119,358

MR2023F 12 A3 A RERERARABE LA At 31 December 2023, there were no financial liabilities designated at

BRsemamE (20224 - &) - fair value through profit or loss (2022 Nil).
29. EFERR#EHES 29. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND HEDGE
ACCOUNTING
(@) EFEX (a) Deposits from customers
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BVERTE 3R I 1 2R AF R Demand deposits and current accounts
/N — Corporate 24,790,670 24,487,101
— @A — Personal 2,646,497 2,833,665
27,437,167 27,320,766
WEFR Savings deposits
/N — Corporate 33,771,975 53,625,038
— @A — Personal 35,571,905 43,532,670
69,343,880 97,157,708
EH - AR BATER Time, call and notice deposits
/N — Corporate 139,414,415 126,318,809
— @A — Personal 158,194,401 114,665,181
297,608,816 240,983,990
394,389,863 365,462,464
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29. BEFERERYEAET @

(b) HHEsr
o B P 3 S E SR IR B

M2023F12A318 - AEEREBH AREFE
HEFFA H£8%1,992,543,000 7T (2022 4F : 7
#2,034,312,0007T) ¥ T A - ANUE AR HIE
ERIREA o

FEREBEEARD 2 WHHEBRKRERAER
(20226 : &) -

30. CERTEBEFRERE

29. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND HEDGE

ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(b) Hedge accounting

Hedges of net investments in Mainland operations

As at 31 December 2023, a proportion of the Group's RMB-
denominated deposits from customers of HK$1,992,543,000 (2022:
HK$2,034,312,000) were designated as a hedging instrument to hedge

against the net investments in Mainland China operations.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the

income statement during the year (2022: Nil).

30. DEBT SECURITIES AND CERTIFICATES OF

DEPOSIT IN ISSUE

2023 2022
BT T ST T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B85 RIFHE Debt securities and certificates of deposit,
R AR BR at amortised cost
—TFHE — Certificates of deposit 18,701,698 23,553,516
—HiERES — Other debt securities 10,018,137 11,868,896
28,719,835 35,422,412
31. HRERERH 31. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS
2023 2022
BET T ST T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
HEAE Lease liabilities 737,412 809,968
H e ARE Other accounts payable 13,730,359 18,235,020
HEfF Provisions 50,156 52,637
EREGE LI EERARMME  Impairment allowances for loan commitments and financial
A guarantee contracts 104,978 188,318
14,622,905 19,285,943

1175 7% 4641 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2023 ANNUAL REPORT 4£4§ © www.ncb.com.hk

217



218

ot 5 R 2R Y

Notes to the Financial Statements

31. HMRERERE @
HRDRE R B HIF T -

31. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS (contd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as

follows:
E—PEER ERE E=PEE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2023F1H1H At 1 January 2023 171,931 16,387 - 188,318
Bl Addition 46,210 - - 46,210
BIEER Derecognised (103,676) (16,387) - (120,063)
EEE R Transfers to Stage 2 (329) 329 - -
BEE=[ER Transfers to Stage 3 @ - -
A 2 R Impact on period end ECLs of
EEBYHIRTERIIBAA  exposures transferred between
-2 stages during the period 1 (327) 2,972 2,646
RESEREE Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations (9,566) 4 - (9,562)
fEH =58 Exchange difference (2,571) - - (2,571)
B 2023412 A318  At31 December 2023 101,996 6 2,976 104,978
E—PEER FEPEER FE=MEER #Et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BEET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2022F1H1H At 1 January 2022 292,349 18 - 292,367
i Addition 111,667 - - 111,667
BIEER Derecognised (199,779) (16) = (199,795)
EEE Transfers to Stage 1 1 (1) = -
BEE R Transfers to Stage 2 (258) 258 = =
HA BB 2 EREBFAE Impact on period end ECLs of
EEBHHIRTERIIBAA  exposures transferred between
-2 stages during the period 85 1) = 64
RESEREE Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations (7,909) 17,671 - 9,762
fEH =% Exchange difference (24,225) (1,522) = (25,747)
M2022%F12 B31H At 31 December 2022 171,931 16,387 - 188,318
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32. EEBEA
BILBRRRBEEEHRRE 125 F/E 54

Eﬁﬁ?%ft’fzmi%%ﬁ**éﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁWEEE
Tﬁﬂﬁ%Z%ﬁﬁ%’l\E%%ﬁ&ﬁiﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁ{’ﬂ%%‘é €

EEEBRAZELEHE(BE) BBEXZEEE -

32. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements and unused tax credits in

accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes".

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the

NREEFEANZEFHNT : balance sheet, and the movements during the year are as follows:
2023
mER
EXHiR
Accelerated MEER REEE
tax Property Impairment Hite @t
depreciation revaluation allowance Other Total
BT T BT T BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2023F1A1H At 1 January 2023 61,809 1,049,403 (616,431) (458,620) 36,161
&/ (&) Charged/(credited) to income statement 12,571 12,366 (177,018) (54,118) (206,199)
(8)/ %EEEWE%E (Credited)/charged to other
Wzs comprehensive income - (14,027) - 160,530 146,503
[ EE Exchange difference - (2,436) 9,889 1,290 8,743
R2023F 128318 At 31 December 2023 74,380 1,045,306 (783,560) (350,918) (14,792)
2022
il
ERHE
Accelerated MEER REER
tax Property Impairment Hith @at
depreciation revaluation allowance Other Total
BB BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2022F1A18H At 1 January 2022 46,062 1,139,120 (610,790) (114,301) 460,091
&/ (&) s Charged/(credited) to income statement 15,747 3,655 (51,602) 20,493 (11,707)
= naﬁﬂ’ﬂéﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁ Credited to other comprehensive income = (81,829) = (369,531) (451,360)
=% Exchange difference = (11,543) 45,961 4,719 39,137
R2022F 128318 At 31 December 2022 61,809 1,049,403 (616,431) (458,620) 36,161
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32. EZEBIE (@)
EEEEENTERARBEEERBEHERGE
B MERFIES RE— B R - B S ERE
AMEER BEERETHES BEEARKY - 75
ERERBENIIEYSE  CHABEREY:

32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity
basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxation relates to the
same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

2023 2022
BT T BRI
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEETHIBEE Deferred tax assets (551,106) (327,947)
EETHIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 536,314 364,108
(14,792) 36,161
2023 2022
BET T BT IT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEETHIBEE Deferred tax assets to be recovered after
(FB@12 M8 A& U E) more than twelve months (522,404) (340,721)
BEETHIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after
(BB 128 B &) more than twelve months 776,118 765,618
253,714 424,897

MR2023F12A31H AEBERBERELEHEE
E 2B E 18 A8 8 2,095,0007T (2022 4 : B
2,134,0007T) - IERIMITIO] - BAMBBIELE
VEREHAMR o

33. ZEEE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$2,095,000 (2022:
HK$2,134,000). These tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

33. SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

2023 2022
BET T ST T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FREE SRR AR DI BRI 2029 FE BIHR US$700,000,000 fixed rate subordinated notes issued
2 700,000,000 % 7T E B due 2029 at amortised cost
‘BEZEE 5,468,028 5,455,215
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33. BESEG®

It Ty ERFTRY 2019 4F 11 A 20 H 77,2 700,000,000
ENEBEARGMLETERFA(EERHBE=)M
WREABZHEANIOFHEERE (2K (A
BBCGRITE (BA) BAD 2 KR - EEZBER
2029411 H20 B R B - B E M EE A B20245F
1MA20H -MABETHEZHRELEER T84
380% BHEFRBE—K-HiE  WRIERTERE
MEEAED 22NN ESEITRERSFHE
BEEEFESEN218 T - ERBEERELM
A RRITARBEEEEEANERBREETEK
AN ERIBINEAE FUAEEREEBEDA
B EESD) Rk -

33. SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

This represents US$700,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
subordinated notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank issued on
20 November 2019 in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The
Notes will mature on 20 November 2029 with an optional redemption
date falling on 20 November 2024. Interest at 3.80% p.a. is payable
semi-annually from the issue date to the optional redemption date.
Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset
and the Notes will bear interest at the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury
Rate plus 218 basis points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior
approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes at the option of the Bank in
whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or
for tax or regulatory reasons at any time prior to maturity of the Notes.

34. KA 34. SHARE CAPITAL
2023 2022
T T T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEITRHR Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000 A% & 38 A% 7,000,000 ordinary shares 3,144,517 3,144,517

35. EEHNEXRTHEH

35. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

2023 2022
BET T PE T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
300,000,000 3 JTK A US$300,000,000 perpetual non-cumulative subordinated
SERFHRBFEIN—PHEARFES  additional tier 1 capital securities 2,344,170 =
650,000,000 % JTK A US$650,000,000 perpetual non-cumulative subordinated
FERFTIRBEIN—RAARFES  additional tier 1 capital securities 5,077,856 5,077,856

AIEITR2022F 48288 %777 EE|E
650,000,000 7T (FNBRAB R 1T AN 182 S EHB
5,077,856,0007T) B K A FE REHR R BN — R E A
FBH(BINERITA] - XABINEARATER
202754 A28 R B AR AIER A AiAT - EEFF =
ER6.50% HERRBITHEBERE  ZEmEFE
BERAFRENIFTHERBEERSFERNTER
EMEPIREITRNERR -

On 28 April 2022, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity
instruments”) with a face value of US$650,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,077,856,000 net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 6.50% coupon until the first
call date on 28 April 2027. The coupon will be reset every five years
if the additional equity instruments are not redeemed to a fixed rate
equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed
initial spread.
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35. EHMEXRI A

RERTTR 202343 A7 B 17 T =@ {E 300,000,000
7T (B AR BT AN 18 B 75 1 2,344,170,000
T0) KK ASERFTRAREIN—RMEAREFH ([REINE
ARTE]) - WWKAFEINERTEMR20285F3A7H
BERAER B A ZEEFMNEER735% &
[ERABITEEDE REFNEREAFRER
AFRERREGSS EEXMNEFREN EVRET
FlZER-

EEFEFFRN—R - RRITARRBZRAINE
AT EMGEFRREBORME M MBUERF B
BRE A ARITAE LS HAEBBRBIRS
KB EET —REBRMEALE -

BnEE RBANRIT NE A E TR EE#E
BRE ZENERATIANEAERERESE R
BREIET IS TEITHEE -

RETHEEREFEREMERARE B - KR
THEBLEEBELMAARENHNBEIERTE B
BXEINE 2GR R ABRIFTR S o

RIRITR2023F AL MEIHINEARLT A (BITR
2022%F 4 A28H) & 8.42,250,000% 7t © & 5 Al
M2023%4 A28H K 2023410 A28 &)Xk X it
21,125,000 7T (2022 F W EZHE B 51,125,000
EJT) °

R2023F9A7H  KIRITHNEEIINEART A (817
720233 A7H)ZFEE11,025000%E T °

35. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

On 7 March 2023, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity
instruments”) with a face value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,344,170,000 net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 7.35% coupon until the first
call date on 7 March 2028. The coupon will be reset every five years
if the additional equity instruments are not redeemed to a fixed rate
equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed
initial spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right
to cancel coupon payment (subjected to the requirement as set out
in the terms and conditions of the additional equity instruments) and
the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the Bank is
stopped from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders unless the
next scheduled coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down
to the amount as directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA
notifies the Bank that the Bank would become non-viable if there is no
written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional
equity instruments from the fifth year after issue date or any subsequent
coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as set out in the terms
and conditions.

The Bank has distributed coupon payment for additional equity
instruments (issued on 28 April 2022) for a total amount
US$42,250,000 during the year 2023, for each US$21,125,000 was
distributed on 28 April 2023 and 28 October 2023 separately (Total
coupon payment during the year 2022: US$51,125,000).

Also, the Bank has distributed coupon payment for additional equity
instruments (issued on 7 March 2023) of US$11,025,000 on 7
September 2023.
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36. EBEEHRERKEE 36.

STATEMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

() REZFEBRBACERSZHEAN (@) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash
() B R inflow/(outflow) before taxation
2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
£ ) Operating profit 3,710,960 4,475,814
e Depreciation and amortisation 593,947 568,713
B R Net charge of impairment allowances 3,141,951 1,684,557
Eiiss 2 B3k (FOBRUREIZREE)  Advances written off net of recoveries (2,367,684) (1,283,200)
HEABMNEXH Interest expense on lease liabilities 29,691 28,125
‘BEAENEIZE Interest expense on subordinated liabilities 211,735 211,639
FRE|E B Bi®318 A 2 EMERTT Change in balances with banks and other financial
REMEBEERNEHR 2 institutions with original maturity over three months
25 795,640 2,146,980
FREIHFARBE3EA Z#ERTT X% Change in placements with banks and other financial
HMESm@Bs o iTme institutions with original maturity over three months
‘EJJ 1,408,461 (1,679,397)
NABEEE ABRZ Change in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
CRMEEZE 5,832,320 8,907,992
TESmIAZEE Change in derivative financial instruments 1,082,881 (751,870)
ERREMRIR 2 25 Change in advances and other accounts (4,272,294) 1,518,162
SRIRE 2B E Change in financial investments (19,726,059) (12,501,615)
HEEZEE Change in other assets (1,363,053) (243,034)
ﬁﬁf?&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ RIS 2 Change in deposits and balances from banks and
TR ez & other financial institutions (9,341,243) 23,269,163
NAEE ﬂ:;ﬁr]\TE §2 Change in financial liabilities at fair value through
cRBEzE profit or loss (1,334,585) 704,046
BEER2E EJJ Change in deposits from customers 28,927,399 (18,318,922)
ERTEBZESFRERE Change in debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
ZEE) (6,702,577) 3,667,185
ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ)}ﬁ%ﬁz% Change in other accounts and provisions (4,509,561) 382,776
MEREFE) 27 Effect of changes in exchange rates 566,014 (608,128)
BB AT %é%%‘.*iﬁﬁz G,/ Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before taxation
mA (3,316,057) 12,178,986
WEEBEZFASREFBIE : Cash flows from operating activities included:
—BEKAE — Interest received 20,878,226 13,990,244
—BEFE — Interest paid (12,160,431) (6,415,022)
Bl E — Dividend received 1,467 1,705
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36. MERESHBRME W) 36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont'd)
(b) BREREF[ABLSEHEELEFEIN (b)  Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EfFHRSAXEEHEAE3IMA  Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
A2 FERTT R E b & @t with original maturity within three months
BB ek 46,948,848 54,733,284
REIH A3 A "2 ERTT X Placements with banks and other financial institutions with
Hih S m#E 2 EHFmw original maturity within three months 552,007 1,471,695
REIFAEEI@A RN Z EH Treasury bills with original maturity within three months 7,924,880 3,771,109
REBARE3EA R Certificates of deposit held with original maturity within
Z1FHE three months 1,317,673 146,098
56,743,408 60,122,186
(0 RMEXKEE2EH (c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BmEEE Subordinated liabilities
®W1A1H At 1 January 5,455,215 5,451,286
RERE - Cash flows:
YHBESERES Distribution payment for subordinated liabilities (207,394) (208,102)
FRERED Non-cash changes:
WERBETERZE#Y Amortisation of discount and issuance cost 211,735 211,639
ANGE % &) Foreign exchange movement 8,472 392
K12 4318 At 31 December 5,468,028 5,455,215
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36. REREREXRMT @ 36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont'd)
() ®MEXBEBEZLEH(H) (c)  Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities (Cont'd)
2023 2022
BT T ST T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEsE Lease liabilities
®1A1H At 1 January 809,968 865,378
HEmRE Cash flows:
SHHEEAE Payment of lease liabilities (270,457) (256,740)
FRELE Non-cash changes:
Eoiee] Additions 182,306 235,829
=) Others 15,595 (34,499)
M12A831H At 31 December 737,412 809,968

37. RABBREAE

SRBERAEDNL2BREBEARELEXR ZEER
BENEBRETIMER  HSREEHHNZEOH
BREEERRINERERENT

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND

COMMITMENTS

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liability and commitment and the
aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared with reference

to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy

ratio.

2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEREEEARER Direct credit substitutes 22,417,172 26,834,992
B S5B@IAEBE Transaction-related contingencies 1,910,983 2,391,980
HEZGHEBZSHAEBE Trade-related contingencies 29,152,270 23,828,234
BERBRNEERE Asset sales with recourse 664,860 6,879,734

TEELBANNEMEEE 2 Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without
G prior notice 135,801,299 115,318,606

Hih#E  RIHAAR Other commitments with an original maturity of

—1FHUT — up to one year 3,427,209 2,425,091
—1FENUE — over one year 11,095,086 14,729,915
204,468,879 192,408,552
EERBINESE Credit risk-weighted amount 17,743,711 24,698,341

EERBRINESRERBRBEGRITE (BR)RADHE -
HEEBURR R ZHF 2 BRRERE . BRI -

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status

of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of

contract.
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38. BEARAE
AERBANYBHRRFBEZEAERESEOT

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not
provided for in the financial statements:

2023 2022

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEHERFLHEREE Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 612,171 718,805
ERERREN Authorised but not contracted for 72,974 16,816
685,145 735,621

A EBARAERNED B EAZ BRI R EF -
ARAEB 2 BFRE TR ZALE -

39. REHEHRE
B HAA

REAAHEZREEESH T AKREEEM
ERFANZARABRAEZREERKASL

The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to
purchase computer equipment and software, and to renovate the
Group’s premises.

39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2023 2022

BETT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

TH RIEF Land and buildings

—THB1F — Not later than one year 3,852 5,941
—1&82%F — One to two years 1,939 1,211
—2E3F - Two to three years 1,389 355
7,180 7,507

AEENGREMEVABLEEY X HEFHA
FHI1FE2F -HOBRK - RBFEFREIRES -

40. R
AEETEUSERBTATRENRERREME -
HERERRRERAEENTEHLEHEM -

HREFRA/AKEAHBARAFLAEIRRNKE
A ERRASRNBEAK A RH I ERE
MRREELEREME -

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to two years.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits.

40. LITIGATION

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by
various independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in
relation to the normal commercial activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims
because the directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences
against the claimants or the amounts involved in these claims are not
expected to be material.
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o

41. DER
(@) REEDE

AEBXBHD SOEEEDE - DRI BEART -
ERRT MEXBEREKE -

¥

EARITMEERITEH RIS RE2EAORITR
B BAARTEBERERBEARTS - MEERT
EBBREBRBIFBEATFS ERMEEBR KT
BEEEI EREEEARENELS RPES -
MEMINER A - EXBHFIEEAEENRE
BBMER  BEMEBREHRES  XEKKEE
ASRITAB R RIT R AR ORI FOE B AU
MES EUEBRLHANESXFITIBREER
MECEBEREIETE -EAWE2IINHEE
BEREN CSEELLAEBEIENKRIRZS
BEEEABENEARARREBR ZHNER (B
B2 FAAEHEXRBNERENBEEEERE
AR -

REERNEENEHEN R BELFIERNRME -
HWERAKENYE  EMEBRFERRBET
TROTHERAREXEBRINER -

(Bt AEBEEMZERTECRERASEER
BEERINERGREMNIRR

—EXBRORARIE  T2EEREXRBEERZ
EBRNER - ERNEEER SRESEEEES -

41. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
(a) By operating segment

The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal
Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general
banking services. Personal Banking serves individual customers while
Corporate Banking deals with non-individual customers. The Treasury
segment is responsible for managing the capital, liquidity, and the
interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition
to proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and
receives funds from deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and
Corporate Banking. These inter-segment funding is charged according
to the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism of the Group. The
assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted to reflect the
effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss
information in relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and
liabilities information about Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting
units. Charges are paid to this segment from other business segments
based on market rates per square foot for their occupation of the
Group’s premises.

"Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of
items related to the Group as a whole and totally independent of the
other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items
directly attributable to the segment. For management overheads,
allocations are made on reasonable bases.
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41. FTERE® 41. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
() REESEE) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
AR LERT
Personal  Corporate BEEE RE 2 gt AfHES &a
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRTT BET T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BEABENANA Year ended 31 December 2023
FHEMA/ () Net interest income/(expense)
—5hK - External (3,486,677) 7,302,590 4,185,614 - - 8,001,527 - 8,001,527
-B5% ~Inter-segment 481615  (3975912)  (840,244) - - - - -
1,329,479 3,326,678 3,345,370 - - 8,001,527 - 8,001,527
BREERESWA/(TH)  Net fee and commission income/(expense) 643,639 45 (56,165) 58 (5382 1,353,602 - 1,353,602
FR Stk (BR) Net trading gain/(oss) 42,006 413,681 (7.012) (12,066) (356) 436,253 - 436,253
WARESMTABREZ  Netgain on financial instruments at fair
SRTAINE value through profit or loss - - 380,837 6 - 380,843 - 380,843
HitdRAEL Net (loss)igain on other financial assets
2 (58)/ i - (1,668) 326,528 - - 324,860 - 324,860
HBERA/(FHH) Other operating incomef(expense) 439,928 115123 (553,263) 139,766 64 142,218 (125,701) 16,517
BRAEEEN ZFEERA  Netoperating income before
impairment allowances 2,455,052 4,625,866 3,436,295 127,764 (5.674) 10,639,303 (125,701) 10,513,602
WEREF(BE)/BE  Net(chargelreversal of impairment
allowances (366,037)  (2,793,334) 21,747 - 4327)  (3,141,951) - (3141951)
FEEWA/ (%) Net operating income/(expense) 2080015 1832532 345804 121,764 (10,001) 7497352 (125701) 7,371,651
mELH Operating expenses (1,120307)  (1,531,522) (486,509) (319,746) (328308)  (3,786,392) 125,701 (3,660,691)
&eii/(58) Operating profit/(loss) 968,708 301,010 2,971,533 (191,982) (338,309) 3,710,960 - 3,710,960
RENMELABALZFEE  Netloss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties - - - (9,040) - (9,040) - (9,040)
HE/ERENE  BHREE  Netloss from disposalevaluation of
L3EE properties, plant and equipment - - - (8727) - (8727) - (8727)
BEAIER /(B8 Profit/(loss) before taxation 968,708 301000 297153 (209749) (338309 3,693,193 - 3,693,193
RABE12831R At 31 December 2023
BE ASSETS
ARE Segment asses 53879011 243687803 245180144 11,721,765 673,874 555,148,507 - 555,148,597
8 LIABILITIES
HHEE Segment liabilties 197721593 208404770 77,642,989 1540 3386548 487,157,440 - 487,157,440
HENBENA318 Year ended 31 December 2023
&R Other information
BRI Capital expenditure - - - 569,903 - 569,903 - 569,903
nERES Depreciation and amortisation 13,382 125,576 49,375 320,051 25,563 593,947 - 593,947
ErEH Amortisation of securiies - - 1,777,966 - - 1,777,966 - 1,777,966
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41. DERE@® 41. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(a) RREEIE®HE (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
AR hERT
Personal Corporate BEEK k& Hif NG iy A
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
BRI BETT BETT BRI BETT BETT BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HZANE128318 Year ended 31 December 2022
FHEMA/ () Net interest income/(expense)
—5R - External 214,357 4449322 2,448 345 - - 7172,024 - 7172,024
-E£K - Inter-segment 1,070,001 (837,899) (232,19) = = = = =
1,344,448 3,611,423 2,216,153 - - 7,172,024 - 1172,024
BREERESWA/(TH)  Net fee and commission income/(expense) 383,126 880,965 (62,801) 102,941 (39100 1300321 = 1,300,321
FRHitkE/ (BR) Net trading gain/(oss) 38,082 606,195 (385,059) 11,074 (157) 270,139 = 270,139
WARESMTABREZ  Netgain on financial instruments at fair
SBTAZNE value through profit or loss = = 607,645 = = 607,645 = 607,645
HitdRAEL Net (loss)igain on other financial assets
2 (58)/ i - (1,670) 262,424 - - 260,754 = 260,754
R (34) /WA Other operating (expense)income (7839) (81,509) 94,262 151,267 (12) 156,174 (117,069) 39,105
BRAEEEN ZFEERA  Netoperating income before
impairment allowances 1,757,818 5,015,408 2,732,628 265,282 (4,079) 9,767,057 (117,009) 9,649,983
REBTRR Net charge of impairment allowances (37885 (1,418755) (225,897) = (2,000 (1,684,557) - (1,684557)
FEEWA Net operating income 1,719,933 3,596,653 2,506,731 265,282 (6,099) 8,082,500 (117,069) 7,965,431
BEYH Operating expenses (1,055071)  (1,466,308) (524,094) (301,946) (259.267)  (3,606,686) 117,069 (3,489,617)
&eii/(58) Operating profit/(loss) 664862 2130345 1,982,637 (36,664) (265366) 4475814 - 4475814
RENELABALZFEE  Netloss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties - - - (6,920) - (6,920) - (6,920)
HE/ERENE  BHREE  Netloss from disposalevaluation of
LREE properties, plant and equipment = = = (24411) = (24411) = (24411)
REER/ (B8 Profit/(loss) before taxation 664362 2130345 1982637 (67995  (265366) 4444483 - 4404483
R202%E12831R At 31 December 2022
BB ASSETS
HHEE Segment assets 58298,162 234721197 236,438,902 11,708,335 510442 541,677,038 - 541,677,038
8 LIABILITIES
APaE Segment liabilities 162,380,932 220,006,335 94,056,838 2,508 3,058,786 479,505,399 - 479505399
BEANENANEA Year ended 31 December 2022
HbER Other information
BRI Capital expenditure - - - 1837744 - 1837744 - 1837744
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 77,848 122,266 52,082 301,864 14,653 568,713 - 568,713
Erdl Amortisation of securities - - 270520 - = 270520 = 270520
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41. DERE @
(b) BHEEEHHS

NTERZREMBRARNIZEEMWAENE M
BABRITZER KB ERREAIHEER

41. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal places
of operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the

BRZDITRTEth o 48 - locations of the branches responsible for reporting the results or
booking the assets:
2023 2022
REUR B ZE A REURELEER
ZBEEWRA BREBLAT  FEERA BR A AT
Net operating a5 Kl Net operating i A
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BET T BETT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&5 Hong Kong 7,887,619 3,379,209 6,470,552 3,422,341
B i Mainland of China 2,625,983 313,984 3,179,436 1,022,142
&EF Total 10,513,602 3,693,193 9,649,988 4,444,483
2023
RREBBEMAE
Contingent
REE wasE FRBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 392,864,482 343,319,372 8,611,082 79,978,825
H B A3 Mainland of China 162,284,115 143,838,068 1,764,969 124,490,054
&EF Total 555,148,597 487,157,440 10,376,051 204,468,879
2022
HAB EMALE
Contingent
BEE N FERBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BB T T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 383,107,589 338,839,045 8,388,318 76,839,982
B i Mainland of China 158,569,449 140,666,354 1,884,618 115,568,570
&EF Total 541,677,038 479,505,399 10,272,936 192,408,552
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42. BEHFEE

M2023F12A31B  AEBHBH 2B EBEEE
3,658,262,000 7 (2022 4 : /&% 7,096,398,0007T)
RUTEHRPREE RZFAEFEE 2 EEERT -
o AEBEBBEADBHBANESESLER
K~ BE A B 22,216,954,000 7 (2022 F : 7B
#534,244,105,0007T) - NEBAERUESEEME
Wy BESEEAB27,657,7050007T (2022 £ :
75 #543,200,890,0007T)  WEFER R FHMHEE E
NI @EE] AT -

43. SRMIEZIESH
TRIFAEEDER  FRTIEOFEEH RIS
FBLBEORS BT B -

42. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

As at 31 December 2023, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK3,658,262,000 (2022: HK$$7,096,398,000) were secured by
assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate settlement
operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$22,216,954,000 (2022: HK$34,244,105,000) were secured by debt
securities and bills related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The
amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these liabilities was
HK$27,657,705,000 (2022: HK$43,200,890,000) mainly included in
“Trading assets” and “Financial investments”.

43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.

2023
REE
BERPEE REERER  AEREERERTEHZ
LERRER HEIRE HELH
BEME SREEFE  Related amounts not set off
BEZE®  Grossamounts  Netamounts in the balance sheet
BEMBE  of recognised of financial 2l
Gross amounts financial assets Befm
of recognised liabilities set off ~ presented in $RIA Cash
financial  in the balance the balance Financial collateral B8
assets sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BE T BETT BETT BET T BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8E Assets
fTEeBIA Derivative financial instruments 510,709 - 510,709 (296,242) (205,188) 9,279
AtEE Other assets 2,176,237 (915,793) 1,260,444 - - 1,260,444
2,686,946 (915,793) 1,771,153 (296,242) (205,188) 1,269,723
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43. €@ IT A ZIESHE @) 43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont'd)
2023
REE
BERDES REEEER  AREREEEERTHEHZ
ZERAER HEIRE HELE
EEBE SMEETE  Related amounts not set off
BRHAEM  Grossamounts  Netamounts in the balance sheet
BEME  of recognised of financial BEAZ
Gross amounts financial liabilities ReHm
of recognised  assets set off presented in SRIA Cash
financial in the balance the balance Financial collateral BE
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BETT BETT BRI BETT BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8 Liabilities
ITESmIA Derivative financial instruments 932,594 - 932,59 (296,242) (499,650) 136,702
AtEE Other liabiliies 934,545 (915,793) 18,752 - - 18,752
1,867,139 (915,793) 951,346 (296,242) (499,650) 155,454
2022
BERTEE REERER  AENEERBRTEHZ
LEBAER N0 REeE
RERE SREETE Related amounts not set off
ERAERE  Gross amounts Net amounts in the balance sheet
EE®E  of recognised of financial Bl
Gross amounts financial assets Befm
of recognised  liabilities set off presented in SRIA Cash
financial in the balance the balance Financial collateral i
assets sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BRI BETT BRI BETT BETT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g Assets
TESRTIA Derivative financial instruments 1,310,759 - 1,310,759 (375,203) (734,002) 201,554
AtEE Other assets 1,398,816 (865,203) 533,613 - - 533,613
2,709,575 (865,203) 1,844,372 (375,203) (734,002) 735,167
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43. R T A ZIESHE @) 43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont'd)
2022
BERTEE REERER  AENEEABRTEHZ
LEBAER N0 REeE
EERE 2RERTE Related amounts not set off
ERAEE  Gross amounts Net amounts in the balance sheet
BE%E  of recognised of financial BHAZ
Gross amounts financial liabilities Befm
of recognised assets set off presented in SRIA Cash
financial in the balance the balance Financial collateral e
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BETT BYETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8 Liabilities
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 452,854 - 452,854 (375,203) (37,663) 39,988
AR Other liabiliies 929,054 (865,203) 63,851 - - 63,851
1,381,908 (865,203) 516,705 (375,203) (37,663) 103,839

BRASERTAMSIIMTETANERDER HH
FREBEERGS MEREENREMELAETN
= AR-XZHF RSB RBFELEE -

4., THEEER
AEBBEREEER TE=F  BLAERNOR
ERBEMEECHEENEREENETHER
SRR - BRNEHZSBREELY  AEEER
BEBESANEEERZEBEEE - #%E2023512A°
BNALEFE  AEEHBLEERSREERS
—EREMNEES A PEZNEMEENEZAR
HIBR B8 A 75 ¥ 262,209,000 7T (2022 4F : £8) -
MR2023F12A318  ASBEERRNEERE
A7E#69,954,0007T - WEBIH AER R HEAMIRE -
RNAEBERZEEER T ERSENEE S A
Hth B EMAEE S N E A BR1E & 4 -

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and
repurchase transactions entered into by the Group, related amounts
with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
predetermined events occur.

44. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the financial assets transferred to third parties, and
retained control of the financial assets, the transferred financial assets
are recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, the carrying amount at the time of
transfer of the original financial assets, in which the Group determined
that it has continuing involvement, was HK$262,209,000 (2022: Nil).
As at 31 December 2023, the Group continued to recognize assets of
HK$69,954,000 under advances and other accounts. The Group also
recognized other assets and other accounts and provisions of the same
amount arising from such continuing involvement.
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45. EEER

BIEEB (R AIED) B33 B R(AT (HEEEF
HER OB MMEE  MABTESERE
EZHENT

45. LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERMAEREZES Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding at
R 1BEE year end 41,041 40,721
REAREEEBERI 2 Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
STy b outstanding during the year 42,721 42,101

46. FECZEFBREALIRS
BARMEAER

AEEEEZERARAEESRERERAR (5
EEE])  REERATDRTEEZEEETERD
BERAR(HEEZD  MPEEEIATEAR
HANE B R (T BB AR EARLAME ([
BORINEEEREE  EROTETEB AR
SHBERRB ((BEBRM]) LR -

(a) EHEBRATARBLTEH2HMATET
X5

AEEzERERARREESE  MEESER
XREEE (BE) ERBRAR ([{FEEE ) ZH
TREEREEEEZERLAR  HTERRRE
PRIZGIA S ERES - BB R 28 A R KA B B 7%
PR EBFT - = 2 B B B BT AIBIRBR S

PREERZRLENNERIGEREN ER -

46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’'s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings
Co., Limited (“Cinda Financial Holdings”), the Group’s ultimate holding
company is China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda")
which is a state-owned financial enterprise established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF")
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies

The Group's immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings
which is in turn controlled by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company
Limited (“Cinda Hong Kong”). China Cinda is the controlling entity of
Cinda Hong Kong and its major shareholder and de facto controller
is MOF, which is one of the ministries under the State Council of the
PRC Government, primarily responsible for state fiscal revenue and
expenditures, and taxation policies.

China Cinda has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in
the PRC.
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46. FECZEBEALIRSZ )

(a) EHEBRAFARBLATEHHMATET
MR 5 (&)

AL EFRFEETHORZEERPERELE
ERERRBEN2023F12A318  AEEE
F1E 3% 4258 57 15 22,455,924,000 7T (2022 4F - %
#16,000,255,0007T) c NE B R 2023F 12 A31H
REHRFHFEHERFERRBR (2022 : B
1,400,481,0007C) - B E 2023412 531 HILFE -
HAREERBMERERESARTEENSIL A
755 301,848,000 7T (2022 4F : 71 38,860,000 7T) °
2023 FHAPAFEERIALERF BR R LRSI BA
(B ZE B 5 (2022 F : &1 580,460,000 7T) °

ABDEFEEBETHNRZFEERTFER R
2023F 12 A3MH - AEEBEBERBELERAEE
1,364,303,000 7T (2022 £F : B ¥ 1,545,133,0007T) ©
HZE2023F12A31HILFE - BEEF SR
HMEBBEFELENT LR A% 15,337,000
(2022 4F : 7##3,198,0007T) °

ABHEGRAES 2 HMRARNRZRANTES
BT HE - R2023F12A31H AEEHBEREL
HMATESRMEE B 68,0007T (20224 : B
16,625,0007T) RITAE BB & : 43,398,000 7T
(20224 : 7 ¥ 44,292,0007T) - ELE2023F 12 A
3NALEFE - B AEES 2 A Bt
BBRRPELENFRPHERSSBELED B AT
EEmEE: T HE®19,0007T (2022 : g AEEE
941,0007T) RATHE @R B & - WA 1,607,000
70 (2022 4 : Yg A5 2,256,0007T) °

ABAEFRAEH 2 EMATNRZREFER
REEFH-MN2023F 128318 AEEHBE R
TH/EEE 5 B & 75 856,172,000 7T (2022 4F : B K&
224,536,000 7t) K 7% # 5,097,690,000 7t (2022 4 :
75 #£2,373,219,0007T) - A/ Z=2023F 12 A31H 1t
FE - AFAFHES 2 QAR EEKRRE
FEAMBARS H42% 5 R A5 12,753,000 7T
(20224 : & #9,614,0007T) & /& # 73,533,000 7T
(20224 : ##63,835,0007T) °

46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies (Cont'd)

The majority of transactions with China Cinda arises from deposits
from customers and disposal of loans and advances. As at 31
December 2023, the related aggregate amount of the Group
from deposits from customers was HK$22,455,924,000 (2022:
HK$16,000,255,000) and there was no disposal of loans and advances
(2022: HK$1,400,481,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of
the Group arising from deposits from customers with China Cinda
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$301,848,000 (2022:
HK$38,860,000) and no net reversal of impairment allowance arising
from disposal with China Cinda (2022: HK$580,460,000).

The majority of transactions with Cinda Hong Kong arises from
deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2023, the related
aggregate amount of the Group was HK$1,364,303,000 (2022:
HK$1,545,133,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of the Group
arising from these transactions with Cinda Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was HK$15,337,000 (2022: HK$3,198,000).

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by
the parent companies arises from derivative financial instruments.
As at 31 December 2023, the related aggregate amount of the
Group was HK$68,000 (2022: HK$16,625,000) for the asset side
and HK$43,398,000 (2022: HK$44,292,000) for the liability side
respectively. The aggregate amount of net trading gain/loss of
the Group arising from these transactions with other companies
controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31 December
2023 was expenses HK$19,000 (2022: income HK$941,000) for
derivative financial assets and income HK$1,607,000 (2022: income
HK$2,256,000) for derivative financial liabilities.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the
parent companies arises from advances to customers and deposits
from customers. As at 31 December 2023, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$856,172,000 (2022: HK$224,536,000)
and HK$5,097,690,000 (2022: HK$2,373,219,000) respectively.
The aggregate amount of income and expenses of the Group arising
from these transactions with other companies controlled by the
parent companies for the period ended 31 December 2023 were
HK$12,753,000 (2022: HK$9,614,000) and HK$73,533,000 (2022:
HK$63,835,000) respectively.
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46. FECZEBEALIRS )

() BEBAFRFRFEHZEMATET
MR 5 (&)

ABHOEFRAREFNZEMRANRSRED
¥ BMEEE EMEEREMERBEBRER-
MR2023F12A31H  AEEHBRELBABE
365,447,000 7T (2022 F : % 312,016,000 7T) &
# 364,055,000 7t (2022 4F : ¥ 597,672,0007T) °
H fh %% 308,763,0007T (2022412 4310 : B
303,618,000 7T) /&1 FA 4 & &= I /8 ¥ 335,711,000
7T (2022 4F : 7 #326,829,0007T) /& B & A &42 4l
ZEMARRIAERENEANBEARZ -EE
2023F 12 AMHIEFEE  BEAFEHZEMAD
AL EEEBEREPELENFIIHBEABE
59,181,000 7T (2022 4F : ¥ 61,693,0007T) °

B bR EESN - EEAM AR R R REH 2 KA
AETHNRHETEK -

AEBEEREBPHENSERETRITEERS -
BREENR EFREREEBEWERS -

46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies (Cont'd)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the
parent companies arises from property, plant and equipment, other
assets and other accounts and provisions. As at 31 December 2023, the
related aggregate amount of the Group was HK$365,447,000 (2022:
HK$312,016,000) and HK$364,055,000 (2022: HK$597,672,000), of
which HK$308,763,000 (2022: HK$303,618,000) represent right-of-
use assets and HK$335,711,000 (2022: HK$326,829,000) represent
lease liabilities arising from lease agreements entered into with other
companies controlled by the parent companies. The aggregate amount
of net expenses of the Group arising from these transactions with other
companies controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31
December 2023 was HK$59,181,000 (2022: HK$61,693,000).

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies
and the other companies controlled by the parent companies are not
considered material.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the
normal course of business which include loans, investment securities
and money market transactions.
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46. FECZEBEALIRSZ )

(b) EBUFHKRE REHE MEKBRHE
EREFHERNRS

FEARKMBEFBRSHAEEERZES - THRB
BT#E RERE HEREMECERAENE
BEXAMEREFNARELMCER - AKRER KRB
ERRERFHE  RERE HERBREMR
BENERETERRITEERS -

BUERSBEEETRERTIIEE :

BE  REHEREREFRMEIER
- RITARZFRR AR

- HE BE SHMNEDHEOCRAENE
BAEIT2ES

- REINE - ERREBERE RS

- RH|ETEL K

- BEAHEE BIAE BERBBURE -

46.

(b)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Transactions with government authorities, agencies,
affiliates and other state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the MOF of the PRC Government,
which also directly or indirectly controls a significant number of entities
through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with
government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities in the normal course of business at commercial terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
inter-bank balance taking and placing;

sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued
by other state controlled entities;

rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment
related services;

provision of fiduciary activities; and

purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and postage
services.
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46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Group, directly or indirectly, including Directors and other Senior
Management. The Group accepts deposits from and grants loans and
credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material
transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the
Bank and its holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31
December is detailed as follows:

2023 2022

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR EMGEE TEF Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 37,706 47,416
RIRTEN Post-employment benefits 2,439 3,198
40,145 50,614

(d) EERTNEER

M2023F 12 A318 ARTEBFEBBIEF IR
—REEGTETRIEENERRENHE QA
FRIBMARE D Bl &75 ¥ 1,748,907,000 7T (2022 FF = 7
#1,237,214,00070) & 7 % 1,818,894,000 7T (2022
£ : #5#1,493,483,0007T) °

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate sums of amounts due from
subsidiaries and amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from
transactions entered into during the normal course of business at
commercial terms are HK$1,748,907,000 (2022: HK$1,237,214,000)
and HK$1,818,894,000 (2022: HK$1,493,483,000) respectively.
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47. BB EHE

NTAWMDH2REBBERITESR Z2ERBER
HIERIE R MRS - BRERZRI S FAEL
FARBREBERARZETF 2 KRB AEN R
o HANBERAEY 2 BEEERE R AR Z I
KEE BERZERAMELEIZSHFHEM
A RIEBREEBEERAZAEL - SERZE
RITZB/INDTT - HEBGEER EZIRT 2T
FRrFEH -

S E 1 B B B R sk & 5 B B AT R AR EiE 1R (5 B
BREEARR10%HIA L2 ERMT

47. INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of international banking statistics.
International claims are exposures to counterparties on which the
ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-
border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies.
For a claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from
the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the country of the
guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head
office is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the
country where its head office is located.

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting
to 10% or more of the aggregate international claims of the Group are
shown as follows:

2023
FRITRARE
Non-bank private sector
FBT
SRKE ke
EAHE Non-bank FABE
BT Official financial  Non-financial @t
Banks sector institutions  private sector Total
BT BETT BETR BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE R Mainland of China 29,761,212 726,951 7,902,518 14,449,259 52,839,940
BH Hong Kong 6,497,137 15,887 23,667,474 32,190,815 62,371,313
2022
FRITRARE
Non-bank private sector
JER1T
TR e
BAKE Non-bank LA
1T Official financial Non-financial Bt
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
BETT BETT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PRI Mainland of China 27,131,003 846,551 8,410,519 56,709,064 93,097,137
BB Hong Kong 5,474,498 26,007 20,771,849 30,827,178 57,099,532
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48. EEREBREER

(@ EEEEX

BER 48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY

(a) Balance sheet

®12HA31H
As at 31 December
2023 2022
BET T PR T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
EFHR e RIFWRERITR Cash and balances with banks and
H & B e other financial institutions 28,501,740 41,714,170
ERIT R H A & R Placements with banks and other financial institutions
—E+EARIEZ maturing between one and twelve months
EBTFR 1,799,670 -
NRERCET AIB2E 2 £ R/ E E Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,945,239 7,966,809
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 736,491 1,260,176
BERREMRIER Advances and other accounts 209,698,708 210,736,352
TEIRE Financial investments 132,515,309 111,744,550
P NCIR Interests in subsidiaries 11,713,686 11,713,686
WEME Investment properties 407,600 559,140
M - B REE Properties, plant and equipment 7,567,495 7,472,730
EAE Intangible assets 584,161 351,927
H & B Other assets 3,272,846 1,957,806
BERE Total assets 405,742,945 395,477,346
afE LIABILITIES
RITREM S RS Deposits and balances from banks and other financial
7 7R e A 8 institutions 23,114,584 33,792,149
ARERCEE AB2E 2 £ R B (& Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5,784,773 7,119,358
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 998,577 548,351
BEER Deposits from customers 305,861,174 289,512,087
Hh BRI I 224 Other accounts and provisions 2,768,530 3,168,578
ENPRIEAE Current tax liabilities 537,190 346,177
BEERIRARG Deferred tax liabilities 526,978 356,077
“BEEE Subordinated liabilities 5,468,028 5,455,215
BEEE Total liabilities 345,059,834 340,297,992
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48. EEEBERNEZEHX»® 48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF

() EBEEREEXR®E

CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)
(a) Balance sheet (Cont'd)

®12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 2022
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
=S EQUITY
A& AR Share capital 3,144,517 3,144,517
i Reserves 50,116,568 46,956,981
AT EEERNETE Total equity attributable to equity holder of the Bank 53,261,085 50,101,498
BINEART AR Additional equity instruments 7,422,026 5,077,856
BB Total equity 60,683,111 55,179,354
BERERBRE Total liabilities and equity 405,742,945 395,477,346
REFESHR2024F3 A2 BBBZHETHUATAL Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2024 and signed on
REREZ: behalf of the Board by:
BRER Sun Jiandong R R Cheng Kin Kong
EFE Director EF Director
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48. EEEBERNEZEHXR 48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)

(b) HEEXZBFR (b) Statement of changes in equity
i

Reserves

M

Zltit ALt

PENERE

BER EE  Resenefor

If Eftf fair value

R Addtional Premises  thoughother  EEEE* AHRE 2R

Share equity revaluation  comprehensive Regulatory Translation Retained &5
capital instruments Teserve income reserve* reserve eannings Total
E¥TR BETR R8T EBTR BETT AETT E¥TR AETTL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

RANE1A1B At1 January 2022 3,144 517 9,314,890 6,016,717 336,870 1,003,751 (12.144) 38,875,990 58,770,591
ERgT Profit for the year = - = = - - 289969 289499
EfpdElE Other comprehensive income:
EE Premises = = (44720 = = = = (4720
RATHABHHEZRERS  Actuarial gains on defined benefit plan = = = = = = 140623 4063
MESVAAEERENE  Finandal instruments at fair vlue
LEWTA through other comprehensive
income - - - (1,741,928) - - - (1,741,928)
Bt Total comprehensive income - - (44.720) (1,741928) - - 2,935,592 1,148,944
EIRMEATR Issue of additional equity instruments' = 5,077,856 = = = = = 5,077,856
BEEBNERIA Redemption of the additional equity
nstruments - (9,314890) - - - - (101.932) (9416822)
IABHEFIERE Distribution payment for additional equity
nstruments - (401,215) - - - - - (401,215)
#Re/(2)95RH Transfer fromito) retained earings s 401,215 = = (353,952) = 47263) =
RUDE1ANA At31 December 2022 BMST ST ST (A0S0 TRJ® (M) 43 51793
1. 2022 F N - 21T % 478 % 5,099,868,000 7T (3£ 7T 1. During the year of 2022, the Bank issued HK$5,099,868,000
650,000,000) 7k A 3E R5H X R I —RERZ 5 [ 8 (US$650,000,000) perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1
INEARTA]) « EEEITRAEE 22,012,000 TEE capital securities (“additional equity instruments”). Direct issuance costs of
AR WHEEINEART Bk - HK$22,012,000 are accounted for as a deduction from the additional equity
instruments.
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48. EEEERREZSBHRE 48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)
(b) HEERSHRGE (b) Statement of changes in equity (Cont'd)
i ]
Reserves
MhE
#L AR
2EhEHE
g EE  Reservefor
I8 Bfifit fair value
R&  Additional Premises throughother  BEFfE* BERE BHEd
Share equity  revaluation comprehensive  Regulatory  Translation Retained ;
capital  instruments reserve income reserve¥ reserve earnings Total
YT BETT 8T BYTR BETR 8T YT BRI
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
RABEIA1A At1 January 2023 3144517 5,077,856 5,971,997 (1,405,058) 739,799 (12,144) 41,662,387 55,179,354
EEEF Profitfor the year - - - - - - 2,791,875 2,791,875
Efp2ElE Other comprehensive income:
FE Premises - - (48.201) - - - - (48.201)
REFEBHF 82 RERS  Acvarial gans on defined benefitplan - - - - - - 13,197 13,197
DMBELFALBRERE  Finandal instruments at fair vaue
LEWTA through other comprehensive
income - - - 820,223 - - - 820223
SENREE Total comprehensive income - - (48,201) 820,23 - - 2,805,072 3,577,004
EIRMERTR Issue of additional equity instruments? - 234,170 - - - - - 234,170
XHBNERIARE Distrbution payment for additional equity
nstruments - (417,507) - - - - - (417,507)
HRe/(2)95EH Transfer fromito) retained earings - 47,507 - - 143235 - (560,742) -
HBEILA31E 31 December 2003 MMST TR0 SIBI% (SN RO (D) BXENT 60T
2. N RATEATH K 2,354,955,0007T (7T 2. During the year, the Bank issued HK$2,354,955,000 (US$300,000,000)

300,000,000) 5k A EREHR R FEIN—BREREF 5
SNEARTR]) - EEFITHAE%10,785,000 T&EE
AR - WHEBINEAT AR MG -

* BRYEEFRRBELERN  REEREBFEELNE
FRAMNEEERFBIERT -REARZE (BERKE
K HMT AT ERRR)

perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities
("additional equity instruments”). Direct issuance costs of HK$10,785,000 are

accounted for as a deduction from the additional equity instruments.

In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside

for general banking risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks,

in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised.
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49, RAERRAT

AEBERPREEMEES MPEEERATE
ARFAMBE SR (T3 BE]) EhEARLME
(REDKZOER DR ERDTESER
EXHMBRAR([BEBRM]) LHRS -

50. LB
BREEAFEZY  ADLEBLBEEY -

51. BMBHBREE

AR BBERNV 202453021 BREFTCRBREE
i o

49. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-
owned financial enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF") and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

50. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative amounts have been restated according to the
current year presentation.

51. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 21 March 2024.
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